
 

 
 
 

DYDD MERCHER, 7 GORFFENNAF 2021 
 
 

AT:  HOLL AELODAU’R CYNGOR SIR 
 
 
 
 
YR WYF DRWY HYN YN EICH GALW I FYNYCHU CYFARFOD 
RHITHWIR O’R CYNGOR SIR A GYNHELIR AM 10.00 YB,  
DYDD MERCHER, 14 GORFFENNAF, 2021 ER MWYN CYFLAWNI'R 
MATERION A AMLINELLIR AR YR AGENDA SYDD YNGHLWM 
 
 
 

 

Wendy Walters 

PRIF WEITHREDWR 

 
Swyddog Democrataidd: Janine Owen 

Ffôn (llinell uniongyrchol): 01267 224030 

E-bost: JanineOwen@sirgar.gov.uk 

 

Wendy Walters Prif Weithredwr, Chief Executive, 
Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin. SA31 1JP 
County Hall, Carmarthen. SA31 1JP 

 

 

Pecyn Dogfennau



 

 

A G E N D A   
 

1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB   

2. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANNAU PERSONOL.   

3. CYHOEDDIADAU'R CADEIRYDD.   

4. LLOFNODI YN GOFNOD CYWIR COFNOD CYFARFOD Y 
CYNGOR A GYNHALIWYD AR 9 MEHEFIN 2021  

5 - 10 

5. DATGANIAD AMRYWIAETH MEWN DEMOCRATIAETH  11 - 18 

6. YSTYRIED ARGYMHELLION Y BWRDD GWEITHREDOL O RAN Y 
MATERION CANLYNOL:  

 

6 .1 RHAGLEN SGILIAU A THALENTAU,  
BARGEN DDINESIG BAE ABERTAWE 

19 - 136 

6 .2 LLOFNODWR Y SIARTER CREU LLEOEDD 137 - 146 

7. DERBYN ADRODDIAD CYFARFOD Y BWRDD GWEITHREDOL A 
GYNHALIWYD AR:-  

 

7 .1 1 MEHEFIN 2021 147 - 150 

7 .2 21 MEHEFIN 2021 151 - 158 

7 .3 5 GORFFENNAF 2021 159 - 162 

8. CWESTIYNAU GAN Y CYHOEDD (NID OEDD DIM WEDI DOD I LAW).   

9. CWESTIYNAU GAN YR AELODAU:-   

9 .1 CWESTIWN GAN Y CYNGHORYDD EDWARD THOMAS I'R 
CYNGHORYDD HAZEL EVANS - YR AELOD Y BWRDD 
GWEITHREDOL DROS AMGYLCHEDD. 

  

 “Ar 25 Mehefin, cawsom y cadarnhad i'w groesawu'n fawr fod Ffordd Osgoi 
Llandeilo yn dal i fod yn rhan o Gynlluniau Llywodraeth Cymru i leddfu'r 
problemau sylweddol iawn o ran tagfeydd traffig a llygredd aer yn y dref. 
  
Roedd y rhan fwyaf o bobl yn Llandeilo yn falch o glywed y cyhoeddiad 
hwn a oedd yn cadarnhau yr ymrwymiad cyllidebol blaenorol i adeiladu'r 
ffordd osgoi. 
  
A wnaiff yr Aelod o'r Bwrdd Gweithredol gytuno bod hwn yn newyddion i'w 
groesawu ac a wnaiff yr Aelod o'r Bwrdd Gweithredol hefyd ymrwymo'r 
Cyngor Sir i barhau i weithio gyda Llywodraeth Cymru i gyflawni'r ffordd 
osgoi a hefyd i gefnogi cyflwyno mesurau atodol yng nghanol y dref er 
mwyn gwella ansawdd aer a mynd i'r afael â'r peryglon o ran troedffyrdd 
cul iawn i gerddwyr, adolygu cyfyngiadau parcio er mwyn cefnogi 
busnesau lleol a gwelliannau i'r strydoedd, ar ôl cwblhau'r ffordd osgoi.” 
 

 



 

10. CYMARADWYO Y NEWIDIADAU CANLYNOL I AELODAETH 
PWYLLGORAU  

 

10 .1 BOD Y GRWP LLAFUR WEDI ENWEBU'R CYNGHORYDD BILL 
THOMAS I GYMRYD LLE'R CYNGHORYDD AMANDA FOX AR Y 
PWYLLGOR CRAFFU GOFAL CYMDEITHASOL AC IECHYD. 

 

10 .2 BOD Y GRWP LLAFUR WEDI ENWEBU'R CYNGHORYDD ROB 
JAMES I GYMRYD LLE'R CYNGHORYDD BILL THOMAS AR Y 
PWYLLGOR CRAFFU ADDYSG A PHLANT. 

 

11. COFNODION ER GWYBODAETH (AR GAEL AR Y WEFAN)   

11 .1 PWYLLGOR TWYDDEDU - 26 MAI 2021  

11 .2 PWYLLGOR CYNLLUNIO - 27 MAI 2021  

11 .3 PWYLLGOR CYNLLUNIO - 8 MEHEFIN 2021  

11 .4 PWYLLGOR CRAFFU POLICI AC ADNODDAU - 10 MEHEFIN 2021  

11 .5 PWYLLGOR CRAFFI ADDYSG A PHLANT - 11 MEHEFIN 2021  

11 .6 PWYLLGOR SAFONAU - 14 MEHEFIN 2021  

11 .7 PWYLLGOR GWASANAETHAU DEMOCRATAIDD -  
16 MEHEFIN 2021 

 

11 .8 PWYLLGOR CRONFA BENSIWN DYFED - 16 MEHEFIN 2021  

11 .9 PWYLLGOR PENODI AELODAU - 17 MEHEFIN 2021  
 
 



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 

COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

WEDNESDAY, 9TH JUNE, 2021  
 
 

PRESENT: Councillor J.E. Williams (Chair) 
 
Councillors:  
F. Akhtar K.V. Broom C.A. Campbell J.M. Charles 
D.M. Cundy S.A. Curry C.A. Davies W.R.A. Davies 
T.A.J. Davies G. Davies H.L. Davies I.W. Davies 
J.A. Davies K.Davies S.L. Davies E. Dole 
J.S. Edmunds D.C. Evans H.A.L. Evans L.D. Evans 
R.E. Evans W.T. Evans S.J.G. Gilasbey P. Hughes-Griffiths 
A.D. Harries T.M. Higgins J.K. Howell P.M. Hughes 
A. James J.D. James R. James D.M. Jenkins 
G.H. John C. Jones B.W. Jones D. Jones 
G.R. Jones T.J. Jones H.I. Jones A. Lenny 
M.J.A. Lewis K. Lloyd K. Madge S. Matthews 
A.S.J. McPherson E. Morgan A.G. Morgan D. Nicholas 
B.D.J. Phillips J.S. Phillips D. Price J.G. Prosser 
B.A.L. Roberts H.B. Shepardson E.M.J.G. Schiavone A.D.T. Speake 
L.M. Stephens B. Thomas D. Thomas E.G. Thomas 
G.B. Thomas G. Thomas J. Tremlett A.Vaughan Owen 
D.T. Williams D.E. Williams   
 
Also Present: 
W. Walters, Chief Executive 
C. Moore, Director of Corporate Services 
J. Morgan, Director of Community Services 
G. Morgans, Director of Education & Children's Services 
R. Mullen, Director of Environment 
L.R. Jones, Head of Administration and Law 
P.R. Thomas, Assistant Chief Executive (People Management & Performance) 
G. Morgan, Head of Democratic Services 
J. Jones, Property Maintenance Manager 
I.R. Llewelyn, Forward Planning Manager 
E. Evans, Principal Democratic Services Officer 
M. Evans Thomas, Principal Democratic Services Officer 
L. Jenkins, Executive Board Support Officer 
E. Bryer, Democratic Services Officer 
K. Thomas, Democratic Services Officer 
J. Hawker, Digital Support Officer 
C.J. Warwick, Digital Support Engineer 
S. Rees, Simultaneous Translator 
 
Virtual Meeting : 10.00 am - 10.50 am 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 5

Eitem Rhif  4



 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors L. Bowen; P. Edwards; A. 
Fox and S. Najmi. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF PERSONAL INTERESTS. 
 
There were no declarations of personal interests. 
 

3. CHAIR’S ANNOUNCEMENTS. 
 

 Councillor Handel Davies expressed his congratulations to Mr Wyn Jones 
from Llandovery on being selected to play for the Lions rugby team on their 
forthcoming tour to South Africa; 

 Councillor Rob Evans expressed his congratulations to Dafen School, 
Llanelli on being awarded the status of ‘First Global EntreCompEdu Pioneer 
School” out of the 52 countries taking part in the project from January 2021 
to May 2021 

 
4. TO APPROVE AND SIGN AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE 

COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON THE:- 
 
4.1. 12TH MAY 2021 
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of Council held 
on the 12th May, 2021 be signed as a correct record. 
 
4.2. 19TH MAY 2021 
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of Council held 
on the 19th May, 2021 be signed as a correct record. 
 

5. TO CONSIDER THE RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD IN 
RESPECT OF THE FOLLOWING ITEMS 
 
5.1. DRAFT LOCAL DEVELOPMENT ORDERS AMMANFORD AND 

CARMARTHEN TOWN CENTRES 
 
The Council was informed that the Executive Board, at its meeting held on the 24th 
May 2021 (minute 8 refers) had considered a report on proposals for the 
introduction of Draft Local Development Orders (LDO) for Ammanford and 
Carmarthen Town centres to simplify the planning process by removing the need 
for certain types of planning applications (excluding listed buildings) allowing 
developers to progress with more speed and certainty whilst reducing costs. If 
adopted, the proposals would require submission to and approval by the Welsh 
Government. 
 
RESOLVED that the following recommendations of the Executive Board be 
accepted 
 

Tudalen 6



 

“8.1 to consider the representations received in respect of the Draft Local 
Development Orders (LDO) for Ammanford and Carmarthen Town 
Centres. 

8.2 to approve the recommendations of the report. 
8.3 to approve the submission of the LDO (inclusive of the 

recommendations of this report, and evidence updates) to the Welsh 
Government for agreement (subject to a satisfactory EIA). 

8.4 to grant officers delegated authority to make non-substantive 
typographical or factual amendments as necessary to improve the 
clarity and accuracy of the LDO and to update the evidence base and 
make any consequential changes to the LDO, and to ensure any 
additional matters of legal compliance are also integrated”. 

 
6. TO RECEIVE THE REPORT OF THE MEETING OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD 

HELD ON THE:- 
 
6.1. 26TH APRIL 2021 
 
Councillor John James referred to minute 7 of the Executive Board Meeting held 
on the 26th April regarding the development of the former Grillo Site at Burry Port 
and to the impact of coastal erosion in the area and to any possible affect that 
could have on the site’s development. He accordingly extended an invitation to the 
Leader of the Council to meet with him on site within the next 28 days to view the 
sites. 
 
The Leader of the Council accepted the invitation and assured that the site was 
correct for development and the current cleaning and ground works were all part of 
its development. He confirmed arrangements for the visit would take place in the 
next few days.  
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that the report of the meeting of the Executive 
Board held on the 26th April, 2021 be received. 
 
6.2. 24TH MAY 2021 
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that the report of the meeting of the Executive 
Board held on the 24th May, 2021 be received. 
 

7. PUBLIC QUESTIONS (NONE RECEIVED). 
 
The Chair advised that no public questions had been received. 
 

8. QUESTIONS BY MEMBERS:- 
 
8.1. QUESTION BY COUNCILLOR ROB EVANS TO COUNCILLOR PHILIP 

HUGHES EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER FOR PUBLIC PROTECTION 
 
Carmarthenshire County Council are struggling to enforce parking violations on zig 
zag yellow lines outside our schools in Carmarthenshire putting children’s lives at 
risk from severe death or injury. 
 

Tudalen 7



 

“What can be done by Carmarthenshire County Council to enforce parking 
restrictions outside schools and ensure pupils in all schools in Carmarthenshire 
are safe when arriving on a school day and leaving at the end of the day” 
 
Response by Councillor Phillip Hughes – Executive Board Member for Public 
Protection:- 
 
Thank you Councillor Evans for your question. 
 
Working with our partners in the statutory agencies, the County Council employs a 
range of measures and interventions to support the safety of all road users, 
particularly young people. A broad mix of engineering, enforcement and education 
initiatives are employed to help reduce the risk to the young and old. 
 
For example, from an engineering perspective, over the last four years we have 
invested over two and a half million pounds in Safe Routes to Schools by working 
with communities to bid for and secure grant funding from the Welsh Government. 
We have also continued our investment in active travel linkages to encourage 
people to walk and cycle more, aimed at reducing the amount of travel by car. 
 
From an education perspective, our road safety education programme includes 
specific training for young people such as road safety training in schools, which 
includes, safe walking and cycling. Also training is given for motorists along with 
road safety campaigns and media releases through social media to highlight the 
dangers of parking on school keep clear markings 
 
Our Walk to School programme for example encourages parents to walk, cycle or 
scoot to and from school with children. Walking to school benefits pupils, parents, 
the school and the local community: 
 

 It develops pedestrian and road safety skills; 

 Reduces traffic congestion around the school gate; 

 Pupils arrive at school more alert and on time; 

 Less emissions helping to improve air quality; 

 It also promotes moderate physical exercise. 
 
With regards to enforcement, the County Council has worked with Go Safe and 
the Police to undertake speed reduction initiatives. For example, a Speed 
Indication Device is deployed and where motorists are speeding, Roads Policing 
will stop motorists who exceed the speed limit, the motorists will be offered the 
choice of a fine with penalty points or alternatively speak to the children and a 
County Council Road Safety Officer. 
 
From a parking perspective, again the County Council works with schools and the 
police with joint visits to schools and of course as you mention, the deployment of 
the camera car. When the car was introduced, the Council worked with school 
children to promote the initiative, indeed, a competition was organised with school 
children to name the car and encourage responsible parking behaviour. A year two 
pupil from Ysgol Brynsierfel won the competition and the car was named ‘Iolo 
Patrolo’. 
 

Tudalen 8



 

Since it was launched, the camera car has been deployed at a range of locations 
across the county to address road safety concerns since it was purchased in 
2019/20. Year 2020/21 has been an exceptional year due to the pandemic, 
behaviours have changed and travel has reduced due to the impact of the 
necessary restrictions. Our range of interventions will continue in the future to 
support road safety and include deployment of the enforcement car. 
 
I must stress that if we are to improve road safety, there will always be a need to 
strike the balance and work with communities to achieve this using a broad mix of 
education, engineering and enforcement initiatives. 
 
Supplementary Question by Councillor Evans 
Can Carmarthenshire County Council purchase another camera car to enforce 
parking violations on yellow zig zag lines outside schools as we have only one, 
and it does break down, and a campaign by Carmarthenshire County Council to 
get the message to car owners that parking on yellow zig zag lines, and this is my 
point Philip, this is my question, it is an offence and can cause severe injury or 
death to pupils and that patrol cameras cars are patrolling these areas regularly. 
One will not suffice, we do need possibly to have another one and possibly two. 
 
Response by Councillor Philip Hughes – Executive Board member for Public 
Protection: 
It is a question of striking the balance as set out in my answer. Much of the parking 
around schools will involve the parents and carers of pupils that is why it is 
important to work with schools and communities on the range of measures to 
influence behaviours. Fortunately, the number of reported incidents and near 
misses outside the school gate at school times over the last three years is 
minimal. But, I hasten to add, we will not be complacent and will continue to 
educate, engineer and enforce where necessary. We can all appeal to our 
communities, parents and carers to think about how we make the journey to 
school and to behave responsibly to support the safety of our young people. 
 
With regards to a second car, this is something I will take that up with the powers 
that be and I will come back to you on that one Rob, if I may. 
 

9. MINUTES FOR INFORMATION (AVAILABLE TO VIEW ON THE WEBSITE) 
 
The Chair stated that the minutes outlined on the agenda under 11.1 – 11.3 were 
available for information on the Council website. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________    __________________ 
CHAIR       DATE 
 

Tudalen 9



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 

 

SIR CYNGOR  

 

14 GORFFENNAF 2021 

 

DATGANIAD AMRYWIAETH MEWN DEMOCRATIAETH 

Yr Argymhellion / Penderfyniadau Allweddol Sydd Eu Hangen: 

 

1. bod Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin yn ymrwymo i fod yn 'Gyngor Amrywiol' ac yn cymeradwyo 
datganiad Amrywiaeth mewn Democratiaeth Cyngor Cymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol 
Cymru i :- 

 Darparu ymrwymiad cyhoeddus, clir i wella amrywiaeth; 
 Arddangos diwylliant agored a chroesawgar i bawb; 
 Ystyried aildrefnu amseroedd cyfarfodydd cyngor a chytuno ar gyfnodau toriad i 

gefnogi cynghorwyr gydag ymrwymiadau eraill; ac 
 I amlinellu cynllun gweithredu erbyn etholiadau lleol 2022. 

2. bod Pwyllgor y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd yn cael y dasg o ddatblygu cynllun 
gweithredu cyn etholiad llywodraeth leol 2022.  

 

Y Rhesymau:  

 
Mae Cyngor Cymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol Cymru wedi cytuno y dylai pob Cyngor ymrwymo i 
ddatganiad erbyn mis Gorffennaf 2021 ar ddod yn 'Gynghorau Amrywiol' yn 2022, i ddarparu 
ymrwymiad cyhoeddus, clir i wella amrywiaeth.  

 

Ymgynghorwyd â'r pwyllgor craffu perthnasol  AMHERTHNASOL                                            

Angen i’r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad  NAC OES  

Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad OES   

 

YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:-   
Y Cyng.  Emlyn Dole – Arweinydd 
Y Cyng. Ann Davies - Aelod y Bwrdd Gweithredol dros Cydraddoldeb.  
 

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: 

Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth: 

Linda Rees Jones 

 

Awdur yr Adroddiad: 

Gaynor Morgan 

 

 

Swyddi: 

Pennaeth Gweinyddiaeth a’r 
Gyfraith 

 

Pennaeth Gwasanaethau 
Democrataidd 

 

Rhifau ffôn: 

01267 224026 

Cyfeiriadau E-bost: 

 

GMorgan@sirgar.gov.uk 

 

 

Tudalen 11

Eitem Rhif  5



 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

COUNTY COUNCIL  

14TH JULY 2021 

 
 

DIVERSITY IN DEMOCRACY DECLARATION 
 

 
The Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA) Council which comprises members from 
the Principal Welsh Councils considered a report on the 5th March 2021 on Diversity in 
Democracy – see link. 
 
The WLGA Council as part of its debate unanimously agreed “to foster a culture where all 

councillors are encouraged and supported to claim any necessary allowances or expenses to 

which they are entitled, and we ask that you lead and encourage this culture locally.”   

 

The WLGA Council also unanimously agreed that all councils should commit to a declaration 

by July 2021 on becoming ‘Diverse Councils’ in 2022, to provide a clear, public commitment 

to improving diversity” As part of its report the WLGA agreed an ‘outline’ Declaration to: 

 Provide a clear, public commitment to improving diversity; 
 Demonstrate an open and welcoming culture to all; 
 Consider staggering council meeting times and agreeing recess periods to support 

councillors with other commitments; and 
 Set out an action plan of activity ahead of the 2022 local elections 

Once the Declaration is accepted, it is proposed that the Democratic Services Committee is 
tasked with developing an action plan ahead of the 2022 local government election 

 

 

 

 

 

DETAILED REPORT 
ATTACHED? 

Letter from WLGA dated 15th April 2021 
 
 

 
  

Tudalen 12

https://www.wlga.wales/council-special-meeting-diversity-in-democracy


 

 

IMPLICATIONS 
 

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this 
report : 

Signed:   Linda Rees Jones, Head of Administration & Law                      

 

Policy, Crime 
& Disorder and 
Equalities 

 

Legal  Finance  ICT  Risk 
Management 
Issues  

Staffing 
Implications 

Physical 
Assets   

YES NO NOT AT 
THIS 
STAGE 

NONE NONE NOT AT THIS 
STAGE 

NONE  

Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities 

Carmarthenshire County Council is a listed public body under the Equality Act and holds 

additional responsibility to meet the Public Sector Equality Duty, as outlined below:  

Public Sector Equality Duty  

The General Duty  

When making decisions and delivering services, we must have due regard to:  

 Eliminating discrimination, harassment, victimisation, and any other conduct that is 
prohibited under the Act  

 Advancing equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it  

Fostering good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and 
persons who do not share it.  
 
The WLGA will encourage all political parties, through the WLGA Political Groups, to commit to 
proactive and coordinated activities to improve diversity in local government democracy. 

 

 
  

Tudalen 13



 

 

CONSULTATIONS 
 

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are 
as detailed below 

 

Signed:   Linda Rees Jones, Head of Administration & Law                    

 

1.Scrutiny Committee Not applicable 

 

2.Local Member(s) Not applicable 

 

3.Community / Town Council Not applicable 

 

4.Relevant Partners  Not applicable 

 

5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations  Not applicable 

 

EXECUTIVE BOARD PORTFOLIO 
HOLDERS AWARE/CONSULTED  

 

Yes 

 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 

List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 

 

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW: 

Title of Document 
 

File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for 
public inspection  

WLGA Correspondence  http://www.wlga.wales/council-special-
meeting-diversity-in-democracy 

 
 

 
 

Tudalen 14

http://www.wlga.wales/council-special-meeting-diversity-in-democracy
http://www.wlga.wales/council-special-meeting-diversity-in-democracy


 

Croesawn ohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg a’r Saesneg a byddwn yn ymateb i ohebiaeth yn yr un iaith. 
Ni fydd defnyddio’r naill iaith na’r llall yn arwain at oedi.  

We welcome correspondence in Welsh and English and will respond to correspondence in the same language. 
Use of either language will not lead to a delay.  

 

 

Dyddiad /Date:    15 April 2021 
Gofynnwch am/Please ask for:  Daniel Hurford 
Llinell uniongyrchol/Direct line:  029 20468615 
Ebost/Email:    daniel.hurford@wlga.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 

To: 
Group Leaders 
Chairs of Councils  
Chairs of Democratic Services Committees 
 
cc WLGA Council, Chief Executives & Heads of Democratic Services 
 
 
 
Dear colleagues, 
 

Diversity in Democracy  
 
As attention understandably focuses on the Senedd elections in a little 
over a month’s time, it is important we look ahead and begin planning 
for the local elections in May 2022. 
 
One of the key messages of the WLGA’s Leadership Academy is that 
‘you need to be ordinary enough to be a councillor, but also 
extraordinary enough to be a councillor’.  
 
There is no doubt that councillors have been extraordinary during the 
past twelve months of the coronavirus pandemic. But to be ‘ordinary’, 
councillors also need to be like the people they represent and reflect 
the diversity of the communities they serve. Despite previous action 
and campaigns, progress has been slow and we all recognise there 
remains a lack of diversity in our councils.  
 
We need more women, more young people, more Black, Asian and 
Minority Ethnic people, more disabled and LGBTQ+ candidates 
standing in 2022.  
 

The WLGA has therefore committed to making a step change in local 
government diversity at the 2022 local elections. The WLGA Council 
endorsed the enclosed Diversity in Democracy report at a special 
meeting earlier this month. The report is the culmination of the work 
of a cross-party working group and builds on the action plans and 
ambitions of councils and partners.  
 
The WLGA Council debate was passionate and progressive and there 

was unanimous support for concerted and collective action across the 

family of local government and within political parties.  

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 
Dr Chris Llewelyn 
Prif Weithredwr 
Chief Executive 
 
Cymdeithas Llywodraeth 
Leol Cymru 
Tŷ Llywodraeth Leol 
Rhodfa Drake 
CAERDYDD CF10 4LG 
Ffôn: 029 2046 8600 
 
Welsh Local Government 
Association 
Local Government House 
Drake Walk 
CARDIFF CF10 4LG 
Tel: 029 2046 8600 
 
wlga.cymru 
wlga.wales 
 
@WelshLGA 

 

 

Tudalen 15



 

Croesawn ohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg a’r Saesneg a byddwn yn ymateb i ohebiaeth yn yr un iaith. 
Ni fydd defnyddio’r naill iaith na’r llall yn arwain at oedi.  

We welcome correspondence in Welsh and English and will respond to correspondence in the same language. 
Use of either language will not lead to a delay.  

 

 

 

The WLGA will take forward several actions nationally and we have already launched a 

beacouncillor.wales website. As Group Leaders, we will make representations to political 

parties to take action and make progress and we will also make the case to the Welsh 

Government and the Independent Remuneration Panel that councillors should be entitled to 

‘resettlement grants’ (effectively redundancy payments) should they lose they seat at an 

election. 

The Council recognised the diversity work already under way locally but called for concerted 
and ambitious local action. We would therefore be grateful if you could work with your 
political colleagues and prioritise action locally, promoting the take-up of members’ 
allowances and progressing ‘Diverse Council’ declarations by the summer. 

Members’ allowances play a critical role in encouraging greater diversity; some councillors 

can be disproportionately affected if they are on low incomes or have caring 

responsibilities. Many councillors are dissuaded from claiming their full entitlements to 

allowances, such as reimbursements of costs of care or travel, due to peer or public 

pressure. The WLGA Council therefore unanimously agreed that we need to foster a culture 

where all councillors are encouraged and supported to claim any necessary allowances or 

expenses to which they are entitled, and we ask that you lead and encourage this culture 

locally. 

  

The WLGA Council also unanimously agreed that all councils should commit to a declaration 

by July 2021 on becoming ‘Diverse Councils’ in 2022, to provide a clear, public commitment 

to improving diversity. The report includes an ‘outline’ Declaration to: 

 Provide a clear, public commitment to improving diversity; 
 Demonstrate an open and welcoming culture to all; 
 Consider staggering council meeting times and agreeing recess periods to support 

councillors with other commitments; and 
 Set out an action plan of activity ahead of the 2022 local elections. 

Councils may however wish to undertake further action or commitments within their 

Declarations according to local priorities.  

The WLGA Council discussed the merits of positive action and there was support for the use 
of voluntary quotas in local elections; this is a matter for local groups and parties but where 
such voluntary approaches have been adopted in the past, there has been significant 
progress in terms of gender balance.  The WLGA Council also unanimously agreed that 
councils should set targets to be representative of the communities they serve at the next 
elections.  

Councils’ local diversity work will be supported by a national awareness raising, publicity 

and support through the WLGA and Welsh Government. WLGA officials will be meeting with 

Heads of Democratic Services in April to share ideas and approaches to develop local 

Diverse Council Declarations.  

 

Tudalen 16

https://www.beacouncillor.wales/


 

Croesawn ohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg a’r Saesneg a byddwn yn ymateb i ohebiaeth yn yr un iaith. 
Ni fydd defnyddio’r naill iaith na’r llall yn arwain at oedi.  

We welcome correspondence in Welsh and English and will respond to correspondence in the same language. 
Use of either language will not lead to a delay.  

 

 

We are confident you will share the WLGA Council’s commitment and look forward to 

working with you in promoting Diversity in Democracy and achieving our shared ambition 

to ensure our council chambers better reflect the diversity of the communities they serve 

following the 2022 local elections. 

 

 
Yours sincerely, 
 

  
Cllr Huw David 
WLGA Presiding 
Officer  
 
 
 

 
 
Cllr Andrew Morgan,  
WLGA Leader  
 
 

 
Cllr Peter Fox 
WLGA Conservative 
Group Leader 
 

  
 

Cllr Mary Sherwood  

Joint WLGA Spokesperson for 
Equalities & Co-Chair of 
Working Group 

 

 

Cllr Hugh Evans 

WLGA Independent Group 
Leader 

 

  
 

Cllr Susan Elsmore 

Joint WLGA 
Spokesperson for 
Equalities & Co-Chair 
of Working Group 

Cllr Emlyn Dole 

WLGA Plaid Cymru 
Group Leader 

 

   

 
 

Tudalen 17



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



1 
 

 
 
 

RHAGLEN SGILIAU A THALENTAU,  
BARGEN DDINESIG BAE ABERTAWE 

Argymhellion y Bwrdd Gweithredol:  

 
1. Cymeradwyo'r Achos Busnes arfaethedig ar gyfer y Rhaglen Sgiliau a Thalentau a'i gyflwyno'n 

ffurfiol i'r Swyddfa Rheoli Portffolio yn unol â Chynllun Gweithredu'r Fargen Ddinesig er mwyn 

cymeradwyo cyllid y Fargen Ddinesig.  

2. Rhoi awdurdod dirprwyedig i'r Pennaeth Adfywio ar y cyd â’r Aelod o’r Bwrdd Gweithredol i 
wneud unrhyw fân newidiadau i'r achos busnes yn ôl yr angen er mwyn cael cymeradwyaeth 
ar lefel llywodraeth leol, rhanbarthol a chenedlaethol. 
 

Y Rhesymau:  
Mae'r Rhaglen Sgiliau a Thalentau yn buddsoddi yn natblygiad unigolion medrus i ddiwallu 
anghenion yr 8 prosiect sy'n ffurfio'r Fargen Ddinesig. Nod y rhaglen yw datblygu cyfleoedd i 
unigolion ar draws y rhanbarth i wella eu sgiliau er mwyn bodloni'r gofynion "sgiliau newydd" a 
nodwyd drwy'r 8 prosiect  a datblygu llwybrau gyrfa disgyblion mewn ysgolion, addysg bellach ac 
addysg uwch er mwyn manteisio ar y cyfleoedd gwaith a grëwyd yn y rhanbarth drwy'r Fargen 
Ddinesig a buddsoddiadau eraill. Mae tystiolaeth glir bod angen am raglen sgiliau i leihau nifer y 
bobl ar draws y rhanbarth sydd â chymwysterau lefel is neu sydd heb gymwysterau, a bod angen 
datblygu cyfleoedd i bawb drwy weithio mewn partneriaeth â rhanddeiliaid i gynnig hyfforddiant 
sgiliau mewn meysydd allweddol. Nod y Rhaglen Sgiliau a Thalent yw cynnig hyfforddiant mewn 
sgiliau amrywiol i bawb drwy raglenni dwyieithog a thrwy ddefnyddio gwahanol ddulliau cyflawni. 
Bydd y rhaglen hefyd yn nodi anghenion o ran sgiliau yn y byd ar ôl Covid yr amlygir arnynt yn yr 

asesiad anghenion o ran sgiliau a fydd yn cael ei gynnal yng ngham datblygu cychwynnol y 

rhaglen.  

Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin yw'r Awdurdod arweiniol dynodedig ar gyfer y Rhaglen Sgiliau a Thalentau 

ac sy'n gyfrifol am ei gyflawni ar draws y rhanbarth. Mae’n ofynnol yn ôl elfennau llywodraethu'r 

Fargen Ddinesig i’r Achos Busnes hwn gael ei awdurdodi gan bob un o'r 4 Awdurdod Lleol 

rhanbarthol.  

Angen ymgynghori â'r Pwyllgor Craffu perthnasol         AMHERTHNASOL  

Angen i’r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad         OES  
Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad                           OES  

YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:-        
Y Cynghorydd Emlyn Dole, Arweinydd a'r Aelod o'r Bwrdd Gweithredol dros Ddatblygu Economaidd.  
Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: Prif Weithredwr 

Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth: Jason 
Jones 

Awdur yr Adroddiad:  
Jane Lewis 

Swyddi:  

Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth 
 
Rheolwr Partneriaeth 
Rhanbarthol 

 

jajones@sirgar.gov.uk  

Ffôn: 07789 371211  

jelewis@sirgar.gov.uk  

SIR CYNGOR 
 

14 GORFFENNAF 2021 
05.07.21 

Tudalen 19

Eitem Rhif  6.1



2 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

COUNTY COUNCIL 
14TH JULY 2021 

 

SKILLS AND TALENT PROGRAMME, SWANSEA BAY CITY DEAL 

 
1. BRIEF SUMMARY OF PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
The Swansea Bay City Deal is a £1.3bn investment in nine major projects across the Swansea 

Bay City Region which is made up of Carmarthenshire, Neath Port Talbot, Pembrokeshire and 

Swansea. The City Deal is being funded, subject to the approval of project business cases, by 

the UK Government, the Welsh Government, the public sector and the private sector. 

A business plan for the Skills and Talent Programme has been prepared and is enclosed as 
Appendix 1 for member’s consideration with a summary included in the body of this main 
report. 
 
The City Deal funding will fund a programme team that will develop a Skills Barometer for the 
region, the Barometer will identify the skills gaps that exist in the region and identify the new 
skills required to meet the existing and future needs of the 8 City Deal projects across the five 
key themes of Construction, Digital, Energy, Health and Wellbeing and Smart Manufacturing. 
 
The programme delivery will be across four phases: 

 Phase1 - mapping of the City Deal skills gaps and analysis of the training needs for the City 

Deal projects and the wider regional benefits. The needs analysis will consider the business 

needs; gender and equality imbalances and the needs and availability of the existing and 

future workforce through re-training and increasing awareness of opportunities.   

 Phase 2 - identify the skills gaps across the five key themes and work with stakeholders to 

develop pilot projects to deliver the skills training and upskilling identified. The Skills and 

Talent programme will not duplicate existing provision but will work with all training 

providers across the region to ensure that the courses delivered through the pilot projects 

will meet the future skills needs for the region and will provide a lasting legacy of skilled 

individuals across the Swansea Bay region.  

 Phase 3 - will work with schools across the region to highlight opportunities that will be 

generated through the City Deal projects and develop clear pathways to help young people 

make the right choices in schools.  The aim will be to increase the number of pupils 

following STEM subjects in Further and Higher Education. 

 Phase 4 – identify opportunities to create Centres of Excellence in the region that will be the 

legacy of the programme and establish the region as being the best place to learn specific 

sector skills.  

 

Tudalen 20



3 
 

The overarching aim of the programme is to strengthen collaboration and increase investment 
that will significantly boost the quality and quantity of trained and skilled individuals through the 
intervention of the programme.  The aim is to: 

 To directly deliver at least 2,200 additional skills and support the development of around 

14,000 individuals with higher level (between 2-8) skills within 10 years. 

 To create at least 3000 new apprenticeship opportunities, to include level 3 to Degree 

apprenticeships. 

 To create at least 2 Centres of Excellence within specific sectors to develop the region as 

being “the best” area for skills development.  

 To create a clear career pathway from school education through further and higher 

education in the key areas of digital; construction, energy; smart manufacturing and life-

science and wellbeing, achieved through engagement and development work with schools 

increasing the number of pupils following STEM subjects in FE and HE. 

 To deliver 20 new/updated course frameworks to ensure they meet the industry training 

needs for the future. 

The Skills and Talent programme is required because the region suffers from a series of 
overarching economic issues including low GVA, lack of well-paid job opportunities, skills 
shortages, high levels of economic inactivity and outward youth migration. The region is 
characterised by a higher proportion of individuals with no qualifications when compared with 
national averages. A high number of individuals in the region are currently in low skilled, low 
paid and unstable employment and subsequently a lower-than-average level of individuals are 
in higher paid, meaningful employment. The programme will help address the skills gaps by 
working with the City Deal projects and regional stakeholders to develop and deliver the skills 
needs for the future in the region. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES 

  

Tudalen 21



4 
 

 
IMPLICATIONS 

 
3. Finance   

The funding has been identified from the Swansea Bay City Deal programme. The total 
cost of the programme is £30 million; £10million City Deal Funding; £16m public sector 
match funding and £4m private sector match funding. 

The exact level of borrowing and the structure and terms of the borrowing are yet to be    
confirmed, although it will be calculated based on the amount required per relevant Local 
Authority and will be in line with the individual LA’s internal requirements.  This is being 
determined by the four Section 151 Officers of the four regional LAs.  All borrowing will be 
agreed based on the principles of the Prudential Code and Treasury Management Policy 
and Strategy for each Local Authority.  

4. ICT  

There will be a requirement for IT equipment and support for the programme team. 

5. Risk Management Issues 

All risks associated with undertaking the proposed actions and the risks associated with failing 
to undertake the proposed action have been identified and mitigated where possible within the 
Business Case and supporting Risk register. This has been done in line with City Deal 
governance and risk management procedures and will continue to be managed throughout 
the lifetime of the Programme.  
6. Staffing Implications 

The Business Case includes the recruitment of a small team of officers to deliver the 
Project and all associated workstreams. This team will be hosted by Carmarthenshire on 
behalf of the region and funded entirely by the City Deal budget for this project.   

All recommendations in relation to staffing matters comply with statutory employment 
legislation and the Authority’s employment policies. 

  
  

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with 
this report: 

Signed:    Jason Jones                                                             Head of Regeneration 
Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities 

Legal 

 
Finance 

 
ICT 

 
Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Staffing 
Implications 

 

Physical 
Assets  

 
NONE NONE YES  YES YES  YES NONE 

Tudalen 22



5 
 

CONSULTATIONS 
 

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed 
below 

Signed:       Jason Jones Head of Regeneration 

1. Scrutiny Committee n/a 

2.Local Member(s)  n/a 

3.Community / Town Council n/a 

4.Relevant Partners All Relevant regional partners and stakeholders have been and 
continue to be consulted with in relation to this Programme. The Regional Learning and 
Skills Partnership Board will be the programme Board with representation from all City Deal 
partners being sort for the Board and the Skills Solution Group (the group that will develop 
and review projects for skills solutions).  

5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations  n/a 

 

EXECUTIVE BOARD PORTFOLIO HOLDER(S) 
AWARE/CONSULTED  

 

YES  
Supportive of the programme. 

 
Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:  
THERE ARE NONE     

 
 

Tudalen 23



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



1 | P a g e  
 

 

  

 

 “Create Ambition and Raise Aspiration” 

Version 8 

 

Updated May 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Swansea Bay City Deal 

Skills and Talent Programme  

Business Case 

 

Tudalen 25



i | P a g e  
 

Executive Summary  

1 Vision 

To create new and sustainable opportunities that will generate prosperity for 
individuals and businesses in the Swansea Bay City Deal region. This will be achieved 
through the development of a pathway of skills for all and the pilot delivery of demand 
driven high level skills and upskilling opportunities across the five key sectors. 

2 Programme Introduction 

The Skills and Talent programme is a unique programme within the suite of 9 City Deal 
projects that will deliver a skills training solution offering the best value sustainable skills 
infrastructure to develop the future workforce for the region. The development of a 
comprehensive and forward-thinking skills programme that will deliver the right skills and 
competency across all the key themes of the City Deal programme is vital to the overall 
success of the City Deal Portfolio. 

The programme will align the available skills provision and identified skills gaps with the needs 
of Industry across the region as well as the 8 innovative projects that make up the City Deal 
supporting the growth of GVA, productivity and business investment in the region.   The 
delivery of an innovative skills training programme will be through initial scoping and 
publication of a skills barometer followed by the development of pilot projects to offer training 
solutions that will over the lifetime of the programme and beyond deliver a skilled workforce 
that will meet the requirements of the projects and the wider economy of the Swansea Bay 
region.   

The Regional Learning and Skills Partnership (RLSP), a partnership of Industry Employers 
and public sector training and education providers will be the lead body for the Skills and 
Talent programme.  The partnership was established in 2010 to identify skills and training 
needs of the region and has a long-standing experience of working with industry and training 
providers and reporting to Welsh Government the regional training needs. 

Proposal Description 

The development and delivery of an up-to-date training and skills programme through formal 
education; traineeships, apprenticeships and higher-level apprenticeships is critical to 
improving opportunities for lower skilled workers to upskill for labour market and to seek higher 
level outcomes. The programme will enable the support of employees already in the workplace 
to upskill/reskill to be developed to achieve the overall ambition and success of the Swansea 
Bay City Deal will be based on the ability of businesses in the region to compete with other 
areas in Wales and the UK.  To ensure that we achieve this success it is essential to have a 
highly skilled and productive workforce to enable the region to be connected and competitive. 
Through the funding support of the City Deal programme the RLSP will create a trained and 
talented workforce for the future within the Swansea Bay City Region working with 
stakeholders, employers and training providers.  The Skills and Talent programme will provide 
a private led business skills solution delivered through an integrated regional approach to 
delivering skills focusing on specific sector skills required in order to meet the demand of the 
Swansea Bay City Region City Deal and the five themes of ‘Digital, Construction, Health and 
Wellbeing, Energy and Smart Manufacturing all fused together to bring about Economic 
Acceleration in the region.  The programme will help open up new jobs to increase the number 
of people moving into work (including those who have been out of work over a long period of 
time) and reduce the number of people becoming NEET’s. 

Tudalen 26



ii | P a g e  
 

 

The Skills and Talent programme will: 

✓ To directly deliver at least 2,200 additional skills and support the development of around 

14,000 individuals with higher level (between 2-8) skills within 10 years. 

✓ To create at least 3000 new apprenticeship opportunities, to include level 3 to Degree 

apprenticeships. 

✓ To create at least 2 Centres of Excellence within specific sectors to develop the region 

as being “the best” area for skills development.  

✓ To create a clear career pathway from school education through further and higher 

education in the key areas of digital; construction, energy; smart manufacturing and life-

science and wellbeing, achieved through engagement and development work with 

schools increasing the number of pupils following the STEM subjects in FE and HE.. 

✓ To deliver 20 new/updated course frameworks to ensure they meet the industry training 

needs for the future. 

The skills and talent project will work with the eight projects that make up the City Deal as well 
as understanding the wider skills requirements across the region. 

Ec
o

n
o

m
ic

 A
cc

e
le

ra
ti

o
n

 

Swansea City 
& Waterfront 
Digital 
District 

To boost Swansea city centre’s economic well-being at the heart of the City 
Region’s economy, while retaining local tech, digital and entrepreneurial 
talent.  

Yr Egin To support and further develop the region’s creative industry sector and 
Welsh language culture. The two-phased programme will be located at the 
University of Wales Trinity Saint David campus in Carmarthen. 

Digital 
infrastructure 

To significantly improve digital connectivity throughout the City Region for 
the benefit of businesses and residents, also helping to attract inward 
investment.  

Li
fe

 S
ci

en
ce

 &
 W

el
l-

b
ei

n
g 

Life Science, 
Wellbeing & 
Sport 
Campuses 

To develop digital health and platform technologies and clinical innovation 
to help prevent ill health, develop better treatment and improve patient 
care. Advanced research and development facilities will be created, 
building on the success of the Institute of Life Sciences at Swansea 
University and expanding on regional expertise in sport and exercise 
science. This project will be located at Morriston Hospital and Swansea 
University’s Singleton Campus. 

Pentre Awel  
 

This development will include life sciences research and assisted living units 
on one site in Llanelli, alongside state-of-the-art leisure, well-being and 
business incubation facilities. The development will include a well-being 
skills centre and a clinical delivery centre. This project will benefit from and 
further develop regional expertise in life sciences, while providing training 
and high-value job opportunities for local people. 

En
er

gy
 

an
d

 
Sm

ar
t 

M
an

u
f

ac
tu

ri
n

g 

Homes as 
Power 
Stations 

A co-ordinated project across the City Region, Homes as Power Stations will 
see energy-saving technologies introduced to thousands of homes as part 
of a smart, low carbon new-build and retrofit programme. 

Tudalen 27



iii | P a g e  
 

Pembroke 
Dock Marine 

This project will place Pembrokeshire at the heart of UK and global zero 
carbon, marine and offshore energy innovation, building on the expertise 
of a marine energy cluster in Pembroke Dock. Facilities will be provided for 
marine energy innovators to build, test and commercialise their 
technologies. 

Supporting 
Innovation & 
Low Carbon 
Growth 

This project will help further decarbonise the Neath Port Talbot economy, 
while safeguarding the regional steel industry and providing high-quality 
space for the innovation, ICT and research and development sectors.  

 

Key areas of Influence 

The programme will seek to influence the following areas; 

• Advanced skills: Leading innovation across the City Deal projects.  The 
advanced skills offer will support the new and emerging technologies contained 
within the constituent proposal bids.  

 

• Under/Postgraduate Expansion: Providing increased productivity through 
greater graduate skills application across the Four Internet themes.  

 

• Further/Higher Education: Delivering skills for new roles within the theme 
sectors, through Foundation Degree programmes, Apprenticeships and Higher 
Apprenticeships to include Degree Apprenticeships.  Delivering innovation will 
include new blended learning approaches. 

   

• Continuing Professional Development: Ensuring the region’s skills across the 
themes remains at the forefront of professional practice. This is to include 
ensuring that older workers currently operating within the economy have the 
skills they desire and require to progress and diversify.  

 

• Apprenticeships: Support the integration of Apprenticeship opportunities 
throughout the Skills and Talented Future Generations project. 

 

• Skills facilities development: Creation of sector-specific facilities to support the 
development of new emerging skills/roles and the creation of a step-change in 
capacity across the region. 

 

• Schools engagement to influence curriculum development and delivery to 
ensure the adequate supply of young people with the right skill sets. 

 

• Increased engagement with current channels and programmes delivering 
careers advice to enthuse young people and influence career decisions at the 
right time and in the right way to retain the talent of young people in the region 
and reduce the impact of “brain drain” on the region. 

 

• Engagement with people of all ages who are not currently in Education, 
Employment or Training (NEETS) ensuring that there are opportunities for all. 

The Skills and Talent Programme will be a cross cutting theme across all other 8 projects, the 
programme has already established a connection with all project leads and has strong and 
developing links through to the private sector via sector specific cluster groups. Existing 
consultation mechanisms will therefore identify the skills required and the relevant providers 
to deliver those skills solutions.  

Tudalen 28



iv | P a g e  
 

The skills developed through the Skills and Talent programme will not only help fill the new 
roles directly created through the City Deal Themes, but also support a broader uplift in 
productivity (GVA) across the sectors and wider regional economy.  Given the varying lead 
times of each project a timescale of between five and fifteen years is proposed in the first 
instance to achieve the aims which will be monitored through the incremental measurement 
of GVA.  The RLSP has a tried and tested methodology for identifying skills needs which will 
be built on and honed to identify the skills solutions for each of the projects within the proposal.  

Individual Project Skills needs will be identified and quantified through the following process;  

• Existing Regional Skills Identified through a desk-based review of relevant labour 
market information, 

• City Deal Project Skills identified through continued engagement with the individual 
projects, 

• Skills Gap Analysis undertaken and Skills Barometer published, 

• Skills Requirement solutions identified, and projects developed 

• Career Pathways developed with schools and colleges 

• Centres of Excellence identified as a legacy for the programme 
 

Synergies  

The unique nature of the projects is a key driver of the City Deal and this allows for each to 

work independently with the success of one not completely dependent on the success of 

another. In the simplest sense, whilst no project is directly reliant on another, there are 

instances whereby projects will achieve more, quicker and easier if other projects are 

working to their peak also, these instances are referred to as interdependencies. 

Undeniably, underpinning each of the projects is skills and talent requirements and the 

success of all projects will be determined through having a skilled workforce both now and 

for the future. 

A further key determinant of success is the preparedness and capability of future 

generations to capitalise on the opportunities presented by the proposal. The Initiative 

recognises that it is essential that younger generations are well-informed, it is therefore the 

intention of the programme to foster the themes of entrepreneurship and digital innovation 

through closer engagement with schools and the further and higher education institutions. 

The further and higher education institutions operating within the region already have an 

exemplary offer of provision within these areas. Aligning their offer more closely to the 

specific needs of the City Deal and identifying where there are opportunities for multi-

disciplinary teaching will create skilled individuals with the transferable skills needed to work 

across the City Deal. 

3 Overview of Strategic Case  

The Skills and Talent programme will align with the 4 key strands of the City Deal i.e 
Economic Acceleration; Energy; Life Science and Well-being and Smart Manufacturing.  The 
programme will develop a sustainable pipeline of individuals to support the growth of the  
themes and support the future competitiveness of the region and maximise the potential of 
City Region partner organisations through the existing RLSP structure. 

The programme aligns with the requirements and aims of the following National, Regional and 
local strategies.  

• UK Industrial Strategy, 

• Welsh Government Prosperity for All: the national strategy, 

• Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act, 

Tudalen 29



v | P a g e  
 

• International Strategy for Wales 

• 21st Century Higher Education Strategy for Wales 

• Education in Wales Strategy – our National Mission 

• Youth Engagement and Progression Framework Strategy 

• Tackling Poverty Plan 

• Swansea Bay City Region Economic Regeneration Strategy 

• Framework for Regional Investment in Wales. 

• Regional Employment and Skills Plan 

• Rural Vision for Wales – Thriving Communities for the future 
 

 

 

Case for Change 

The Swansea Bay City Deal region suffers from a series of overarching economic issues 

including low GVA, lack of well-paid job opportunities, skills shortage, high levels of 

economic inactivity and outward youth migration. The region is characterised by a higher 

proportion of individuals with no qualifications when compared with national averages. A 

high number of individuals in the region are currently in low skilled, low paid and unstable 

employment and subsequently a lower-than-average level of individuals are in higher paid, 

meaningful employment. The programme will help address the skills gaps by working with 

the City Deal projects and regional stakeholders to develop and deliver the skills needs for 

the future in the region. 

Objectives & Benefits 

The overarching objective of the Skills and Talent programme is to strengthen collaboration 

and increase investment that will significantly boost the quality and quantity of trained and 

skilled individuals through the intervention of the programme.  The aim is to: 

 

Tudalen 30



vi | P a g e  
 

✓ To directly deliver at least 2,200 additional skills and support the development of around 

14,000 individuals with higher level (between 2-8) skills within 10 years. 

✓ To create at least 3000 new apprenticeship opportunities, to include level 3 to Degree 

apprenticeships. 

✓ To create at least 2 Centres of Excellence within specific sectors to develop the region 

as being “the best” area for skills development.  

✓ To create a clear career pathway from school education through further and higher 

education in the key areas of digital; construction, energy; smart manufacturing and life-

science and wellbeing, achieved through engagement and development work with 

schools increasing the number of pupils following the STEM subjects in FE and HE. 

✓ To deliver 20 new/updated course frameworks to ensure they meet the industry training 

needs for the future. 

These investment objectives are SMART (specific, measurable, achievable, realistic and 

time bound) and will be delivered with a £30 million investment from: 

  

City Deal   Public Sector   Private Sector 

                £10m         £16m              £4m 

Existing Arrangements and Business Need 

The Strategic Case outlines the existing arrangements for skills training provision and 
identifies the business need that the Programme will respond to. This is summarised in the 
table below: 

Theme Existing Arrangements Investment objective Business Needs 

E
c

o
n

o
m

ic
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 

Fewer people with higher 
level qualifications.  

14000 individuals with 
increased level of skills 
(2,000 direct and 12,000 
indirect)  

To increase the number of 
people with higher level 
qualifications to support the 
SDCB projects 

The region has the highest 
number of people in Wales 
with low or no qualifications 

Create at least 3000 new 
apprenticeship 
opportunities to include 
level 3 to degree 

Develop a programme of 
opportunities to upskill the 
existing workforce. 
Attain 100% completion of 
the apprenticeship 
programme and provide the 
employability support to 
individuals to move into full 
time employment. 

High number of individuals in 
low paid employment 

Create opportunities to 
support people into work. 

Increase opportunities 
through the improvement of 
skills levels to increase the 
number of people in higher 
paid jobs 

The jobs in the region have 
a strong reliance on the 
foundational economy or 
public sector. 

Create clear pathways 
within schools focusing on 
the key themes within the 
City Deal portfolio 

Developing the career 
pathways throughout the 
school years to showcase 
the opportunities will 
highlight the new 
opportunities. 

 
Increased uptake of 
school pupils progressing 
into STEM subjects at 
FE/HE 

High number of 
economically inactive people 

Upskill and support 
people into employment 
by creating opportunities 

Working with employability 
programmes to develop the 
opportunities to upskill and 

Tudalen 31



vii | P a g e  
 

through project 
community benefits 
programme. 

gain qualifications into 
meaningful jobs. 

Course frameworks do not 
meet future skills needs and 
lecturers/teachers are not 
fully aware of the new ways 
of working within industry. 

Invest in course 
frameworks to ensure 
they meet the needs of 
the projects and 
employers in the region 
and provide 
upskilling/CPD for 
teachers and lecturers 

Work required to understand 
the gaps and work with 
stakeholders and employers 
to bridge the gap and 
develop new qualifications. 
Identify what upskilling is 
required. 

Delivery of 20 
new/updated course 
frameworks to meet 
industry training needs. 

The area is not known for 
the delivery of any specific 
specialist skills 

Establish at least two 
Centres of Excellence 
based on prioritised 
sectors. 

Centres of Excellence in 
skills required for the City 
Deal projects that are new 
and emerging. 

Ageing Population 
The ageing population is an 
issue for the region if they 
do not work or will not upskill 
to work within the new and 
emerging sectors. 

Deliver pilot programmes 
of new courses to upskill 
existing workforce. 

Map out opportunities for 
key employees to upskill 
through a faster than normal 
process to enable 
businesses to have the 
necessary skills immediately 

 

Potential Scope 

The mapping of the City Deal skills gaps and analysis of the training requirements will consider 
the business needs; gender and equality imbalances of people taking up the courses; and the 
needs and availability of the existing and future workforce through re-training and increasing 
awareness of opportunities. The aim of the Skills and Talent programme is to work within 5-
year time line periods which would account for the changing skills demands and enable the 
necessary skills to be developed as quickly as possible to meet the project needs.  There will 
be a requirement to upskill the existing workforce in many areas including upskilling the 
teachers/lecturers who deliver the training, and this work will be a priority within the first 3 
years of the programme.  At the same time the necessary frameworks for FE/HE and 
apprenticeships in the relevant areas will be developed and pilot projects will be implemented 
to deliver the training. 

Work will progress with primary and secondary schools in the region to highlight opportunities 
available through the City Deal projects and develop clear pathways to help young people 
make the right choices in schools.  

The table below highlights some of the potential key skills requirements already identified for 
each of the project business cases in the City Deal portfolio, this document is continually being 
added to as skills are identified.   

Sector Skills 

Digital Basic IT skills 
Cyber 
Artificial Intelligence 
Digital Forensics 
Machine Learning 
Robotics 
Cloud technology 
Creative Industries 
 

Construction 
 

SMART Housing 
Solar, heat pumps, Smart controls, mechanical and electrical systems 

Tudalen 32



viii | P a g e  
 

Electrical Vehicles 
Retrofit 

Energy Engineering – specialised for offshore wind, tidal energy, marine energy 

Health and 
Wellbeing 

Digital technology in health care 
Digital assimilation 
Connectivity with community support workers 
Digital consultation from hospitals and GP surgeries. 

Smart 
manufacturing 

New ways of manufacturing utilising robotics and new Digital technologies. 

 

Key Benefits, Risks, Dependencies, Constraints 

Benefits 

• Increased number of higher skilled 
individuals for jobs created through City Deal 
projects 

• Opportunities for all to achieve a qualification 
and skills  

• Increased number of apprenticeships / 
higher apprenticeships offered through the 
construction phase of the projects 

• Centres that specialise in the development 
skills within a particular sector(s). 

• Inspiring the next generation to take the 

correct path in their career  

• Developing the pathway for children from 
primary school through to secondary school 
through the introduction of new vocational 
training opportunities  

• Retention of skilled individuals to work 
within the City Deal projects. 

• Developing new and updating existing 
frameworks to meet the needs of the 
projects and employers across the region. 

 

Risks 

• City Deal funding not secured –programme 
will not be implemented. 

• Programme timescale slippage 

• Lack of resources /Insufficient capacity to 
manage the programme and to deliver the 
stated activities and results 

• Organisational and financial risks 
associated with taking on this project 

• The programme does not secure sufficient 
partner/stakeholder buy in. 

• Failure to increase the number of skilled 
individuals. 

• Lead times in the development of a new 
skills offer in the region. 

• Failure to engage with training providers to 
deliver the necessary skills development 
 

Constraints 

• UK and Welsh Government Policy in relation 
to training and education. 

• Capacity within the FE and HE sector to 
implement the changes within their delivery 
mechanism.   

• Funding constraints from the public and 
private sector 

• Ensuring that the capacity is present to meet 
the aims and objectives of the Programme.  

• Covid-19 restrictions on the delivery of 
training and education. 

 

Dependencies 

• Close alignment of the Programme with the 
delivery of the City Deal projects 

• Continual review of skills needs for the 
Region and work with partners and 
employers to understand changing demands 

• Continuation funding from Welsh 
Government for new frameworks 

• Funding contributions from public and private 
sector 

• Training providers delivering the necessary 
skills provision 
 

 

4 Overview of Economic Case  

The Economic case has been undertaken in accordance with the with the HM Treasury’s 
Green Book guidelines.  The section sets out the options and analysis of those options, the 
identification of the long and short list and the appraisal of the short list through economic 
assessment. 

 

Tudalen 33



ix | P a g e  
 

 

 

Critical Success Factors 

The Critical Success factors of the Skills and Talent Programme were determined to be: 

 

Long List and Short List 

The following long list of options were identified for the scope of the programme and agreed 

by the Senior Project Team, 

1. Do Nothing – City Deal skills needs supported only by existing programmes/providers   
2. Do Minimum – create a dedicated Skills Programme team to enhance employers and 

schools engagement with City Deal Projects at an estimated cost of £1M 
3. City Deal Skills Fund – create Skills Fund from City Deal resources available to City 

Deal projects only at an estimated cost of £8M 
4. Supported City Deal Skills Fund - create a dedicated Skills Programme team to 

enhance employers and school’s engagement and manage awards from the City Deal 
Skills Fund to City Deal Projects only at an estimated cost of £10M  

5. Targeted Skills Delivery – create RLSP project team and leverage public/private funding 
to address all City Deal Projects’ skills gaps at an estimated cost of £30M 

6. City Deal Ambitious - deliver a full suite of skills training to meet regional needs of all 
four themes of the City Deal at an estimated cost of £153M 

7. Do Maximum – deliver a full suite of skills training to redress the entire regional skills 
gap at an estimated cost of £518M 

 

 

Critical Success Factors 

Strategic Fit • Strategically aligned to the Swansea Bay City Deal 
• Strategically aligned to the Welsh Government Education and 

Skills strategy and Wellbeing and Future Generations Act. 
• Delivers the future skills requirements for the region and the skills 

needs of the 8 projects that make up the City Deal. 
• Increasing the number of people with higher level qualifications  
• Retraining people in the region to give the opportunities to all. 
• Developing resilient learners with a life-long attitude to learning. 

Value for 
Money 

• Reduce the duplication that could occur if all 8 City Deal projects 
managed their own skills programme by bringing together the 
skills requirements across the region. 

• The programme offers Value for money and avoids duplication 
• Achieve a viable cost benefit ratio compared to other options. 

Supplier 
capacity 
and 
capability 

• Training providers from across the region are keen to work 
together to achieve the aims of the programme. 

• Reduce costs by delivering skills in a way that meet the needs of 
all employers. 

Affordability • Demonstrate the affordability of the Programme within the 
defined funding arrangements from the City Deal, Public and 
Private Sector. 

Achievability • Delivery of option is achievable within the timescale, available 
funding and capacity. 

Tudalen 34



x | P a g e  
 

Short List Options Appraisal 

Following a series of appraisals and management discussions, the following short list of 

options emerged, 

Option 1 – Do Nothing 

To continue to deliver training through existing methods, with no additional funding. The FE, 

HE and training providers would offer the existing frameworks with no update or development 

of new opportunities.  The RLSP would continue to gather data and do a minimal amount of 

work with schools. 

Option 2 – Supported City Deal Skills Fund 

A Skills Programme team would be recruited to enhance the employer and project 

engagement to identify the skills gaps and work with schools to share the opportunities that 

would be created through the City Deal projects.  Centres of Excellence would also be 

supported for each of the Key Themes. The eight Projects of the City Deal would deliver their 

own training solutions independently, bidding into the City Deal Skills Fund as required. 

Option 3 – Targeted Skills Delivery 

The RLSP would explore the skills needs of all 8 projects and identify the gaps. A dedicated 

Skills Programme team would be appointed who would work with the City Deal Project leads, 

the wider employers and the training leads to develop an action plan to deliver the appropriate 

solutions to the skills gaps identified and using City Deal Programme funds to leverage public 

and private sector match funding/contributions in kind. The solutions would be delivered as 

Skills Programme projects which would be developed by the Skills Programme team with key 

partners. The Programme team would also work with schools and all education and training 

providers to co-ordinate the future opportunities from the City Deal projects and created a 

supported pathway with schools to higher skills training. Centres of Excellence would also be 

supported for each of the Key Themes. 

Option 4 – City Deal Ambitious 

This option would allow for the delivery of a full suite of skills training to meet the needs of all 

industry sectors within the four themes of the City Deal – Energy, Digital, Smart Manufacturing 

and Life Science. The RLSP would explore the skills needs of all these sectors and identify 

the gaps. An enhanced dedicated Skills Programme team would be appointed who would work 

with public bodies, wider employers and the training leads to develop an action plan to deliver 

the appropriate solutions to the skills gaps identified and using City Deal Programme funds to 

leverage public and private sector match funding. The Skills Programme team would work 

intensively with all schools, colleges and universities to raise the awareness of and develop 

new skills programmes to address the sector gaps. 

Key Findings 

The economic appraisals are as follows,  

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 35



xi | P a g e  
 

Net Present Cost and Benefits Findings (All Public Sector Costs but excludes private 

sector costs/investment) 

 Undiscounted Value 

(£) 

Net Present Value 

 (£) 

Option 1 – Do Nothing  

Additional Income Generated - - 

Less City Deal funding                      -                      - 

Less  Other Public Sector     

Funding 

                     -                      - 

Total  -  - 

Option 2 – Supported City Deal Skills Fund 

Additional Income Generated £16,537,040 £11,932,301 

Less  City Deal Funding £10,000,000 £9,812,949 

Less  Other Public Sector     

Funding 

- - 

Total £5,537,040 £2,119,352 

Option 3 – Targeted Skills Delivery 

Additional Income Generated £49,603,320 £35,788,186 

Less City Deal funding £10,000,000 £9,812,949 

Less  Other Public Sector     

Funding 

£16,000,000 £15,700,965 

Total £23,603,320 £10,274,272 

Option 4 – City Deal Ambitious 

Additional Income Generated £292,948,032 £211,535,059 

Less City Deal funding   £57,552,000   £56,482,633 

Less  Other Public Sector     

Funding 

 £92,083,200             £90,372,214 

Total £143,312,832   £64,680,212 

Net Present Cost/Benefit Findings 

Preferred Option 

The results of the investment appraisal are summarised in the Table below,  

Evaluation Results Option 1: Do 

Nothing 
Option 2: 

Supported City 

Deal Skills 

Fund 

Option 3: 

Targeted Skills 

Delivery 

Option 4: City 

Deal 

Ambitious 

Economic appraisals 4 3 2 1 

Tudalen 36



xii | P a g e  
 

Benefits appraisal 4 3 2 1 

Risk appraisal 4 2 1 3 

Overall Ranking 4 3 1 2 

Short-list Options Evaluation Results 

On the basis of this analysis, the preferred option is Option 3 – Targeted Skills Delivery.  

Whilst Option 4 – City Deal Ambitious scored 1st in the Economic and Benefits Appraisals, this 
is purely a reflection of the much higher costs and scale of the skills delivery projected. The 
level of funding for a Programme of this scale not currently available and there would be very 
significant delivery risks due to the enormous increase in regional capacity and capability that 
would be required. Option 3 can be delivered within identified costs at a low-risk exposure and 
can deliver the prime objective of ensuring sufficient new and additional skills can be provided 
to meet the needs of the other City Deal Projects. This has therefore been selected as the 
Preferred Option going forward.       

Summary Table of Economic Appraisals 

The results of the economic appraisals above are summarised in the Table below.  

Summary of Economic 

Appraisal 

Option 1: Do 

Nothing 

Option 2: 

Supported City 

Deal Skills 

Fund 

Option 3: 

Targeted 

Skills Delivery 

Option 4: City 

Deal Ambitious 

Net Present Value 

(after allowing for 

private sector 

investment) 

- £2,119,352 £6,348,476 £60,754,534 

Public Sector Cost - £9,812,949    £25,516,897   £146,854,847 

Appropriate BCR -          1.216               1.403                1.440 

Significant un-

monetizable 

costs/benefits 

-            N/A                 N/A                    N/A 

Significant 

unquantifiable factors 

-             N/A                 N/A                   N/A 

Risk costs (increased 

education delivery 

costs) - residual 

optimism bias 

(undiscounted) 

-   £1,000,000 

  

    £3,000,000     £15,363,520 

Switching Values 

(preferred option 

only) 

    -13.33%   

Tudalen 37



xiii | P a g e  
 

Time Horizon and 

Reason 

15 Year Programme Period in accordance with City Deal requirements 

 

5.1 Overview of Commercial Case 

This programme does not contain a high value capital-cost based construction project, 

instead it will deliver several lower cost revenue interventions at project level to achieve the 

programme investment objectives and outcomes. 

The Skills and Talent programme will manage this through delivery of a programme fund 
disseminated to pilot projects following approval by the Programme Board. It is anticipated 
that pilot projects will be led and procured by a third-party stakeholder organisation. 

The Skills and Talent programme is led by Carmarthenshire County Council on behalf of the 

four regional Local Authorities, two universities and two health boards that make up the 

Swansea Bay City Deal primary stakeholders. Carmarthenshire County Council must ensure 

that procurements fully comply with:  

• Welsh National Rules on the Eligibility of Expenditure – public contracts 

regulations 2015 

• Welsh Procurement Policy Statement 2019 

• State Aid Rules 

• Procurement Legislation 

• Community Benefits Principles  

• Any other Carmarthenshire County Council, UK and Welsh Assembly Government 

rules and regulations which apply to procurement 

• Procurements will also align to the procurement principles of the City Deal 

Service Requirements and Outputs 

The initial skills gaps analysis will be undertaken by the programme team and the Skills 
Solution Group to understand what new/updated skills and apprenticeship frameworks are 
required to inform development of the pilot projects which will be delivered in conjunction with 
stakeholders. An action plan will be developed outlining the gaps and proposals and 
recommendations.  The assistance of consultants / specialist advisers to help with the 
research may be required and if so, will be procured. 

6 Overview of Financial Case  

The Skills and Talent programme is a revenue funding amounting to a total of £30 million over 
5 years, £10 million City Deal; £16 Million public sector and £4 million private sector funding. 

 

The funding of this Programme will be operated through Carmarthenshire County Council as 
the accountable financial body and managed on a day-to-day basis through the Regional 
Learning and Skills Partnership Board.   

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26

(£m) (£m) (£m) (£m) (£m) (£m) (£m)

Capital -£               -£              -£              -£                    -£                    -£                    -£                    

Revenue 24,800£         2,920,000£ 5,000,000£ 7,500,000£        7,500,000£        7,055,200£        30,000,000£     

Total 24,800£         2,920,000£ 5,000,000£ 7,500,000£        7,500,000£        7,055,200£        30,000,000£     

Funding 

Swansea Bay City Deal Grant 24,800£         1,170,000£ 1,500,000£ 2,500,000£        2,500,000£        2,305,200£        10,000,000£     

Public Sector -£               1,250,000£ 3,000,000£ 4,000,000£        4,000,000£        3,750,000£        16,000,000£     

Private Sector -£               500,000£     500,000£     1,000,000£        1,000,000£        1,000,000£        4,000,000£        

Total 24,800£         2,920,000£ 5,000,000£ 7,500,000£        7,500,000£        7,055,200£        30,000,000£     

Expenditure 
Total

Tudalen 38



xiv | P a g e  
 

This Programme is a desk-based research project to identify the skills gaps and work with the 
project leads; training providers and Welsh Government to provide the most appropriate 
training in the region to support the development of talented individuals to take up the roles. 

Following the initial research there will be a requirement to develop specific projects that will 

include courses to meet the Industry needs; update course content where required and re-

accredit those courses.  The projects will also include pilot initiatives to upskill the workforce 

in specific areas, the work with schools will also be supported through this Programme to 

provide more detailed information about the opportunities that will be developed through the 

City Deal and the courses available to them within the region 

7 Overview of Management Case   

The management case demonstrates the achievability of the scheme and how the programme 
will be operated and managed by the Regional Learning and Skills Partnership (RLSP) offering 
value for money by identifying the skills needs of all 8 projects and delivering through projects 
developed with key stakeholders across the region without causing duplication. 

The Skills and Talent programme will meet strict governance portfolio hierarchy as detailed in 
the table below; 

 

 

The Regional Learning and Skills Partnership Board for South West Wales has been in 
existence since 2010, and since 2015 has been led by the private sector and incorporating 
representatives of further and higher education, training providers and education together with 
key stakeholders in employability and training in the region.  The partnership is 
transformational bringing business leaders, education and regeneration partners together to 
help provide a better future for learners and potential learners and people wishing to re-train 
across the region. The RLSP Board provides an oversight and ‘on the ground’ leadership in 
relation to the skills requirements and demands of industry. The Board is supported by nine 
Industry cluster groups and the members of each cluster group provide valuable insight into 
the needs of the industry. The RLSP will lead the Skills and Talent programme within the work 
of the existing partnership board to become the programme board.  

Tudalen 39



xv | P a g e  
 

 . 

 

 

The RLSP will ensure the programme is managed effectively, to approved timescales and in 
line with the governance structure of partner organisations. The RLSP has overall 
responsibility for decisions pertaining to the strategic direction, the approval of projects and 
where appropriate, the operational delivery of the scheme.  

The RLSP Board will provide leadership and drive forward the vision of the Skills and Talent 
programme as set out in the Business Case.  The remit of the Board will be delivered under 
the regional governance framework as set out within the City Deal portfolio business case. 
The Board will have responsibilities which will include but not exclusive to:  

• Securing funding and approval for the programme 

• Updating the business case when required in accordance with the requirements 
and expectations of the Welsh and UK Governments and submitting this via the 
agreed governance requirements of the SBCD. 

• Project level approval of all major plans and seeking approval through the 
agreed governance arrangements. 

• Provide resource required to enable the programme delivery 

• Approval of all deviations from agreed tolerances in line with agreed change 
management arrangements. 

• Arbitration on any conflicts that cannot be resolved at Project level and 
escalation through the appropriate channels as required. 

• Reviewing and reporting the programme benefits (outcomes and impacts) and 
whether they are still achievable. 

• Management of major risks and issues at programme level and coordination and 
escalation of risks and issues that are likely to have an impact on other areas of 
the Portfolio. 

• Initial approval and sign off of key project documentation and coordination of 
approval of key documentation from wider stakeholders as required. 

• Approving and funding key changes 

• Guaranteeing equity and catering for the needs of all partners and stakeholders.  

• Ensuring longevity of initiatives and programmes created as a result of the Skills 
and Talent programme. 

 

Programme Team 

The day-to-day operation of the programme will be delivered by the programme 
management team who will have responsibility for the delivery of the programme working to 
and alongside the Regional Learning and Skills Partnership Board. 

 

Tudalen 40



xvi | P a g e  
 

Monitoring and Evaluation. 

The City Deal portfolio finances will be monitored through the Programme Board and Joint 

Committee, with the Economic Strategy Board also making recommendations on possible 

additional funding opportunities or alternative portfolio expenditure. Regular reports will also 

be presented by the Accountable Body to the regional Local Authority Directors of Finance 

and Regional Section 151 Officer working group. This working group will, in collaboration with 

the Welsh Government and the SBCD PMO, agree the financial monitoring process which will 

be: 

o In line with overall reporting processes for the City Deal  

o Based on best practice principles and guidance on Programme monitoring 

contained within the Green Book 

Programme evaluation 

A review of the programme will be conducted at the end of the programme to evaluate its’ 
effectiveness. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 41



xvii | P a g e  
 

Contents 

1 Programme Overview 

2 The Strategic Case 

Vision 

Background 
Strategic Context 

• Organisational overview 

• Policy and strategic alignment 

• Strategy and Programme Investment Aims 

• Case for Change 

• Objectives and Benefits 

• Existing arrangements 

• Business needs  

• Potential scope and key project requirements 

• Main benefits criteria 

• Scope for Investment 

• Risks and counter measures  

• Constraints 

• Dependencies. 
 
2:  The Economic Case 

• Overview 

• Evidence of Demand for the Programme 

• Investment Objectives 

• Critical Success factors 

• Long-listed options 

• Short-listed options appraisal 

• Economic appraisal 

• Qualitative Benefits appraisal 

• Analysis of Key results 
-Risk appraisal 
- Preferred option 
- Sensitivity analysis 
-  Preferred option. 
 

3 The Commercial Case 

• Introduction 

• Procurement strategy and route 

• Procurement Plan and proposed implementation timescale  

• Risk Allocation 

• Service Requirements and Outputs 

• Payment mechanisms and key contractual arrangements 

• Accountancy Treatment 

• Personnel Implications 
 

 

Tudalen 42



xviii | P a g e  
 

4: The Financial Case 

• Introduction 

• Financial Risk Management & Assurance 

• Investment Summary  

• Income and Expenditure summary 

• Investment Breakdown  

• Monitoring and Evaluation 

• Accounting Treatment of Programme Transactions 

• Added Value 

• Sustainability 

• Constraints  

• Dependencies  
 

5: The Management Case 

• Introduction 

• Governance and Delivery Structures 

• Stakeholders 

• Use of Special Advisors 

• Monitoring and Evaluation for Performance and Benefits 

• Benefits Realisation 

• Risk Management Strategy 

• Communication plan 

• Contingency 

• Post Funding/Continuation Strategy 
 

Appendices (separate documents) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 43



xix | P a g e  
 

Appendices 

The Strategic Case  

A. Skills and 
Talent Interaction 
with the City Deal 
projects 

Appendix A Skills 

and Talent interaction.pdf
 

B Project 
Interaction 

Appendix B Project 

Interaction.pdf
 

C. RLSP Board 
members 

Appendix C RLSP 

Board membership.pdf
 

C Strategy and 
Programme 
Investment Aims 
– The four themes 
of the City Deal. 

Appendix B 

Strategic and  Programme Investment.pdf
 

D Cluster Group 
Membership 

Appendix D List of 

cluster group members.pdf
 

E Course Mapping 
– Swansea Bay 
Region FE/HE and 
apprenticeships. 

https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1225384/cd_pm_v2.xlsx 

F Risk Register 

Appendix F Skills 

and Talent Risk Register April 2021.pdf
 

Economic Case  

G Cost Benefit 
Analysis  

Appendix%20G%20

CBA.xlsx
 

The Commercial 
Case 

 

H City Deal 
Procurement 
Principles Appendix H The 

SBCD Procurement Principles V2.pdf
 

I  Programme 
Implementation 
Plan Appendix I 

Programme Implementation Plan.pdf
 

Financial Case  

J and J(1) Funding 
profile for the 
Programme Appendix%20J.xlsx appendix%20J(1).xls

x
 

The Management 
Case 

 

Tudalen 44

https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1225384/cd_pm_v2.xlsx


xx | P a g e  
 

K Summary of 
Engagement 

Appendix K.pdf

 
L RLSP 
Programme Board 
Terms of 
Reference 

Appendix L RLSP 

Board Terms of Reference April 2021.pdf
 

M Terms of 
Reference of Skills 
Solution Group Appendix%20M%20

%20Skills%20Solution%20Group.docx
 

N  IAAP 

Appendix%20N%20

Skills%20&%20Talent%20May%202021.xlsx
 

O  Benefits 
Register 

Appendix%20O%20

Skills%20and%20Talent%20Benefits%20register%20may%2021.xlsx
 

Tudalen 45



1 | P a g e  
 

 

1. OVERVIEW OF THE SKILLS AND TALENT PROGRAMME 

1.1 Introduction  

The Swansea Bay City Deal (SBCD) Skills and Talent Programme (2021- 2033) will deliver 

an integrated regional approach to delivering skills to meet the demand of the Swansea Bay 

City Deal projects alongside with the wider skills needs of the region.  The Programme 

Business Case details how the funding from the City Deal, regional collaboration and 

prioritisation will enhance and develop the regional skills needed to meet future demands of 

industry and to remain nationally competitive, and in doing so, will attract and grow sustainable 

regional investment from local, national and international companies. Skills development will 

support the overarching aims for of the SBCD Portfolio, which is growth in Gross Value Added, 

jobs and private investment.   

The Skills and Talent programme is integral part of the SBCD portfolio, which consists of eight 

further headline projects and programmes. Given that people are an organisations greatest 

asset, skills and talent development will provide businesses and people with employment 

opportunities to better themselves, their companies and the region’s economic prosperity.  

The success of the SBCD and its associated projects and programmes is dependent 

on the Skills and Talent programme.  

The Business case is aligned to the HM Treasury Green Book and Better Business Case 

guidance to appraise the Skills and Talent programme. The business case was also developed 

in consultation with the SBCD project leads, industry leaders; Higher and Further Education 

(HE and FE) institutions, training providers and head teachers of primary and secondary 

schools across the region. 

1.2 The need for intervention 

The Swansea Bay City Region suffers from a series of overarching economic issues, including 

low GVA, lack of well-paid job opportunities, skills shortages, high level of economic inactivity 

and outward youth migration.  The region also has a higher proportion of individuals with no 

qualifications as well as lower than average number of individuals possessing higher 

qualifications. The RLSP has been working with training providers and employers across the 

region on the development and implementation of the annual Employment and Skills plan 

since 2017, such plans have influenced the Welsh Government funding into FE and 

Apprenticeship training to meet the needs of the priority economic sectors and the employers 

in the region.  The RLSP was also instrumental in the preparation of the skills needs 
assessment undertaken for the proposed Tidal Lagoon project in Swansea in 2016.  During 
2020/2021 the RLSP has been working with employers to understand the impact of Covid-19 
on the specific industry sectors and identify new skills requirements that have arisen as a 
result of the pandemic, all of this information has been collated into bi-monthly reports to Welsh 
Government and has resulted in the development of new courses through the Personal 
Learning Accounts and through the Apprenticeship programme. 

1.3 Aims of the Skills and Talent Programme 

The Skills and Talent programme aims to work with regional stakeholders to address many of 

the challenges and issues facing young people, adults already employed and businesses to 

upskill and retain talent in the region. Specifically, the programme aims to deliver the following 

Tudalen 46



2 | P a g e  
 

investment objectives and benefits over the next 10 years, based on sectors including digital, 

energy, smart manufacturing, construction and life-sciences and wellbeing: 

✓ To directly deliver at least 2,200 additional skills and support the development of around 

14,000 individuals with higher level (between 2-8) skills within 10 years. 

✓ To create at least 3000 new apprenticeship opportunities, to include level 3 to Degree 

apprenticeships. 

✓ To create at least 2 Centres of Excellence within specific sectors to develop the region 

as being “the best” area for skills development.  

✓ To create a clear career pathway from school education through further and higher 

education in the key areas of digital; construction, energy; smart manufacturing and life-

science and wellbeing, achieved through engagement and development work with 

schools increasing the number of pupils following the STEM subjects in FE and HE.. 

✓ To deliver 20 new/updated course frameworks to ensure they meet the industry training 

needs for the future. 

The wider benefits and impact of the programme includes:  

✓ A skilled workforce with requisite skills to support the region over coming decades, in terms 

of supply chain development, growth of SMEs and attraction of large companies 

✓ A co-ordinated and efficient regional approach with service integration that meets the 

needs of employers without duplication 

✓ Support for people to get good jobs by creating opportunities through project community 

benefits programme 

✓ Flexible and responsive to evolving and targeted need of the region and labour markets 

by bringing learning and skills together with regeneration opportunities in the region 

✓ A business productivity programme to develop a suite of solutions to generate higher level 

skills which meet the demands of employers and will support improvements in productivity 

✓ Raised awareness and upskilling of teachers and lecturers with new skills opportunities  

✓ Increase the availability of informative, up to date information to help in strategic planning; 

ensuring the most appropriate learning opportunities and progression routes are available 

for learners in the region, which will benefit the learner by providing pathways through their 

lifelong learning pathway from schools, colleges, universities and upskilling whilst in work 

1.4 Strategic alignment 
 
The programme’s investment objectives and wider impacts are a dependency to the success 
of the SBCD portfolio and is strategically aligned to the needs of the region, Welsh 
Government and UK Government policy and strategy for skills development. 
 
The Skills and Employability section of the Prosperity for All - the National Strategy states  

“the better people’s skills are, the better their chances of getting fair, secure and rewarding 

employment, and the stronger the skills base is in Wales, the more chance we have of 

attracting new businesses and growing existing ones to improve prosperity”1  

 
and in the previous Taking Wales Forward strategy the Welsh Government said  

“Better schools and better skills have never been so important for our young people and the 

future of the economy.  Through better education and providing skills for life we can help to 

break the cycle of disadvantage and inequality over the longer term. Our commitment is to 

 
1 https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-03/employability-plan-2.pdf  

Tudalen 47

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-03/employability-plan-2.pdf


3 | P a g e  
 

offer the skills and experiences people need to thrive and prosper in our times. Getting people 

into employment and sustaining jobs is not just about increasing skills. We will improve 

workforce health, including mental ill health, through ensuring that health services support 

people throughout their working life.”2   

 
To achieve the aligned investment objectives, a change to existing training delivery is needed 

regionally. The Skills and Talent programme team and RLSP board will work closely with WG 

and UKG and regional stakeholders to better integrate schools with the regional economy 

drivers and embrace the educational pathways to Colleges and Universities in the region. All 

of which is underpinned by understanding and meeting the needs of current and future 

businesses and regional priorities and investment. 

 
1.5 Programme Delivery 

A dedicated programme team will be recruited Q2/3 2021 reporting to the Regional Learning 

and Skills Partnership (RLSP) Board incorporating the Skills and Talent Programme Board.  

The RLSP Board, chaired by a business leader supported by the programme Senior 

Responsible Owner (SRO) are responsible for the successful delivery and oversight of the 

governance and reporting arrangements for the programme.   

Extensive engagement with key stakeholders will form part of the governance arrangements 

and in the lifecycle of the programme development and delivery. Stakeholders include 

government bodies, training providers and employers from across the region. 

Digital innovation (to include Creative Industries), energy, construction, smart manufacturing 

and life science and wellbeing are the five key areas that the skills project will focus on in 

relation to skills development.  

Programme delivery will focus on five key phases that are interlinked to strengthen 

opportunities for training; upskills and for life-long learning: 

1.5.1 Phase 1 - Identification of the skills gaps 

From the outset, the programme will develop and publish a Regional Skills Barometer, 

providing all stakeholders with a better understanding to make informed decisions by 

presenting a complete landscape of the regional labour market demands and existing 

training opportunities.  The Barometer will feed into a shared platform of employment 

opportunities linked to the development of a skilled workforce and the creation of upskilling 

programmes for the existing workforce to support the ambitions and delivery of the SBCD 

portfolio. 

This will complement on-going mapping exercises of current course delivery through regional 

colleges, universities and training providers, where the data has been matched to skills 

requirements already identified by the SBCD projects and programmes.  Further work is 

needed across the SBCD portfolio as businesses cases are developed and projects transition 

into delivery to understand the new training/skills opportunities and existing skills gaps in the 

region, which will shape and prioritise training provider offerings at University/College 

frameworks or via an apprenticeship route.   

The skills identification process will be repeated periodically during the programme lifecycle. 

The initial scoping will identify skills requirements for the next 5-10 years. A further review will 

 
2 https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2017-08/taking-wales-forward.pdf  

Tudalen 48

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2017-08/taking-wales-forward.pdf


4 | P a g e  
 

be undertaken thereafter to identify new skills that will be developed as new projects and 

business investment is generated in the area. 

The focus for the first 5 years of the programme will be on the following sectors where key 

skills gaps have already been identified and there is an urgent need to upskill people already 

in the workforce to fill the gaps but to also prepare the next generation with the information to 

enable them to be aware of the opportunities if they choose to study in these areas: 

• Digital – Cyber; Cloud, Digital forensics, Machine Learning knowledge; Creative Industries 
– recent report by the Learning and Work Institute states “the UK is heading towards a 
“catastrophic” digital skills shortage.  The Covid-19 pandemic has increased the number 
of jobs in IT or requiring IT skills and evidence gathered by the RLSP3 shows that the trend 
is increasing and there are insufficient numbers of skilled people applying to take up the 
positions in the region.  

• Construction – New roles in the Industry will need to be created and the Construction 
Wales Innovation Centre (CWIC) estimated that the equivalent of 350,000 new roles will 
be created by 2028 and these will need to be found through a mix of new jobs, upskilling 
existing and in innovation within the industry itself.4  Examples include Solar, Heat pumps, 
Smart controls, Electrical Vehicles; retrofit of homes; new construction methods; 
mechanical and electrical systems management including heat pumps etc. 

• Energy – The expected growth in jobs (direct and Indirect) to deliver a net zero economy 
in Wales by 2030 is anticipated to exceed 150,000 with further growth expected by 2050.  
The range of jobs will be wide and will include manufacturing and installation of wind 
turbines, solar PV, nuclear reactors, low- emission vehicles; specialist engineering roles 
within the offshore wind, tidal energy; marine energy sector; specialist maintenance roles 
etc. 

• Health and Wellbeing – technology in health care- digital assimilation; connectivity with 
community support workers; digital consultations. 

• Smart Manufacturing - new ways of manufacturing using digital technology. 

• Creative Industries – the development of new technologies in the digital arena will enhance 
the opportunities within the Arts and Creative world of work.  Yr Egin and the Waterfront 
project will offer key opportunities for work within the Creative sector.  Over and above the 
digital requirements a number of new courses have already been developed to meet some 
of the needs identified to date. 

The work that has already been undertaken has identified the cross-sector demand for digital 

training particularly the introduction of the use of technology in delivering services. 

1.5.2 Phase 2 -Development of new Frameworks and training programmes  

There is evidence of need in terms of new national occupational standards or updated 

frameworks to meet the needs of the projects, the Programme Team will work with the Skills 

Solution group to understand the requirements and commission the development of the 

updating of frameworks for pilot delivery in the region.  The work will include: 

• Employer engagement. 

• Alignment of skills needs now and in the future. 

• Identification of needs to train the trainers. 

 
3 An Analysis of the Impact of COVID-19 on South West and Mid Wales (November 2020) – Regional Learning 
and Skills Partnership 
4 https://www.uwtsd.ac.uk/news/press-releases/press-2020/delivering-skills--training-in-wales-for-net-zero-
.html  

Tudalen 49

https://www.uwtsd.ac.uk/news/press-releases/press-2020/delivering-skills--training-in-wales-for-net-zero-.html
https://www.uwtsd.ac.uk/news/press-releases/press-2020/delivering-skills--training-in-wales-for-net-zero-.html


5 | P a g e  
 

• Review of frameworks after five years to determine additional requirements in line 

with changing technology. 

 

1.5.3 Phase 3- Pilot Projects 

During the initial five years of the programme pilot projects will be developed to deliver the 

skills requirements. The projects will be developed with a range of stakeholders and partners 

across the region including the HE, FE institutions, the training providers and schools.  

However, there will also be opportunities for the private sector business to submit projects 

that they could match fund with the programme funding. 

The pilot projects will include opportunities to upskill individuals in specific trades as well as 

upskilling lecturers/teachers in new technology required across all of the themes. The pilot 

projects will develop the legacy of the programme as new training/qualifications are 

integrated into mainstream delivery across the region. 

The pilot projects will also identify opportunities to enhance the apprenticeship offer from 

level 3 to degree level 6.  There has already been strong links made with Cyfle the shared 

apprenticeship scheme for the construction industry who already operate a mentoring 

support programme for apprentices to get in to work after the training period.  The Skills and 

Talent programme would aim to develop similar models across the other key sectors. 

It is anticipated that all successful pilot projects will become stand-alone programmes and 

adopted by other schools, colleges as good practice projects to deliver new skills and 

training in specific areas.  All frameworks developed or updated through the Skills and Talent 

programme will adopted into mainstream delivery and funded through the annual allocation  

by Welsh Government, delivered through FE, HE and the Apprenticeship scheme.  There is 

evidence of the demand for such a programme through the existing Regional Employment 

and Skills Plans and through engagement with employers in the region and the project leads 

of the City Deal projects. 

1.4.4 Phase 4 - Development of Career Pathways 

The work of schools is paramount to the success of this programme and the SBCD portfolio 

to generate the talent of the future and will run in parallel with Phase 3.  The main aim of this 

phase is to inspire the next generation onto the right path by highlighting the opportunities 

for their careers in the region as well as the pathways to get to the jobs. There are many 

opportunities to work with schools, to influence the curriculum by investing in specific 

projects to support schools to develop the potential of their students in areas where there will 

be highly paid jobs. The Skills and Talent programme will support the schools with funding to 

develop specific initiatives that will enhance the opportunities for young people in their 

chosen career paths. The career pathway will also develop new opportunities to upskill 

teachers on the use of new technology and on new opportunities in the world of work. 

The aim will be to generate an increased number of students following STEM subjects in FE 

and HE, these areas will include: 

• Science & Mathematics 

• Engineering and Manufacturing Technologies 

• Information and Communication Technologies. 

•  

 

Tudalen 50



6 | P a g e  
 

1.5.5 Phase 5 -Creation of Centres of Excellence 

The programme aims to develop Centres of Excellence in key sectors that support the City 

Deal projects. The Centres will exist within existing colleges or universities and will offer and 

become known as the best Centre to gain the skills in one or all five of the outlined above.  

The Skills and Talent programme will support the development of such centres working with 

private sector employers, the City Deal projects and the training providers.  The Centres of 

Excellence will not duplicate what is already on offer but will compliment work that is already 

being developed or become an additional resource within the region to support the sector.  

Tudalen 51



7 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 52



8 | P a g e  
 

2 THE STRATEGIC CASE 

2.1 Vision 
 

To create new and sustainable opportunities that will generate prosperity for 
individuals and businesses in the Swansea Bay City Deal region. This will be achieved 
through the development of a pathway of skills for all and the pilot delivery of demand 
driven high level skills and upskilling opportunities across the four key sectors. 

2.2 Background 

The Swansea Bay City Region (SBCR) spans across four local authority areas with a 
combined population of approximately 698,000 people. The City Region published an 
economic regeneration strategy in 2013 with a common vision to enhance the long-term 
prospects of the region’s economy, businesses and communities. The strategy will co-ordinate 
collective action and identify routes and initiatives to respond to the structural challenges that 
are holding back the SBCR economy. 
 
The SBCD is part of the SBCR strategy and portfolio. It is a partnership of eight regional 
organisations made up of local authorities, universities and health boards that aims to 
accelerate economic and social advancement through regional infrastructure and investment 
funds.   
 
The Skills and Talent Programme is one of the nine Projects and Programmes within the 
Swansea Bay City Deal (SBCD). The City Deal was signed by Prime Minister Theresa May 
and First Minister Carwyn Jones on the 20th March 2017, securing £1.3billion of public and 
private sector funding over a 15-year Programme for economic growth and regeneration for 
the region.  
  
The Programme will across the projects and programmes of the SBCD Portfolio which have 
been developed under the Key Themes of Economic Acceleration, Energy, Life Science and 
Wellbeing and Smart Manufacturing: 
 
Economic Acceleration  

• Regional Digital Infrastructure 

• Swansea City and Waterfront Digital District  

• Creative Digital Cluster – Yr Egin. 

Energy 

• Homes as Power Stations 

• Pembroke Dock Marine 

Life Science and Wellbeing 

• Life Science & Well-being Campuses 

• Pentre Awel (Life Science and Well-being village) 

Smart Manufacturing 

• Innovation and Low Carbon Growth 

 
Appendix A shows how all the projects interact and the themes all play an important role in 
the economy of the region, Appendix B contains more detailed information on how these 

Tudalen 53



9 | P a g e  
 

themes are currently impacting the economy of the region and how the Skills and Talent 
programme will specifically address the skills requirements for each theme. 
 

2.3 Organisational overview 

The Regional Leaning and Skills Partnership (RLSP) for South West Wales is the organisation 
making the case for investment working with the 8 projects that make up the City Deal and 
any other future projects that may arise from the overall City Deal programme.  The RLSP 
Board is a long established multi sector partnership focusing on skills investment and the 
economic regeneration of the area through the development of a skilled workforce.  The RLSP 
has a long-standing reputation of regional collaborative working with key partners in the region 
and working with Welsh Government to influence policy on the delivery of skills training in the 
region and with DCMS on specific skills projects. The work of the partnership includes;  

• Promoting and championing a strategic overview of skills provision to ensure that it 
meets regional needs and maximises economic opportunities.  

• Analyse and comment on national and labour market intelligence to identify and inform 
skills and curriculum provision bridging the gap between education and regeneration 
to create a strong vibrant economy underpinned by innovation growth and a capable 
workforce. 

• Review and evaluate skills provision in partnership with the employers and 
stakeholders in the region. 

• Encourage innovation and greater utilisation of higher-level skills through supporting 
organisations to develop higher value products and services. 

• Preparing annual reports for Welsh Government on the Skills needs of the region. 

• Preparing specialist sector reports for specific projects. 

This role is recognised by the Welsh Government through the commissioning of a Regional 
Delivery Plan for Employment and Skills and the regional Demand and Supply Assessments 
which have been instrumental in developing a strategic approach to skills. The Welsh 
Government through its Prosperity for All strategy says “the better people’s skills, the better 
their chances of getting fair, secure and rewarding employment, and the stronger the skills 
base is in Wales, the more chance we have of attracting new businesses and growing existing 
ones to improve prosperity.”  This is the key driver for the work of the Regional Skills 
Partnerships across Wales working with stakeholders and businesses across the region. 

The representation on the Board includes stakeholders from Further Education, Higher 
Education, Training Providers; Government Departments including Department of Work and 
Pensions, Careers Service and the Education and Skills Department of Welsh Government; 
Education Departments of Local Authorities; Third Sector and Local Authority Economic 
Regeneration.  The private sector representation includes the chairs of the respective 9 priority 
sectors; the private sector chair; Federation of Small Business, Haven Waterway Enterprise 
Zone and the TUC.  Appendix C details the representation on the Board and Appendix D the 
representation on the 9 Industry Sector Cluster groups and the Skills Provider group. 

 

Tudalen 54



10 | P a g e  
 

2.4 Policy & Strategy Alignment 

The Swansea Bay City Region is a critically important driver for the Welsh and UK economy. It is a region with strong urban centres a diverse 

rural landscape and a significant coastline that has created an economic profile with numerous opportunities and challenges. With a resident 

population of 704,8975 supporting some 311,000 jobs6 and containing around 27,000 businesses7, the Swansea Bay City Region is a major driver 

of the Welsh economy. However, overall productivity (GVA) growth in the region has been consistently below that of the UK and Wales over the 

past two decades and remedying this position is the primary priority of the City Deal.   

The primary aim of the Swansea Bay City Deal is to stimulate economic growth within the region through attracting investment and generating 

high-value job opportunities.Through the City Deal the Swansea Bay Region will embrace a once in a generation opportunity to further 
consolidate its’ role in technological innovation, realisation and commercialisation making a substantial contribution to the UK Government’s 
Industrial Strategy and harness the opportunities set out by the Welsh Government’s Prosperity for All – the national strategy. The Skills and 
Talent programme strongly aligns to UK, Welsh and Regional policies, strategies and targets and these alignments are summarised in Table 1 
below. 
 
 

Strategy  Core Principles Fit 

UK   
Industrial 

Strategy 

The Industrial Strategy for the UK -

Building a Britain Fit for the Future 

outlines the longer-term approach to 

improving living standards and 

economic prosperity. 

A strategy for securing significant economic gains underpins the entire City Deal proposal 

and the 9 individual projects will support this commercial potential, will increase the Gross 

Value Added (GVA) within the region and support the development of key skills and 

employment across the region.  
 

The Skills and Talent Programme will develop a sustainable pipeline of individuals to support 
growth of the four themes and support the future competitiveness of the region.  It will nurture 
indigenous talent through initial education and ongoing career development, while also 
attracting globally-competitive skills to the region through the private sector investment which 
ensues from the proposal as a collective. The programme will seek to utilise and maximise the 
potential of city region partner organisations through the existing RLSP structure and will look 
to develop and support strategic skills interventions around the key themes of ICT infrastructure 
and digital skills, Health, Energy and Smart Manufacturing. 

The UK's Industrial Strategy - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) 

 
5 https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Population-and-Migration/Population/Estimates/Local-Authority/populationestimates-by-localauthority-year  
6 https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Business-Economy-and-Labour-Market/People-and-Work/Employment/Jobs/Whole-Workforce/workplaceemployment-by-welshlocalareas-year  
7 Inter Departmental Business Register (IDBR) 2018 

T
udalen 55

https://www.gov.uk/government/topical-events/the-uks-industrial-strategy
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Population-and-Migration/Population/Estimates/Local-Authority/populationestimates-by-localauthority-year
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Business-Economy-and-Labour-Market/People-and-Work/Employment/Jobs/Whole-Workforce/workplaceemployment-by-welshlocalareas-year


11 | P a g e  
 

Wales   

Welsh 

Government 

Prosperity for 

All Strategy 

The Economic Strategy for Wales The Skills and Talent programme supports the key objectives of the Welsh Government’s 

Prosperity for All strategy specifically the Ambitious and Learning theme by creating 

opportunities for all to achieve skills at all levels and from all ages enabling individuals to 

achieve a better chance of getting a rewarding job and the ability for the region to attract 

inward investment to the area because of a strong skills base. 

Securing Wales' Future Summary (gov.wales) 
Wellbeing and 

Future 

Generations 

Act 

A Prosperous Wales • The Skills and Talent programme seeks to support to City Deal in maximising the 
economic and social benefits of the digital economy within the Swansea Bay City Region.  

• The programme will enhance the employability of individuals within the region providing 
digital economy skills across all levels from school engagement, Further Education and 
Higher Education.   

• It will directly support an innovative and skilled Wales through developing new skills 
activity to support the development of the City Deal projects. It will allow for activity to 
become mainstream enhancing the current skills provision and allowing a greater number 
of talented individuals to enter the Welsh digital economy.   

• The programme will support the development of local supply chains and new and 
innovative business activity through supporting skills development within the digital 
economy. 

 A Resilient Wales • The programme will support the economy of the regional and Wales through the global 
transition that will arise from technological changes such as automation and artificial 
intelligence by ensuring residents are equipped with the skills required. 

• It will also support the development of new low carbon technologies including supporting 
the internet of energy theme and the ‘Homes as Power Stations’ and ‘Pembroke Dock 
Marine’ projects and improving Wales’ energy security and reducing the impact on the 
environment. 

 A Healthier Wales • Skills and Talent will support individuals to participate within the digital economy and 
access sustainable employment which benefits mental and physical well-being.  

• There will be direct support for the life science and well-being theme which includes 
Pentre Awel the ‘Life Science and Well-being Village’ as well as the ‘Life Science 
Campuses’ projects.   

• Increased connectivity and the skills to utilise digital technologies will help to address 
issues related to isolation, loneliness and well-being. 

 A more Equal Wales • Skills and Talent will support the City Deal in its ambitions to drive through economic 
transformation within the region and reduce the deficit in GVA performance compared to 
other parts of the UK. 

T
udalen 56

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2017-10/prosperity-for-all-the-national-strategy.pdf


12 | P a g e  
 

• Through the learning opportunities developed there will be greater opportunities for 
individuals to participate in the digital labour market and increase the equality of 
opportunity.  

• The programme will support a reduction in poverty through providing individuals with the 
opportunity to access well paid sustainable employment locally. 

 A Vibrant and Cultural Wales • Skills and Talent will support skills activity bilingually where possible and support the 
progression of bilingual learners into the digital economy. 

• There will be significant skills support for the ‘Yr Egin’ development and the Waterfront 
District  which will allow for the development of digital cultural activity and supporting the 
development of the creative industries.   

 A globally Responsible Wales • The skills developed via the programme will support the development of a low carbon 
economy within the region and improving sustainability, through supporting projects under 
the themes- Energy and Smart Manufacturing.  

• It will also promote global wellbeing through supporting the Wellbeing and Life-science 
Theme and supporting the skills required for citizens to live healthier lives in a connected 
environment. 

 A Wales of Cohesive Communities • Through the Economic Acceleration and the development of skills within the digital 
economy ecosystem there will be growth opportunities for both local indigenous 
companies and local supply chains.  

• Improved digital infrastructure and skills to utilise technologies will improve the resilience 
and cohesion of communities, particularly within rural areas 

Wellbeing and 

Future 

Generations 

Act - The 5 

ways of 

working 

Long Term The Skills and Talent programme will support the long-term economic transformation of the 

region through developing and delivering skills activity that directly supports the City Deal. 

This activity will ensure that residents of the Swansea Bay City Region will have the 

opportunity to benefit from the investment and the prosperity.  The programme will engage 

with young people to provide digital skills and inspire the next generation into careers within 

the digital economy.  

 Prevention The programme will support individuals, through developing appropriate and relevant skills 

into long term sustainable employment aligned to the City Deal improving the overall 

economic competitiveness of the region. This reduces the risks associated with long term 

unemployment, poverty and improving individual well-being through the application of digital 

skills and new technologies. The project will support individuals at risk of economic 

displacement through providing the opportunities to access new skills. 

 Collaboration The RLSP and its partners has a strong record of collaboration, the intervention will build 

upon this experience through developing all activity within a collaborative framework with 

clear governance. The engagement with all of the City Deal projects will ensure that the 

T
udalen 57



13 | P a g e  
 

activity will be developed collaboratively and will ensure that the most appropriate activity is 

developed. 

 Integration The Skills and Talent programme will integrate with all of the City Deal projects supporting the 

employment outcomes of each. There is also significant integration with the members of the 

four public services boards including local authorities and education providers of Swansea 

Bay supporting employability outcomes, economic development and sustainability.  It also 

aligns significantly with Welsh Government’s Prosperity for All strategy and Working Wales 

employability plan. 

 Involvement The RLSP has a strong level of engagement with organisations from the public, private and 

third sectors and will continue this engagement throughout. The RLSP will ensure effective 

communication to enable collaboration with all partners and stakeholders to utilise the 

expertise that are available regionally. In addition, there will be increased engagement with 

both relevant industry and learners to ensure the intervention is meeting the needs of 

citizens.  The intervention’s governance will ensure that all stakeholders are appropriately 

represented. 

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 – The Future Generations Commissioner 
for Wales 

International 

Strategy for 

Wales 

The strategy aims to raise the profile 

Internationally of Wales as a place that 

is full of creativity, innovation and 

manufacturing.  Higher Education plays 

an important role with the connections 

across the World. 

The aim of the Skills and Talent programme is to develop the opportunities for all to achieve 

higher qualifications and opportunities to work in groundbreaking technology through the City 

Deal projects and other investment opportunities that will be generated in the region.  The 

International opportunities through the Erasmus programme and the development of 

opportunities for companies and students from overseas to invest, study and work in the 

region. 
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2020-10/international-strategy-for-wales-

v1.pdf 

 

21st Century 

Higher 

Education 

Strategy for 

Wales 

The strategy aims to transform the lives 

and livelihoods across Wales through 

the combined efforts of a Higher 

Education establishments in Wales 

The vision of the Skills and Talent programme is to increase the number of individuals with 

the high- level qualifications in the region through full time or part time study or through 

degree apprenticeships. The programme team will work with the Universities in the region to 

develop opportunities linked with the individual projects to meet the programme vision. 

https://dera.ioe.ac.uk/521/ 

Education in 

Wales 

Strategy- Our 

National 

Mission 

The strategy covers post 16 education 

and skills via further and higher 

education, adult and community 

learning and apprenticeship and aims 

to deliver.  The aspiration of the 

The Skills and Talent programme aims to increase the number of people in the region 

attaining a qualification and to generate opportunities for all to attain higher qualifications to 

meet the needs of the City deal projects. 

https://gov.wales/education-and-skills-planning-and-strategy 

 

T
udalen 58

https://www.futuregenerations.wales/about-us/future-generations-act/
https://www.futuregenerations.wales/about-us/future-generations-act/
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2020-10/international-strategy-for-wales-v1.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2020-10/international-strategy-for-wales-v1.pdf
https://gov.wales/education-and-skills-planning-and-strategy


14 | P a g e  
 

strategy is to have aspirational young 

people with opportunities across all 

levels of education achieve the highest 

levels of qualifications 

Youth 

Engagement 

Framework 

the Youth 

Engagement 

and 

Progression 

Framework 

The framework sets out the Welsh 

Government approach to supporting 

young people who are at risk of 

becoming NEET. The Framework has 6 

key elements: Identifying young people 

most at risk of disengagement; Better 

brokerage and co-ordination of support 

The Skills and Talent programme will work with all people in society with the aspiration of 

raising the skills levels for all across the region.  There are a high percentage of individuals 

who fall within the NEET category and the Skills and Talent programme will work with all 

employability projects, stakeholders and educational establishments to ensure that the 

opportunities that will be generated through the whole City Deal portfolio. 

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2018-02/implementation-plan-youth-

engagement-and-progression-framework.pdf 

Tackling 

Poverty Plan 

2021- 2035 

The key objectives of the Tackling 
Poverty actions are:  
• to prevent poverty, especially through 
investment in giving children the best 
possible start in life. From conception 
through to early adulthood, our aim will 
be to reduce inequality at the earliest 
possible stage and break the link 
between socio-economic disadvantage, 
educational under achievement and the 
impaired life chances that flow from 
these;  
• recognising that the best route out of 
poverty is through employment, we will 
continue to help people to improve their 
skills and enhance the relevance of 
their qualifications. We will also remove 
other barriers to employment – from 
practical barriers such as the 
accessibility of transport and buildings 
to less tangible barriers such as poverty 
of aspiration - helping people to move 
on to and up the employment ladder;  
• at the same time, we will increase 
action to mitigate the impact of poverty 
here and now. We recognise that for 

The Skills and Talent programme will: 
Identify and develop opportunities through working with schools and colleges to identify the 
career pathways suitable for all; 
Work with partners in the Employability programmes to identify the skills gaps and develop 
programmes to support training for all. 
Create opportunities for everyone to work and gain the necessary experience in the world of 
work to enhance their opportunities for better paid work. 
 
 
https://gov.wales/tackling-fuel-poverty-2021-2035-html 
 

T
udalen 59

https://gov.wales/tackling-fuel-poverty-2021-2035-html


15 | P a g e  
 

more and more people, even being in 
work will not guarantee that they can 
escape poverty. We can act to improve 
the quality of life of these communities, 
families and individuals. 

Manufacturing 

Future for 

Wales- 

Framework 

for Action 

The Framework will look at how the 

Welsh Government, Industry, Academia 

and Trade Unions can work together to 

secure the future of manufacturing in 

Wales. 

Skills within the manufacturing sector have already been identified as being at risk and with 

the advent of Industry 4.0 there is a need to ensure that Engineering and Manufacturing are 

highlighted as key career opportunities in the region. The Skills and Talent programme will 

work with Industry Wales and academia to develop the clear pathway from school through to 

higher education and apprenticeship.  Alongside the development of individuals there will also 

be a need to upskill the teachers and lecturers in the new ways of working. 

Regional   

Swansea Bay 

City Region 

Economic 

Regeneration 

strategy 

2013-2030 

The Strategy has 5 key aims: 

1 Business Growth and Retention. 

2 Skilled and Ambitious people 

3 Maximize job creation. 

4 Knowledge Economy and Innovation. 

5 Distinct places and competitive 

infrastructure. 

The strategy identifies the major deficits that exist across the region regarding the low 

number of people with higher level qualifications or no qualifications at all.  These issues 

need to be addressed in order to drive performance competitiveness and salary levels. 

The Skills and Talent programme will be instrumental in the success of all 5 key aims of the 

strategy and will deliver on the key skills requirements to meet the needs of the employers in 

the region. The programme will lead on the upskilling of individuals to meet the changing 

demands; develop clear career pathways for children in school to identify the opportunities 

available and skills required and finally to develop a more ambitious workforce with the right 

skills for the future. 

https://www.swansea.gov.uk/media/7514/Swansea-Bay-City-Region-Economic-Regeneration-

Strategy/pdf/Swansea_Bay_City_Region_Economic_Regeneration_Strategy.pdf   
Framework 

for Regional 

Investment in 

Wales 

The Regional Framework brings 

together the regional Economic 

requirements both long term and short 

term post Covid-19 within one strategy 

sitting under the Chief Regional Officer 

The Skills and Talent programme will work with the Chief Regional Officer to identify the skills 

requirements and support the development of key skills in specific locations across the 

region. 

 
The Skills and Talent programme will align to the objectives set out in the recently launched 
framework for regional investment in Wales post Brexit.  These objectives include: 

• Support the workforce to become skilled and trained to achieve progression including 
skills from transition to Industry 4.0 and 5.0 technology. 

• Opportunities for people to develop their skills and acquire new skills. 
• Increase the number of upskilled individuals in the workplace to achieve the skills of 

the future. 
• Tackle digital exclusion and increase engagement with the digital and technological 

skills. 
• Increase opportunities through apprenticeship and traineeships. 

T
udalen 60



16 | P a g e  
 

 

Regional 
Employment 
and Skills 
Plan 2019 - 
2022 

 

The plan informs and support the 
Welsh Government's strategic 
approach to the delivery of employment 
and skills provision in conjunction with 
the other two Regional Skills 
Partnerships in Wales. 

The Skills and Talent programme will utilise the work undertaken by the RLSP team including 
data being generated on the impact of Covid-19 pandemic for future skills needs. 
 

http://online.flipbuilder.com/itet/fdew/mobile/index.html 

Rural Vision 
for Wales – 
Thriving 
Communities 
for the future 

One key recommendation is to develop 
a targeted rural youth programme to 
invest, upskill and retain bright and 
talented young people in rural 
communities: 
i) Establish STEMM (Science, 
Technology, Engineering, Maths and 
Money) Centres of 
Excellence by investing in high quality 
facilities within rural Further Education 
Institutions to provide training for young 
people, as well as opportunities for 
adult 
in-work upskilling and retraining 
opportunities, targeted at the following 
sectors - 
o Food Science 
o Digital and Electronics 
o 21st Century Agriculture 
o Healthcare and Medical Sciences 
o Low Carbon Infrastructure 
o Creative Industries 
o Circular Economy 
o Advanced Manufacturing 
o Bioeconomy 
 

Many of the key areas highlighted with the Rural Vision report link to the key areas identified 
within the Skills and Talent programme and will be developed therein.  The objectives of the 
Rural Vision also highlights some of the key challenges identified within the Programme 
Business case. 

 
https://rural-urban.eu/publications/rural-vision-wales-thriving-communities-future-evidence-
report 

Table 1 –Alignment to UK and Government and Regional PoliciesT
udalen 61



17 | P a g e  
 

2.5 Case for Change 

The HM Treasury Green Book indicates that the rationale for Government intervention is founded 

‘either in market failure or where there are clear government distribution objectives that need to be 

met.’  Market failure refers to where the market has not and cannot itself be expected to deliver an 

efficient outcome; the intervention that is proposed within this programme will seek to redress this. 

The Swansea Bay City Deal region suffers from a series of overarching economic issues including 

low GVA, lack of well-paid job opportunities, skills shortage, high levels of economic inactivity and 

outward youth migration. The region is characterised by a higher proportion of individuals with no 

qualifications when compared with national averages, Table 2 below outlines the 2019 data on 

Highest Qualifications based on a regional/Wales average, the average earnings, the current 

employed and unemployment data and the gender pay gap. A high number of individuals in the 

region are currently in low skilled, low paid and unstable employment and subsequently a lower 

than average level of individuals are in higher paid, meaningful employment.  

There is also further area of concern for the region’s workforce - the ageing population, with 36% of 
the region’s total population of 704,8978. being over the age of 55.9 Retirement risk is high in the 
region with around 276,000 individuals expected to retire soon, (this is above the average for an 
area of similar size, which sits at 241,000.10 The potential loss of skilled individuals at such a scale 
is a challenge for the region but one that the City Deal and the opportunities it presents through the 
Skills and Talent programme can mitigate.  

With the rising opportunities currently on offer within the region and the potential development of 
high paid jobs through the City Deal there is a real concern that there will be limited number of people 
with the correct qualifications and experience to take up the roles.  Furthermore, the impact of Covid-
19 on the Employment landscape will require upskilling of individuals from existing skills base into 
new industries as a matter of urgency. 

  Carms Pembs Swansea Neath 
and 
Port 
Talbot 

Wales 

Total 
Employment 

Workplace 
Employment (Whole 
Workforce) 11 

79,600 58,000 124,200 49,600 1,452,100 

Employment in 
High skilled 
occupations 

% of workers in SOC 
digits 1-3 (2020)12 

39.6% 36.7% 45.2% 33.4% 44.2 

Unemployment Unemployment rate %   
(June 2020) 

4.2 2.7 5.4 4.0 3.7 

Earnings Median FT weekly 
earnings £ 
(2020)13 

£568.60 £492.90 £531.90 £566.40 £537.80 

Male Earnings Weekly median gross 
pay male full time 
(2020)14 

£550.40 £510.20 £521.10 £604.30 £556.70 

 
8 https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Population-and-Migration/Population/Estimates/Local-Authority/populationestimates-

by-localauthority-year 
9 RLSP analysis of EMSI data  
10 RLSP analysis of EMSI data 
11 https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Business-Economy-and-Labour-Market/People-and-
Work/Employment/Jobs/Whole-Workforce/workplaceemployment-by-welshlocalareas-industry  
12 https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Business-Economy-and-Labour-Market/People-and-
Work/Employment/Persons-Employed/peopleinemployment-by-area-occupation  
13 https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Business-Economy-and-Labour-Market/People-and-
Work/Earnings/medianweeklyearnings-by-welshlocalareas-year  
14 https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Business-Economy-and-Labour-Market/People-and-
Work/Earnings/medianweeklyearnings-by-welshlocalareas-year 

Tudalen 62

https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Population-and-Migration/Population/Estimates/Local-Authority/populationestimates-by-localauthority-year
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Population-and-Migration/Population/Estimates/Local-Authority/populationestimates-by-localauthority-year
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Business-Economy-and-Labour-Market/People-and-Work/Employment/Jobs/Whole-Workforce/workplaceemployment-by-welshlocalareas-industry
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Business-Economy-and-Labour-Market/People-and-Work/Employment/Jobs/Whole-Workforce/workplaceemployment-by-welshlocalareas-industry
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Business-Economy-and-Labour-Market/People-and-Work/Employment/Persons-Employed/peopleinemployment-by-area-occupation
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Business-Economy-and-Labour-Market/People-and-Work/Employment/Persons-Employed/peopleinemployment-by-area-occupation
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Business-Economy-and-Labour-Market/People-and-Work/Earnings/medianweeklyearnings-by-welshlocalareas-year
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Business-Economy-and-Labour-Market/People-and-Work/Earnings/medianweeklyearnings-by-welshlocalareas-year
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Business-Economy-and-Labour-Market/People-and-Work/Earnings/medianweeklyearnings-by-welshlocalareas-year
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Business-Economy-and-Labour-Market/People-and-Work/Earnings/medianweeklyearnings-by-welshlocalareas-year


18 | P a g e  
 

Female 
Earnings 

Weekly median gross 
pay female full time 
(2020)15 

£592.80 £477.10 £534.80 £492.20 £515.40 

Economic 
participation 

Economic activity rate 
%  
aged 16-64 (Sept 
2020)16 

72.7 76.7 74.0 72.5 76.2 

       
Low skills17 % with no 

qualifications aged 16-
64 (2019) 

7.4 8.8 7.7 10.8 8.2 

 % qualified to below 
level 2 (2019) 

11.5 12.6 11.6 14.5 12.7 

 % qualified to NQF 
level 2 (2019) 

20.0 22.1 17.4 24.8 19.7 

 % qualified to NQF 
level 3 (2019) 

19.6 20.0 23.3 19.7 20.6 

 % qualified to NQF 
level 4-6 (2019) 

30.2 26.9 26.7 23.6 27.6 

 % qualified to NQF 
level 7-8 (2019) 

11.2 9.7 13.3 6.5 11.2 

 

Table 2 – Employment and Skills Levels within the Swansea Bay region.18   

 

The Skills and Talent programme has a key role to play here in providing individuals with the right 

training opportunities to not only improve their skills and qualification levels but also their access to 

better and more meaningful employment opportunities. People with higher level qualifications and 

skills are more likely to be in sustained employment, with larger earning and wage gains, 

particularly for those individuals from disadvantaged areas. Apprenticeships tend to increase the 

probability of participants being in employment with higher level apprenticeships appearing to 

generate substantially larger labour market benefits.  

The region needs a motivated skilled and functioning workforce that deliver on the overall aims of 

the Swansea Bay City Deal over the next 15 years and the Skills and Talent programme will be 

instrumental in piloting the skills solutions for the 8 projects and in turn will support regional 

education providers to deliver the skills solutions required. Evidence highlighted in the 2019 

Employment and Skills Plan19 indicates that skills will broadly be required in (but not limited to) the 

areas of ICT and digital, health and manufacturing, energy and new construction and engineering, 

aligning closely to the four themes of the City Deal programme.  A recent report by the Learning 

and Work Institute20 states that the number of young people taking IT subjects at GCSE has 

dropped 40% since 2015 whilst demand for Artificial Intelligence, cloud and robotic skills are 

soaring.  The report further states that there are four main reasons why the digital skills shortage is 

climbing across the country and these include lack of clearly defined job roles; lack of 

understanding of potential career paths; lack of relatable role models and the appeal of the roles. 

Evidence has also been gathered from the project leads during 2020 on specific key skills relating 

to Digital- Cyber security; Cloud, Artificial Intelligence (machine Learning Knowledge) and Data 

 
15 https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Business-Economy-and-Labour-Market/People-and-
Work/Earnings/medianweeklyearnings-by-welshlocalareas-year 
16 https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Business-Economy-and-Labour-Market/People-and-Work/Economic-
Inactivity/economicinactivityratesexcludingstudents-by-welshlocalarea-year  
17 https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Education-and-Skills/Post-16-Education-and-Training/Data-For-Regions-of-
Wales/highestqualificationlevelofworkingageadults-by-region-localauthority  
18 https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Education-and-Skills/Post-16-Education-and-Training/Lifelong-
Learning/Qualification-Levels/highestqualificationlevelsofworkingageadults-by-regionsofwales-qualification 
19 http://online.flipbuilder.com/itet/fdew/mobile/index.html  
20 https://learningandwork.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/Disconnected-Report.pdf  

Tudalen 63

https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Business-Economy-and-Labour-Market/People-and-Work/Earnings/medianweeklyearnings-by-welshlocalareas-year
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Business-Economy-and-Labour-Market/People-and-Work/Earnings/medianweeklyearnings-by-welshlocalareas-year
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Business-Economy-and-Labour-Market/People-and-Work/Economic-Inactivity/economicinactivityratesexcludingstudents-by-welshlocalarea-year
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Business-Economy-and-Labour-Market/People-and-Work/Economic-Inactivity/economicinactivityratesexcludingstudents-by-welshlocalarea-year
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Education-and-Skills/Post-16-Education-and-Training/Data-For-Regions-of-Wales/highestqualificationlevelofworkingageadults-by-region-localauthority
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Education-and-Skills/Post-16-Education-and-Training/Data-For-Regions-of-Wales/highestqualificationlevelofworkingageadults-by-region-localauthority
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Education-and-Skills/Post-16-Education-and-Training/Lifelong-Learning/Qualification-Levels/highestqualificationlevelsofworkingageadults-by-regionsofwales-qualification
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Education-and-Skills/Post-16-Education-and-Training/Lifelong-Learning/Qualification-Levels/highestqualificationlevelsofworkingageadults-by-regionsofwales-qualification
http://online.flipbuilder.com/itet/fdew/mobile/index.html
https://learningandwork.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/Disconnected-Report.pdf


19 | P a g e  
 

Science and from Green Energy where there is a direct link to Digital which include, Solar, Heat 

pumps, Smart controls and Electric vehicles There will be opportunities for the transferability of 

skills between projects and therefore across the region, creating a thriving talent base.  

Undeniably, underpinning each of the projects is skills and talent; a theme that runs strongly 

throughout and will determine the over-all success of the City Deal and its constituent projects. 

With this, the ability of the Skills and Talent programme to determine the skills needs of the 8 

projects is a key determinant of the City Deals success. The right people with the right skills, 

available in the region at the right time is the most important consideration and challenge for the 

City Deal. Without a strong, capable and flexible workforce the projects would struggle to meet the 

outcomes they propose and therefore have the transformational effect that they aim to have. The 

programme aims to address the skills gaps at all levels by working in partnership with key 

providers/partners and employability programmes in the region. 

2.6 Investment Objectives & Benefits 

The overarching objective of the Skills and Talent programme is to strengthen collaboration and 

increase investment that will significantly boost the quality and quantity of trained and skilled 

individuals through the intervention of the programme.  The aim is to: 

✓ create a lasting legacy of a higher skilled workforce across the region. 

✓ encourage meaningful participation by stakeholders in designing and delivering skills 

training and development. 

✓ increase opportunities for individuals to improve their skills and get higher paid jobs. 

✓ be central to maximising the value of the City Deal Investment by delivering the workforce 

programme.  

✓ upskilling individuals for new roles utilising key skills that they may already have that could 

be beneficial to new roles created through the projects or other opportunities in the region.   

The Investment objectives have been identified by the RLSP and partners based on evidence 

gathered through stakeholder engagement; engagement with City Deal project leads and National 

Government statistics. The objectives for the programme are identified below as being time limited 

for the purpose of monitoring however, the interventions made by the Skills and Talent programme 

will have an impact over a longer term with the development of new frameworks fit for the future: 

The programme aims to deliver the following investment objectives and benefits over the next 10 

years, based on sectors including digital, energy, smart manufacturing, construction and life-

sciences and wellbeing 

✓ To directly deliver at least 2,200 additional skills and support the development of around 

14,000 individuals with higher level (between 2-8) skills within 10 years. 

✓ To create at least 3000 new apprenticeship opportunities, to include level 3 to Degree 

apprenticeships. 

✓ To create at least 2 Centres of Excellence within specific sectors to develop the region as 

being “the best” area for skills development.  

✓ To create a clear career pathway from school education through further and higher education 

in the key areas of digital; construction, energy; smart manufacturing and life-science and 

wellbeing, achieved through engagement and development work with schools increasing the 

number of pupils following the STEM subjects in FE and HE.. 

✓ To deliver 20 new/updated course frameworks to ensure they meet the industry training needs 

for the future. 

These investment objectives are SMART (specific, measurable, achievable, realistic and time 

bound) and will be delivered with a £30 million investment from: 

City Deal   Public Sector   Private Sector 

 £10m        £16m        £4m 

Tudalen 64



20 | P a g e  
 

The programme will aim to nurture indigenous talent through initial education and on-going 

professional development, supporting the attraction of globally competitive skills to the region 

through the significant inward investment fostered by the individual projects and the wider 

economic regeneration proposals.  An example would be the Pentre Awel project, the skills 

requirements for this project will be diverse but there will be an opportunity to bring specialist 

leaders in research to the project who will work with students from the universities to develop new 

ways of working and treatments offered within the Life science sector. 

To support this work the RLSP has undertaken a consultation with regional employers; training 

providers and City Deal project leads over the last 18 months to understand the skills requirements 

for the region and identify the skills gaps and where additional resources need to be made 

available in order to support the vision of the City Deal to grow the economy in the region. The 

consultation has been undertaken via on-line questionnaires; face to face meetings within the 

Industry sector cluster groups on a bi-monthly basis; through workshops and annual events and 

RLSP Board meetings. 

2.7 Existing Arrangements 

The delivery of skills training across all ages in the SBCD region are delivered by the Education 
Departments of the Local Authorities; four Further Education Colleges and two Universities together 
with a range of private sector training companies who deliver bespoke and/or apprenticeship 
training. The RLSP works with all partners and employers to understand the gaps in existing 
provision against Industry needs and identification of future learning based on future needs.  

The RLSP prepares an annual Employment and Skills plan and evidence to support the 
recommendations contained therein to improve skills delivery in the region is gathered through 
engagement with Industry leads across the 9 main sectors (Advanced Materials and Manufacturing; 
Energy; Food and Land Management; Financial and Professional services; Tourism Retail and 
Leisure; Construction; Creative Industries, ICT and Public Services). There has been evidence of 
some change within the apprenticeship and further education sector as a result of recommendations 
made but the change in school curriculum and higher education is not as quick to react. Influencing 
change must be a partnership of all skills and training bodies to create the pathway of skills and 
opportunities for all. 

The current delivery model delivers the needs of the Government in the development of opportunities 
for individuals to follow the education route through school and on to Further or higher education or 
apprenticeship, but these pathways do not always reflect the needs of employers.  The Employment 
and Skills Plans for the region  since 2017 have all reported the concerns from employers regarding 
outdated course content; the need for an increased number of people trained within the engineering 
and digital sectors and to improve career pathway advice and information to reflect what is 
happening in industry today. The report makes clear recommendations to the Welsh Government 
on what needs to change in the current landscape in order to meet the needs of Industry as well as 
identifying key future skills needs.  An example of this was a skills needs assessment undertaken 
for the proposed Tidal Lagoon in Swansea that identified key skills needed in the region in order to 
meet the demand that would be created by the project.21 The delivery within the FE and HE sector 
is driven by student demand to take up courses that do not always lead to a paid role in their chosen 
subject and not industry requirements that would lead to full-time, well-paid jobs. The Skills and 
Talent programme offers an opportunity to change the information given to allow individuals to make 
informed decisions of a clear career pathway through the education.  There is a need to develop a 
clear destination pathway for each individual from education through into the world of work and 
beyond. 

2.8 Business Need 
This section identifies the problems, issues and difficulties that the area faces from economic; low 
productivity; low wage levels and skills gaps, all of which will impact on the success of the City Deal 
projects and other investment in the region. Table 3 below and the supporting evidence in this 

 
21 https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1225118/sna.pdf 

Tudalen 65

http://online.flipbuilder.com/itet/fdew/mobile/index.html
http://online.flipbuilder.com/itet/fdew/mobile/index.html
https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1225118/sna.pdf


21 | P a g e  
 

section highlights the key issues the region faces, whilst the programme will address some there are 
already programmes in place outside of the City Deal portfolio that are working on reducing the 
impacts on the regional economy, the importance for the Skills and Talent programme will be the 
strong working arrangements and partnership with these programmes to resolve the difficulties 
across the next 15 – 20 years.  

Work has already been undertaken with all of the project leads to identify skills gaps that they are 
aware of and this has been undertaken through a number of ways including face to face meetings; 
workshops; through the Provider group leads identified to work with the project leads on specific 
skills and through on-line surveys. Consultants appointed to support the development of the 
Economic Impact have also worked with the project leads to identify the skills requirements against 
the jobs being created.  From all of the evidence gathered to date there is clear knowledge that there 
is a demand for new skills to be developed as a matter of urgency to support the delivery of the City 
Deal project. 

In gathering the evidence, a connection has also been made with the skills programmes of other 
City Deals across the UK to understand what has worked well where programmes have already 
begun and there are some examples of good practice that can be shared and possibly utilised in the 
region.  The Belfast City Deal skills programme has identified similar issues to those evidenced 
within the Swansea Bay area specifically around the high number of people with low qualifications 
and the shortage of people with digital skills that are so important to the projects included in the 
Belfast City Deal.  The discussions with other City Deals will continue as a system of good practice 
to share knowledge. 

Theme Existing Arrangements Investment objective Business Needs 

E
c

o
n

o
m

ic
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 

Fewer people with higher 
level qualifications.  

14000 individuals with 
increased level of skills 
(2,000 direct and 12,000 
indirect)  

To increase the number of 
people with higher level 
qualifications to support the 
SDCB projects 

The region has the highest 
number of people in Wales 
with low or no qualifications 

Create at least 3000 new 
apprenticeship 
opportunities to include 
level 3 to degree 

Develop a programme of 
opportunities to upskill the 
existing workforce. 
Attain 100% completion of 
the apprenticeship 
programme and provide the 
employability support to 
individuals to move into full 
time employment. 

High number of individuals in 
low paid employment 

Create opportunities to 
support people into work. 

Increase opportunities 
through the improvement of 
skills levels to increase the 
number of people in higher 
paid jobs 

The jobs in the region have 
a strong reliance on the 
foundational economy or 
public sector. 

Create clear pathways 
within schools focusing on 
the key themes within the 
City Deal portfolio 

Developing the career 
pathways throughout the 
school years to showcase 
the opportunities will 
highlight the new 
opportunities. 

 
Increased uptake of 
school pupils progressing 
into STEM subjects at 
FE/HE 

High number of 
economically inactive people 

Upskill and support 
people into employment 
by creating opportunities 
through project 
community benefits 
programme. 

Working with employability 
programmes to develop the 
opportunities to upskill and 
gain qualifications into 
meaningful jobs. 

Tudalen 66



22 | P a g e  
 

Course frameworks do not 
meet future skills needs and 
lecturers/teachers are not 
fully aware of the new ways 
of working within industry. 

Invest in course 
frameworks to ensure 
they meet the needs of 
the projects and 
employers in the region 
and provide 
upskilling/CPD for 
teachers and lecturers 

Work required to understand 
the gaps and work with 
stakeholders and employers 
to bridge the gap and 
develop new qualifications. 
Identify what upskilling is 
required. 

Delivery of 20 
new/updated course 
frameworks to meet 
industry training needs. 

The area is not known for 
the delivery of any specific 
specialist skills 

Establish at least two 
Centres of Excellence 
based on prioritised 
sectors. 

Centres of Excellence in 
skills required for the City 
Deal projects that are new 
and emerging. 

Ageing Population 
The ageing population is an 
issue for the region if they 
do not work or will not upskill 
to work within the new and 
emerging sectors. 

Deliver pilot programmes 
of new courses to upskill 
existing workforce. 

Map out opportunities for 
key employees to upskill 
through a faster than normal 
process to enable 
businesses to have the 
necessary skills immediately 

Table 3  Synopsis of Business Needs. 

 

The skills landscape across the region is wide and far reaching but can be complex to stakeholders 
not directly involved in the delivery in the schools, colleges, universities and apprenticeship 
programmes.  Alongside the known providers there are a number of programmes to support the 
unemployed and the economically inactive that deliver training to get people into or back to work 
alongside the third sector and private businesses who deliver training to their staff.  The RLSP brings 
the organisations together however there is a need to develop the clear pathway to develop the skills 
pathway for the future across the region and to address the following issues as a regional 
programme to deliver change: 

2.8.1 Course Frameworks not fit for the Future 

A complete analysis of the skills delivered across the region and publication of a Skills Barometer 
for the region will be an essential requirement for the programme.  The work that the RLSP has 
already undertaken with employers identifies a number of key issues with course frameworks that 
need to be re-written and accredited in order to meet the requirements of employers now and in the 
future.  This work is fundamental to the success of the skills and talent programme to ensure that 
we have the right skills, as identified by employers, being taught at all levels across all training 
providers.  The Covid-19 pandemic has highlighted a number of key skills particularly within the 
digital sector that need to be developed as a matter of urgency to meet the changing working 
practices by employers across the region.  The new skills will require new qualifications to be 
developed and up-skilling of teachers and lecturers across the whole education system will be 
imperative. 

2.8.2 Workforce Development 

The workforce in the region is dominated by a high reliance on the public sector, some 30% of the 

workforce (92,200) are employed in this sector.22  A high proportion of individuals are employed in 

what is termed as the foundational economy. The aspirational projects contained within the City 

Deal rely on these specific areas of employment (Construction, Information & Communication and 

Professional; Scientific and Technical activities) that only currently amount to 20% of the 

 
22 https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Business-Economy-and-Labour-Market/People-and-
Work/Employment/Persons-Employed/publicprivatesectoremployment-by-welshlocalauthority-status  

Tudalen 67

https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Business-Economy-and-Labour-Market/People-and-Work/Employment/Persons-Employed/publicprivatesectoremployment-by-welshlocalauthority-status
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Business-Economy-and-Labour-Market/People-and-Work/Employment/Persons-Employed/publicprivatesectoremployment-by-welshlocalauthority-status


23 | P a g e  
 

workforce.23 The aim of the City Deal will be to increase the proportion of people working within 

these sectors creating a more balanced workforce demography which is less reliant on the 

foundational economy and service sectors. These sectors are high value in terms of GVA therefore 

any increase in these sectors will serve to act as a catalyst for the increase in GVA and 

productivity that the region requires. 

 

2.8.3 Covid-19 impact in the region 

The Covid-19 pandemic has had a dramatic effect on the labour market in recent months, the effects 
of which are likely to be felt for a long period of time. A high proportion of workers have been 
furloughed across the region with the most recent statistics24 highlighted in table 4 below: 

County and district / unitary authority 

Employments 

furloughed 

Take-up 

rate 

Carmarthenshire 10,700 14% 

Neath Port Talbot 6,700 11% 

Pembrokeshire 8,600 19% 

Swansea 13,400 14% 

Table 4 – Furloughed workers in the region at 31st January 2021 

The full scale of job losses suffered as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic will likely come to fruition 

following the end of the job retention scheme. The Skills and Talent programme will have an 

important role to play in supporting economic growth over coming years and will in some part 

support the labour force to respond effectively to this unique time the country currently finds itself 

in.  

The RLSP and the Skills team will continue to monitor labour market intelligence and will work with 

the programme team to identify areas that the programme’s activity can serve to support the 

region and its people throughout the recovery period and beyond particularly in upskilling 

individuals into new areas of work which will become more secure in the changing landscape. This 

monitoring of data will also be a key tool to measure the long-term impact of the success of the 

Skills and Talent Programme. 

2.8.4 Business Demography  

The region as a whole is dominated by micro and small sized enterprises and a higher than average 

proportion of self-employed individuals which has an impact on the available workforce. The 

Swansea Bay region has the second highest proportion of self-employed people by City regions, the 

highest being in the Greater London Authority.25 The most recent statistics, indicate that 99% of the 

businesses operating in the region have less than 99 employees. Approximately 18,600 businesses 

have between 1 and 4 employees.26   The Skills and Talent programme will work with a diverse 

range of employers representing micro to large strategic employers in the region to ensure that they 

are aware of the skills needs identified and availability of training through the programme to support 

the supply chain workforce that will be involved within the delivery of the SBCD projects. 

 

 
23 https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Business-Economy-and-Labour-Market/People-and-
Work/Employment/Jobs/Whole-Workforce/workplaceemployment-by-welshlocalareas-industry  
24 https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/coronavirus-job-retention-scheme-statistics-march-2021  
25https://www.ons.gov.uk/employmentandlabourmarket/peopleinwork/employmentandemployeetypes/datasets/sel
femploymentincityregions  
26 Inter Departmental Business Register (IDBR) 2018 

Tudalen 68

https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Business-Economy-and-Labour-Market/People-and-Work/Employment/Jobs/Whole-Workforce/workplaceemployment-by-welshlocalareas-industry
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Business-Economy-and-Labour-Market/People-and-Work/Employment/Jobs/Whole-Workforce/workplaceemployment-by-welshlocalareas-industry
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/coronavirus-job-retention-scheme-statistics-march-2021
https://www.ons.gov.uk/employmentandlabourmarket/peopleinwork/employmentandemployeetypes/datasets/selfemploymentincityregions
https://www.ons.gov.uk/employmentandlabourmarket/peopleinwork/employmentandemployeetypes/datasets/selfemploymentincityregions


24 | P a g e  
 

2.8.5 The Changing Pattern of Employment 

The way that people work continues to evolve and traditional notions of a job for life is increasingly 

unrealistic for many within the labour market. Increasingly the labour market is becoming more fluid 

with dynamic and different ways of working and various ways to be employed, these changes 

produce a number of skills challenges. Research undertaken by the Recruitment & Employment 

Confederation (REC) highlights that ‘13% of British people believe they will be working in traditional 

‘9 – 5’ employment by 2025’ 27  highlighting the awareness of the changing nature of employment 

and the need for flexibility.  

The requirement for business support for emerging and new start up business is evident particularly 

around skills development and support for apprenticeships and work placements.  This is evidenced 

in the 2019 Employment and Skills Plan for the South West and Mid Wales region.  The programme 

will identify the gaps where some of the information is not readily available and ensure that 

businesses are made aware of the opportunities and where support can be received.  An example 

of support that does exist is the Welsh Government Skills Gateway which offers support to business 

and refers to the funded programmes available to support people into work.  

2.8.6 Digital Skills 

Digital skills are becoming increasingly important within the economy with many job roles becoming 
increasingly digitalised. This is a trend that has undoubtedly been accelerated by the recent change 
to working practices as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic.  

If the UK and indeed Wales are to become world-leading digital nations then it is imperative that the 
current and future workforce are equipped with the right skills which allow them to fully take 
advantage of the opportunities that new digital technologies will provide.  

‘Market and institutional challenges mean that many businesses are struggling to obtain employees 
with the right skills to exploit technological opportunities, and sections of society are missing out on 
the benefits of the digital economy.’28 

At a regional level the Swansea Bay City Deal will provide significant opportunities within the digital 
sector, it is therefore imperative that any market and institutional challenges are addressed in a 
timely manner. The Swansea City and Waterfront Digital District and Yr Egin will provide 
opportunities for the development and expansion of high value digital/tech companies which will be 
positive both for employment levels and the economy as a whole. 

2.8.7 Rurality and the rural economy  

The rural economy within South West Wales is of significant importance and encompasses large 
areas of the North and West of the region. It faces a wide range of challenges that are unique to the 
rural setting. These include the issues identified below; 

➢ Declining productivity  

The productivity as measured by GVA within predominantly rural areas is significantly below the 
UK and also below those of more urban areas across the region. This is a trend that is visible 
across the UK. This is in part due to the nature of businesses located within the different areas 
with higher numbers of high GVA industries such as Financial and Professional Services being 
located in the more urban areas. An additional factor is the nature of employment within rural 
areas with a greater emphasis on part time working and self-employment, often relating to 
lifestyle businesses. 

The productivity divide between the urban and rural areas is significant and it produces a 
number of skills related challenges particularly relating to the availability, recruitment and 

 
27 Gig Economy: The ubernisation of work – REC 2016  
28 http://gyitproject.eu/content/o1-research-report-findings 

Tudalen 69

http://online.flipbuilder.com/itet/fdew/mobile/index.html
https://businesswales.gov.wales/skillsgateway/?utm_source=google&utm_medium=cpc&utm_campaign=SkillsGatewayGS


25 | P a g e  
 

retention of appropriately skilled individuals.  The main challenge around the development of 
skills can be linked to how the skills training is delivered particularly in the rural areas. 

Productivity is significantly lower in sectors which are more prevalent in rural areas. Evidence 

from the Welsh Government Priority sector29 statistics show that the GVA per hour worked in 

2015 was £14 in the Food and Farming sector and £15 in the Tourism sector.  This compares 

with £59 for the Financial and Professional Services sector and £50 for the ICT sector which 

are predominantly located within urban areas.   

 

➢ Demographic challenges  

Within the region there are a significant number of demographic challenges with rural areas 
being more likely to have issues regarding an ageing population. This includes a higher 
proportion of over 65’s than the urban averages which affects both the demands on local services 
as well as the proportion of working age residents who can form the workforce. This demographic 
imbalance creates significant challenges both in creating a critical mass required for 
economically viable delivery of interventions but also a requirement for the re-skilling of older 
individuals.    

With the large number of people working from home as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic a 
demand had been created to relocate to more rural areas from the urban towns and cities.  The 
impact of such has not been fully assessed to date. 

➢ Access to services  

Rurality and in particular deep rurality places significant pressures on the delivery of services 
due to a number of different factors which include. 

• Lower population densities make achieving relative economies of scale difficult, this can 
include a low number of clients for services to support, making costs expensive for delivery 
bodies as well as limiting the potential engagement opportunities.   

• Large travel distances between conurbations increases time and cost for accessing services, 
this can hinder the skills development of individuals within rural areas who may encounter 
these barriers.   

• Poor digital connectivity remains a challenge due to the cost of installing fibre broadband, 
issues with ‘the last mile of connectivity’ remain a significant challenge for many in rural 
areas.  

It is essential that the effects of the City Deal are as relevant to the rural as the urban areas of the 

SBCR region. Given the declining productivity experienced in some rural areas the City Deal has 

an opportunity to provide high value employment and expansion opportunities for the individuals 

working in and the SMEs operating in those areas. This will be achieved through the proposed 

supply chain opportunities that could come into fruition as the City Deal Proposal progresses.  The 

RLSP will work with all 8 projects to identify the Community Benefit clauses included within all 

contracts to ensure that there are benefits over and above the economic growth, these would 

include building of strong communities through educational support initiatives: apprenticeship 

training and volunteering opportunities. Furthermore, the advancements within the digital sector 

proposed and the increased connectivity which would manifest as a result of the City Deal could 

improve these areas access to services exponentially. 

2.8.8 Gender Equality and Imbalances  

There is significant evidence to suggest that women and men do not enjoy the same rights and 
opportunities across all sectors of society. For Wales this is especially prevalent within the labour 

 
29 http://gov.wales/statistics-and-research/priority-sector-statistics/?lang=en  

Tudalen 70

http://gov.wales/statistics-and-research/priority-sector-statistics/?lang=en


26 | P a g e  
 

market and economy where there is not an equal representation of men and women across a range 
of roles, sectors and subject areas. 

Women are under-represented within a number of the WG’s priority sectors, Table 5 below30; depicts 
that an area of particular concern is the stark lack of women employed within the Advanced Materials 
and Manufacturing, Construction, Energy and Environment and ICT sectors in comparison to men. 
A disparity within sectoral employment can result in gender pay gaps, a disproportion within skills 
development and a lack of access to the same opportunities and progression.  

 

Sector 2018 

Male Female 

Advanced Materials & 

Manufacturing 

66,000 15,600  

Construction 96,400 12,900  

Creative Industries 36,400  21,600  

Energy & Environment 117,900  37,100  

Food & Farming 36,700  14,800  

Financial & Professional Services 81,100  56,600  

ICT 22,500  8,500  

Life Sciences 8,700  4,800  

Tourism 61,900  65,300  

       Table 5 – Gender Equality Data 2018 

For instance, given the alignment of the aforementioned sectors to the Science, Technology, 
Engineering and Mathematics (STEM) sector this is particularly worrying, given the perceived 
benefits of pursuing a career in this area; ‘the gap in starting salary between men and women who 
have studied STEM subjects and go on to take jobs in those spheres is smaller than in any other 
subjects studied. If more women were to pursue careers in these areas, not only would it give them 
a more balanced portfolio of skills, but it would also narrow the gender pay gap for those in the early 
years of their working lives.’ 31 There is much research to suggest that solving the gender pay gap 
would need a focussed effort on increasing the profile of STEM subjects among young female 
learners. 

The alignment of the 8 City Deal projects to STEM related subjects creates a significant opportunity 
for gender imbalances to be addressed. This is especially true given the programme’s aspiration of 
working with schools to promote the opportunities associated with the City Deal. This could improve 
the perception of STEM related subjects with girls at a very young age, resulting in a higher chance 
of them pursuing a career within the sector later in life. The RLSP has already been working with 
schools in partnership with TATA and VALERO to showcase opportunities for women in engineering 
and technology.  This work has been piloted with 6 schools and 2 colleges in the region the 
programme proposes to roll this work out to all schools across the region. 

 

 

 
30 https://gov.wales/priority-sector-statistics-2018  
31 https://www2.deloitte.com/content/dam/Deloitte/uk/Documents/Growth/deloitte-uk-women-in-stem-pay-gap-
2016.pdf  

Tudalen 71

https://gov.wales/priority-sector-statistics-2018
https://www2.deloitte.com/content/dam/Deloitte/uk/Documents/Growth/deloitte-uk-women-in-stem-pay-gap-2016.pdf
https://www2.deloitte.com/content/dam/Deloitte/uk/Documents/Growth/deloitte-uk-women-in-stem-pay-gap-2016.pdf


27 | P a g e  
 

2.8.9 Duplication of Course delivery 

There is a considerable amount of duplication of traditional course delivery across the region with 
no clear focus on the specific skills required for the City Deal projects, the wider employer need or 
recognition of future skills needs post 5 years. Whilst it is difficult to anticipate the “new skills” 
requirements of 10 – 15 years there has to be a clear pathway of where the region wants to go and 
how it will achieve the goals. The Skills and Talent programme aims to bring together the skills 
training providers across all levels to clearly identify what the skills needs are, how those skills will 
be delivered across the region and by who, this will drive the adaptation of the skills offer in HE, FE 
and training providers to meet the needs as prescribed in the Industrial strategy, Prosperity for All 
Strategy and meeting Industry 4.0 requirements.  The Covid-19 pandemic has clearly identified how 
we can work differently in delivering skills training and lessons learnt should be built on and 
enhanced to ensure that we can provide the best offer of training and upskilling for all across the 
region. 

2.9 Scope for Investment 

The investment by the Governments to enable the Skills and Talent programme and the projects 
that will developed through the programme will be the opportunity to transform the delivery of skills 
in the SBCR through the development of a partnership that will introduce a step change for the future 
workforce in the region.  The management of change and the commitment by stakeholders in the 
way that skills training is delivered in the region will be a key measure of success for the programme.  
This will be achieved by enhancing the strong relationship that the RLSP has with training providers 
in the region to bring forth the new skills and new ways of delivering skills training to meet the 
changing needs of businesses across the region. 

 

Figure 1 – the route for investment to transform the skills landscape 

Table 6 below highlights how the Skills and Talent programme through City Deal funding will support 
the key areas through partnership working with existing projects and organisations.  For the 
programme to succeed there has to be a strong complimentary employability and skills programme 
delivered in parallel to develop a more integrated approach to prioritising the skills landscape for the 
region. 

Tudalen 72



28 | P a g e  
 

Swansea Bay City Region Commitment 
 

UK and Welsh Government Commitment 

Investing in Skills infrastructure 

• Develop City Deal wide intelligence 
into skills gaps. 

• Publish a report into new skills 
training to meet industry and project 
needs linked to the City Deal. 

 

Provision of funding to support the 
development of the skills gaps report. 

Support for learners 

• Encourage participation with all 
learners from schools, FE and HE to 
raise the profile of opportunities in 
the city deal. 

• Encourage participation and 
involvement of young people within 
the skills gap analysis to understand 
their needs and any barriers.  

 

Welsh Government through Careers Wales 
and Working Wales to support the 
development of links with schools.  Work on 
this activity has already started with a pilot 
project in Carmarthenshire with a view to 
reviewing the activity to roll out to other 
county areas. 

NEETs 

• Ensure that training is developed for 
all and that the training is available to 
support people into or back into the 
workplace. 

 
Working relationship with Welsh 
Government Departments to ensure that 
the opportunities are shared. 
Developing opportunities through the 
Kickstart programme that will encourage 
people to follow an apprenticeship 
programme. 

Apprenticeships 

• Build upon the investment in 
apprenticeship by the Welsh 
Government and address the 
additional needs stated by 
employers and industry. 

• Work with projects to encourage the 
development of apprenticeship 
opportunities within the projects. 

• Identify new opportunities for higher 
apprenticeships. 

 

 
Welsh Government to support the 
development of Apprenticeship frameworks 
where they do not exist. 

Table 6 Regional and National Commitment  

The mapping of the City Deal skills gaps and analysis of the training requirements will consider the 
business needs; gender and equality imbalances of people taking up the courses; and the needs 
and availability of the existing and future workforce through re-training and increasing awareness of 
opportunities.  As previously described work has been undertaken with project leads and 
stakeholders over the 18 months to clearly identify where the known skills gaps are, and work has 
also begun on what new skills are required that are not currently delivered or developed on the 
framework. The aim of the Skills and Talent programme is to work within 5 year time line periods 
which would account for the changing skills demands and enable the necessary skills to be 
developed as quickly as possible to meet the project needs.  There will be a requirement to upskill 
the existing workforce in many areas including upskilling the teachers/lecturers who deliver the 
training and this work will be a priority within the first 3 years of the programme.  At the same time 
the necessary frameworks for FE/HE and apprenticeships in the relevant areas will be developed 
and pilot projects will be implemented to deliver the training/upskilling. 

The work with primary and secondary schools in the region to highlight opportunities available 
through the City Deal projects and develop clear pathways to help young people make the right 
choices in schools. This is progressing well with secondary schools submitting ideas of programmes 

Tudalen 73



29 | P a g e  
 

and curriculum developments aligned to the City Deal. The Skills and Talent programme will co-
ordinate this with assistance from the 14-19 co-ordinators for the four encompassing counties. In 
addition, the RLSP have developed both a beginner’s and an advanced learning programme for the 
City Deal which will be delivered as part of the Welsh Baccalaureate that can be used across all 
schools in the region. 

The Skills and Talent programme team will work with ERQ the Regional Education Consortia and 
Local Education Authorities to support schools to drive forward the skills need for the region over 
the next 10 years particularly the new curriculum bringing together the project and industry needs 
and expertise to support schools in the new emerging areas. 

To support the work already undertaken Appendix E details the mapping work of the existing 
provision of training courses delivered through Further and Higher Education and Apprenticeships 
in the region, there are over 2000 options being delivered within the five themes of the City Deal . 
Table 7 below highlight some of the potential key skills requirements already identified for each of 
the project business cases, this document is continually being added to as skills are identified.  The 
list below highlights some of the key skills identified. 

Sector Skills 

Digital Basic IT skills 
Cyber 
Artificial Intelligence 
Digital Forensics 
Machine Learning 
Robotics 
Cloud technology 
Creative skills in the use of technology 

Construction 
 

SMART Housing 
Solar, heat pumps, Smart controls, mechanical and 
electrical systems 
Electrical Vehicles 
Retrofit 

Energy Engineering – specialised for offshore wind, tidal energy, 
marine energy 

Health and 
Wellbeing 

Digital technology in health care 
Digital assimilation 
Connectivity with community support workers 
Digital consultation from hospitals and GP surgeries. 

Smart 
manufacturing 

New ways of manufacturing utilising robotics and new 
Digital technologies. 

Table 7 Key Skills identified to date 

 

2.10 Main Benefits Criteria 

The impact table 8 below shows the wider benefits which can be achieved from the City Deal.  To 
maximise these opportunities the RLSP will, during the lifetime of the project: 

➢ Align priorities and skill supply at all levels to the City Deal and this work will continue throughout 
the City Deal lifespan.   

➢ Support the region in taking increased responsibility for meeting UK and Welsh Governments’ 
skills targets, challenging the HE, FE and training providers to continue designing their curricula, 
work placements, adult education and access courses around the opportunities of the City Deal.  
This will result in a flow of STEM educated young people taking up apprenticeships and graduate 
employment opportunities. 

➢ Empower residents across the region to fully access and benefit from the opportunities of the 
Deal through working with local authorities, schools, businesses and any relevant groups.  

➢ Maximise local benefit where local businesses are most involved – procure local services where 
possible. 

Tudalen 74



30 | P a g e  
 

➢ Generating a higher skilled workforce for the future. 
➢ Developing opportunities for all to follow a career path and gain the necessary qualifications to 

create a better quality of life for all. 
 
 

Tudalen 75



31 | P a g e  
 

Table 8 Main Benefits Criteria. 

 
 
 

 

Investment Objective Main Benefits Criteria 

Objective 1:  
To directly deliver at 
least 2,200 additional 
skills and support the 
development of 
around 14,000 
individuals with higher 
skills Level 2 -8) within 

10 years.. 

Qualitative 
Higher skilled individuals for the jobs created through the City Deal projects. 
Quantifiable 
Increased number of higher skilled individuals from the baseline of 2019 statistics. 
Cash releasing 
Net income 
Non-cash releasing 
Contributes to increase in employment opportunities for local people. 

Objective 2: 
To create 3,000 new 
apprenticeship 
opportunities to 
include level 3 through 
to Degree 
apprenticeships. 

Qualitative 
Opportunities for all to achieve a qualification and skills for a career pathway in a 
vocational occupation. 
Quantifiable 
Number of apprenticeships offered through the construction phase of the projects, higher 
apprenticeships in the specific sectors. 
Cash releasing 
Net income 
Non-cash releasing 
Contributes to increase employment and training/upskilling opportunities for local 
people. 

Objective 3: 
To create at least 2 
Centres of Best 
Practice within 
specific sector(s) to 
develop the region as 
being the best area for 
skills development. 

Qualitative 
Developing a Centre that specialises in the development of fit for purpose skills within a 
particular sector(s). 
Quantifiable 
The number of Centres created in the region to deliver specific sector skills. 
Cash releasing 
Net income 
Non-cash releasing 
The development of the right skills regionally to meet the needs of the City Deal projects 
will retain the skilled individuals to work within the City Deal projects. 

Objective 4: 
To create a clear 
pathway from school 
education through FE 
and HE in the key 
areas of digital, 
energy, smart 
manufacturing and 
life-science and 
wellbeing, through 
engagement and 
development work 
with schools 
increasing the number 
of pupils following 
STEM subjects in 
FE/HE. 

Qualitative 
Inspiring the next generation to take the correct path in their career will be the focus of 
the engagement with schools.  Developing the pathway for children from primary school 
through to secondary school through the introduction of new vocational training 
opportunities specialist workshops etc. 
Quantifiable 
Increased number of children following STEM subjects and/or vocational courses. 
Cash releasing 
Net-income 
Non-cash releasing 
Engagement with children at a young age and incorporating the regional needs within 
the new school curriculum of all schools will develop the future workforce for the region. 

Objective 5: 
To deliver 20 

new/updated course 

frameworks that meet 

industry training 

needs 

 

Qualitative 
Developing new and updating existing frameworks to meet the needs of the projects and 
employers across the region. 
Quantifiable 
The number of new frameworks developed, or existing frameworks updated  
Cash releasing 
Net income. 
Non-cash releasing 
Additional benefit for employers with frameworks that meet their business needs. 

Tudalen 76



32 | P a g e  
 

2.12 Risks and counter measures 

Risk management is an integral feature of the Skills and Talent programme and the programme 
register Appendix F covers all aspects of the business case – Strategic, Economic, Commercial, 
Financial and Management.  The RLSP Board are ultimately responsible for managing all aspects 
of the programme and the project and risk plans will be reviewed on an ongoing basis by the 
Programme Board with any new risks escalated to the RLSP Board where actions will be 
implemented. 

The strategic risks associated with the project are shown in table 9 below together with mitigation 
measures: 

 

Strategic Risk  Mitigation Measure 

Development  

City Deal Funding not 

secured – without this 

funding the programme 

will not be implemented. 

The project funding has been identified and the project will work with 

the Swansea Bay City Deal programme office to ensure that the 

grant funding is available in a timely manner. 

Lack of data to develop 

robust Economic Case 

for the programme that 

will meet the 

requirements of the HM 

Treasury Green Book 

Working with all of the project leads and all stakeholders to gather 

robust evidence to support the Economic Case utilising information 

already gathered by the RLSP regarding gaps in provision together 

with Industry evidence of need. 

Programme Timescale 

slippage 

Slippage of the project would impact on the delivery of training to 

meet the needs of the City Deal projects.  It is intended to regularly 

monitor progress to limit any slippage in the timescale. 

Business Case  

Length of time for 

approval of the 

business case 

Engage with stakeholders to ensure approval of the business case is 

processed in the shortest time possible. 

Lack of resources 

/Insufficient capacity to 

Project manage the 

programme and to 

deliver the stated 

activities and results  

An identified team has been included within the Business case to 

manage the programme and to develop hew areas of working with 

schools. 

Financial  

Organisational and 

financial risks 

associated with taking 

on this project 

The nature of the organisations involved in the Partnership is such 

that relatively high levels of knowledge, skills and experience in 

financial management and probity can be clearly demonstrated.   

 

The programme does 

not secure sufficient 

• The RLSP Board provides strong leadership with all partners 

in place. 

Tudalen 77



33 | P a g e  
 

partner/stakeholder buy 

in. 
• Strong working relationship already exists with education 

sector. 

• Key private sector cluster groups involvement in the 

development of the projects 

• Progress report to every Board meeting. 

Delivery  

Failure to increase the 

number of skilled 

individuals. 

The intention is to increase the number of skilled people across the 

region and particularly higher skilled and the programme has been 

designed to ensure that the correct skills are developed to meet the 

needs of the projects and employers across the region.  The Skills 

Solution group will work to identify the gaps and develop the projects 

to deliver the solutions. 

Lead times in the 

development of a new 

skills offer in the region. 

Identifying the key skills and ensuring that Welsh Government agree 

to include the courses within future provision within FE and 

apprenticeship. 

 

Failure to engage with 

training providers to 

deliver the necessary 

skills development 

The training providers are all engaged with the programme and sit on 

the Provider group and all will have the opportunity to work with the 

programme to deliver the identified skills across the region.  If FE or 

HE institutions do not engage with the delivery recommendations 

alternative options would be considered to procure services from 

other delivery partners. 

Early engagement with all key stakeholders with agreed delivery 

programme timetable. 

Table 9 – Strategic Risk and Mitigation 

2.13 Constraints 

In developing the programme including the investment and proposed activities, consideration has 
been given to a number of constraints specifically that all activities would need to either be self-
financing or be included within the Welsh Government portfolio of courses for further Education in 
the future. The impact of Covid-19 has introduced constraints and the impact will remain for some 
time regarding the way training is delivered and new job opportunities that will exist post Covid-19 
that may not have been considered as career paths by individuals previously. 

The project will be subject to the following constraints: 

• Time delay in the approval of the programme business case. 

• UK and Welsh Government Policy in relation to training and education. 

• Support from the FE and HE sector to implement the changes within their delivery 
mechanism.   

• Securing funding from the private sector. 

• Ensuring that the capacity is present to meet the aims and objectives of the Programme.  
• Covid-19 restrictions on the delivery of training and education. 

2.14 Dependencies 

The future success of the Skills and Talent programme will depend on the close alignment of all 

the City Deal projects and integration with all the existing delivery models and the development of 

a viable and sustainable pipeline of individuals with the right skills to support the City Deal projects 

and the opportunities that are being made available therein. 

Tudalen 78



34 | P a g e  
 

In order to succeed in the approach there has to be a close alignment with all the local and 

national stakeholders to: 

✓ Continuously review and align skills needs and integrate within the regional Skills Plans. 

✓ Review skills needs as a result of Covid-19 pandemic. 

✓ Work with skills partners and employers through workshops; meetings and surveys to 

understand changing demands. 

✓ Work with the RLSP on the Labour Market Information (LMI) to monitor any changes 

across the region. 

✓ Work with the existing and new City Deal projects to monitor any new skills needs. 

The unique nature of the projects is a key driver of the City Deal and this allows for each to work 

independently with the success of one not completely dependent on the success of another. Key 

to the success of the City Deal programme and the increase in economic activity, productivity and 

GVA of the region is an improved skills base across all levels and employment sectors.  Improving 

the skills base is crucial in creating a region that is able to; compete with other areas of the UK and 

attract talent, whilst also retaining the talent that already exists in the colleges; universities; 

workplaces and in the schools where the employees of the future need to be nurtured and 

informed of current and future employment opportunities in the region. 

It is therefore evident that the projects will be supported and further strengthened by one another. 

With this flexibility the projects will be in a favourable position to identify opportunities for 

collaboration therefore creating synergies as opportunities arise, this will promote the free 

movement of people, the growth of businesses and the attraction of inward investment.  

The development of a City Deal for Swansea Bay comes at an important time, as employment and 
skills support are undergoing change with competing demands for different skills and greater 
flexibility in training called for. The Covid-19 pandemic is considered to be one of the most significant 
global events in recent history and its’ impact on the labour market and skills will be demonstrated 
in the Business Case.    

The City Deal gives the region a once in a lifetime opportunity to shape the training offered and 
delivered across the region to ensure that there are opportunities for all to increase their attainment 
levels and the ability to get a well-paid job in the region. The development of clear pathways from 
key stage 1 to key stage 4 and opportunities to retrain while in work will be the key to the success 
of the programme. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 79



35 | P a g e  
 

3.0 Economic Case 

3.1 Overview 

This section of the Business Case assesses the overall economic costs and benefits of the 
programme in line with the HM Treasury’s Green Book.  The section sets out the of those options, 
the critical success factors and the identification of the long and short list and the appraisal of the 
short list through economic assessment. 

The Skills and Talent Programme is a unique programme within the suite of the City Deal projects 
that will deliver a skills training solution offering the best value for money and maximum opportunity 
for the widest range of individuals across the region. A skilled workforce was identified by the projects 
as being a significant success factor and dependency for delivering the aims of the SBCD portfolio. 
The programme will deliver a tailored, sectoral model of engagement involving partnerships with 
employers, industry bodies, schools, colleges, universities and training providers working together 
to transform the skills system.  

3.2 Evidence of demand for the Programme 

This section provides information and evidence which supports the strategic case for the Skills and 
Talent Programme.   

The successful delivery of the SBCD ambitions and regional economic advancement is dependent 

on having the right people with the right skills at the right time. Building on existing strengths and 

established Regional Learning and Skills Partnership, the programme will focus skills development 

across all levels (level 2 – 8) and to drive change across the educational landscape of the SBCR. 

To support and achieve the ambitions of the Swansea Bay City deal having the ‘right people with 

the right skills at the right time’ is essential to the success of the region. The programme will look to 

build upon the existing established structures of the Regional Learning and Skills Partnership 

(RLSP) to focus the development of skills across all levels and to drive change across the 

educational landscape of the City Region.  

The region needs to capitalise on previous and current opportunities that have potential to change 

the economic prosperity of the people and businesses in the SBCR. The region suffers with areas 

of high unemployment, low skills and high rates of economic inactivity. There is a risk that unless 

intervention is immediate and co-ordinated the region risks being ‘left behind’ and to miss the 

opportunities that are presented. The economy and workforce of the region has been impacted 

even further with the Covid-19 pandemic Furlough rates have been significant and there is an 

increased risk of redundancies and increased unemployment following the end of Government 

intervention. The Skills and Talent programme aims to address some of the immediate needs to 

upskill people into new industries, many of the opportunities have been created as a result of the 

pandemic. 

The SBCR continues to perform poorly in productivity and continues to lag behind the UK average 
in GVA terms. Nominal smoothed GVA per filled job in the SBCR was 79.5 as of 2018, compared 
with an indexed value of 100 for the UK.32  Although there has been a positive uplift in relation to 
economic activity and employment within the city region there is little to suggest that this new 
employment is having any significant effect on the productivity and overall competitiveness of the 
region with a risk of trapping individuals into a cycle of low skill, low pay employment. 

Human capital much like financial capital flows to areas where returns are greatest and currently the 
region suffers from a loss of some if its higher skilled individuals to other locations both within Wales, 
across the UK and Internationally. This can be evidenced by reports undertaken by WISERD and 
the lower numbers of higher skilled (NVQ level 4+) residents compared to key economic areas 
across the UK.  An example of where this has happened in our region is when the Murco refinery 

 
32https://www.ons.gov.uk/economy/economicoutputandproductivity/productivitymeasures/datasets/subregionalpro
ductivitylabourproductivitygvaperhourworkedandgvaperfilledjobindicesbycityregion  

Tudalen 80

https://www.ons.gov.uk/economy/economicoutputandproductivity/productivitymeasures/datasets/subregionalproductivitylabourproductivitygvaperhourworkedandgvaperfilledjobindicesbycityregion
https://www.ons.gov.uk/economy/economicoutputandproductivity/productivitymeasures/datasets/subregionalproductivitylabourproductivitygvaperhourworkedandgvaperfilledjobindicesbycityregion


36 | P a g e  
 

closed in Pembrokeshire and the Engineers moved away to other regions and Pembrokeshire lost 
those skills.  When new investors were then attracted to Pembrokeshire there was a difficulty in 
recruiting people with the right skills to support that investment, this continues to be a problem in the 
region with many skilled individuals moving away from the region to higher paid opportunities 
elsewhere in the UK. 

The continued failure to improve the relative economic performance is a strong indicator that the 
current structure of the city region economy is no longer fit for purpose and in need of intervention. 
The Skills and Talent programme must increase the sills level of individuals in the emerging sectors 
and address these areas at an early stage to develop the talent pipeline and to support employers 
to attract the ‘right people with the right skills at the right time’ to minimise the potential risk of 
displacement and ensure sustainability and employment for citizens of the city region.  Table 10 
below describes how to create that High skilled workforce that is required in the region in order to 
meet the City Deal projects. 

 

Table 10 Source: Low skill traps in sectors and geographies: underlying factors and means of escape, 
Anne Green, Institute for Employment Research, University of Warwick 

To respond to this challenge, the Skills and Talent Programme approach is to deliver additional skills 

provision in support of the 8 City Deal Projects, undertake wider skills engagement work, develop 

sector-specific Centres of Excellence and create a pathway for higher skills training. The 8 City Deal 

Projects are focussed on 5 themes Digital, Energy, Construction, Life-sciences and Smart 

Manufacturing. In order to assess the scale of demand and requirement for additional skill provisions 

in these sectors, the Programme sponsors, the Regional Learning and Skills Partnership has 

considered existing skills information in the region. Whilst existing data does not currently specify 

the regional skills deficit individually for these sectors, ONS data of skills levels attained as at 2019 

(source: Nomis March 2021) clearly demonstrates the overall scale of the deficit. Applying the 

percentage differentials used in the data, and when adjusted for population size, the region has a 

skills gap of over 49,000 skills across all levels and sectors when compared with the GB average. 

This is even more pronounced at higher skills levels with a 20,386 shortfall at NVQ Level 4+ and 

14,214 at NVQ Level 3+, totalling 34,600 higher skills’ deficit. 

Tudalen 81



37 | P a g e  
 

Out of total regional employment numbers of 273,000, the 4 City Deal sectors currently account for 

c.52% of regional employment (Economic Acceleration 50,250; Energy 26,700; Life-sciences 49,000 

and Smart Manufacturing 16,500 – Source: EMSI 2020). On a strict pro-rata basis, this would 

indicate there is a c. 25,000 skills deficit across these sectors. However, this number needs to be 

adjusted recognising that vocational skills are primarily chosen at the higher skills levels. The RLSP 

has overall concluded that a sensible stretch target is that the region should aim to create an 

additional c.17,000 skills/apprenticeships (52% of the higher skills levels total deficit of 34,600 skills) 

as a middle to long term planning objective to close the current regional skills deficit within the 5 Key 

Themes. 

Equally however, it has to be recognised that just providing new courses at the higher skills levels 

is unlikely to be effective over the 5-year delivery and 10 year monitoring period as each individual 

can only progress one level at a time and the process from Level 2 to 6 takes several years as a 

minimum. Recognising this inevitable time lag, the Programme needs to support new technical 

courses across skills levels, promote the initiation of an increased STEM ‘skills pipeline’ from school 

level and also enable technical upskilling across the existing workforce through Centres of 

Excellence facilities. 

For Programme planning and costing purposes therefore, the RLSP has developed the following 

breakdown of the required 17,000 skills/apprenticeships across skill levels, 

Course Places by Skill 

Level 

Level 2 2,800 

Level 3 2,800 

Level 4 4,200 

Level 5 2,800 

Level 6-8 1,400 

Total 14,000 

Apprenticeships (level 3 – 6)    3,000 

To assess the additional skills requirements for the 8 City Deal Projects alone, the RLSP has 

undertaken a series of discussions and skills workshops with each of the projects. However, the 

projects overall have not yet reached a sufficient level of development to refine their skills 

requirements into detailed numbers, and due to their innovative nature, by definition, for some the 

scope and capability of future skills needs is very difficult to fully foresee. Whilst therefore it is evident 

from the Programme Business Cases that significant new skills development places and courses 

will need to be created within the 5 Key Themes to enable the projects to deliver their projected 

outcomes, numbers shown are only indicative at this time.  

The projected total new job creation across all the City Deal projects is in excess of 9,000. However 

clearly not all 9,000 will require new skills training and a key criterion of this Skills and Talent 

Programme is that it will only contribute to the development of new skills courses and not duplicate 

existing provision. Based on the current City Deal Projects’ information, the RLSP’s current estimate 

is there will be a requirement for at least 2,200 jobs/skills which are not currently supported by 

existing courses in the region, broken down into skills levels as follows,  

  

  

  

Tudalen 82



38 | P a g e  
 

  

Course Places by Skill 

Level 

Level 2 455 

Level 3 455 

Level 4 683 

Level 5 455 

Level 6-8 228 
 

 

Total                                                                 2,276 
 

 Apprenticeships (level 3 – 6)                 3,000 

3.3 Investment Objectives. 

The following Investment Objectives for the programme were discussed and agreed: 

Tudalen 83



39 | P a g e  
 

 

Table 11 Investment Objectives. 

 

 

Investment Objective Main Benefits Criteria 

Objective 1:  
To directly deliver at 
least 2,200 additional 
skills and support the 
development of 
around 14,000 
individuals with higher 
skills Level 2 -8) within 

10 years.. 

Qualitative 
Higher skilled individuals for the jobs created through the City Deal projects. 
Quantifiable 
Increased number of higher skilled individuals from the baseline of 2019 statistics. 
Cash releasing 
Net income 
Non-cash releasing 
Contributes to increase in employment opportunities for local people. 

Objective 2: 
To create 3,000 new 
apprenticeship 
opportunities to 
include level 3 through 
to Degree 
apprenticeships. 

Qualitative 
Opportunities for all to achieve a qualification and skills for a career pathway in a 
vocational occupation. 
Quantifiable 
Number of apprenticeships offered through the construction phase of the projects, higher 
apprenticeships in the specific sectors. 
Cash releasing 
Net income 
Non-cash releasing 
Contributes to increase employment and training/upskilling opportunities for local 
people. 

Objective 3: 
To create at least 2 
Centres of Best 
Practice within 
specific sector(s) to 
develop the region as 
being the best area for 
skills development. 

Qualitative 
Developing a Centre that specialises in the development of fit for purpose skills within a 
particular sector(s). 
Quantifiable 
The number of Centres created in the region to deliver specific sector skills. 
Cash releasing 
Net income 
Non-cash releasing 
The development of the right skills regionally to meet the needs of the City Deal projects 
will retain the skilled individuals to work within the City Deal projects. 

Objective 4: 
To create a clear 
pathway from school 
education through FE 
and HE in the key 
areas of digital, 
energy, smart 
manufacturing and 
life-science and 
wellbeing, through 
engagement and 
development work 
with schools 
increasing the number 
of pupils following 
STEM subjects in 
FE/HE. 

Qualitative 
Inspiring the next generation to take the correct path in their career will be the focus of 
the engagement with schools.  Developing the pathway for children from primary school 
through to secondary school through the introduction of new vocational training 
opportunities specialist workshops etc. 
Quantifiable 
Increased number of children following STEM subjects and/or vocational courses. 
Cash releasing 
Net-income 
Non-cash releasing 
Engagement with children at a young age and incorporating the regional needs within 
the new school curriculum of all schools will develop the future workforce for the region. 

Objective 5: 
To deliver 20 

new/updated course 

frameworks that meet 

industry training 

needs 

 

Qualitative 
Developing new and updating existing frameworks to meet the needs of the projects and 
employers across the region. 
Quantifiable 
The number of new frameworks developed, or existing frameworks updated  
Cash releasing 
Net income. 
Non-cash releasing 
Additional benefit for employers with frameworks that meet their business needs. 

Tudalen 84



40 | P a g e  
 

3.4 Critical Success Factors 

The critical success factors of the programme will be measured across the next 10 years and will be 
achieved by bringing together the stakeholders to deliver the skilled workforce, without which the 
individual projects would not necessarily succeed.  The aim is to increase productivity and earnings 
and reduce the gap between lowest and highest earners and the number of people without any or 
below level 2 qualifications. 

These were as follows 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Table 12 Critical Success Factors 

The process of identifying the critical success factors was undertaken through initial workshops with 
a number of key stakeholders followed by a number of key meetings to discuss the aims and needs 
of the programme and agreement of the critical success factors.  The following Critical success 
factors were agreed and were ratified at a Workshop of all the training providers and project leads 
held on the 23rd September 2020.   

3.5 Long-listed options 

The following long list options were identified for the scope of the programme and agreed by the 

Senior Programme Team: 

1. Do Nothing – City Deal skills needs supported only by existing programmes/providers  
 

2. Do Minimum – create a dedicated Skills Programme team to enhance employers and 
schools’ engagement with City Deal Projects at an estimated cost of £1m 

 
3. City Deal Skills Fund – create Skills Fund from City Deal resources available to City Deal 

projects only at an estimated cost of £8m 
 

Critical Success Factors 

Strategic Fit • Strategically aligned to the Swansea Bay City Deal 
• Strategically aligned to the Welsh Government Education and 

Skills strategy and Wellbeing and Future Generations Act. 
• Delivers the future skills requirements for the region and the skills 

needs of the 8 projects that make up the City Deal. 
• Increasing the number of people with higher level qualifications  
• Retraining people in the region to give the opportunities to all. 
• Developing resilient learners with a life-long attitude to learning. 

Value for 
Money 

• Reduce the duplication that could occur if all 8 City Deal projects 
managed their own skills programme by bringing together the 
skills requirements across the region. 

• The programme offers Value for money and avoids duplication. 
• Achieve a viable cost benefit ration compared to other options 

Supplier 
capacity 
and 
capability 

• Training providers from across the region are keen to work 
together to achieve the aims of the programme. 

• Reduce costs by delivering skills in a way that meet the needs of 
all employers. 

Affordability • Demonstrate the affordability of the Programme within the 
defined funding arrangements from the City Deal, Public and 
Private Sector 

Achievability • Delivery of option is achievable within the timescale, available 
funding and capacity. 

Tudalen 85



41 | P a g e  
 

4. Supported City Deal Skills Fund - create a dedicated Skills Programme team to enhance 
employers and schools’ engagement and manage awards from the City Deal Skills Fund to 
City Deal Projects only at an estimated cost of £10m 

  

5. Targeted Skills Delivery – create RLSP project team and leverage public/private funding to 
address all City Deal Projects’ skills gaps at an estimated cost of £30m 

 

6. City Deal Ambitious - deliver a full suite of skills training to meet regional needs of all four 
themes of the City Deal at an estimated cost of £153m 

 

7. Do Maximum – deliver a full suite of skills training to redress the entire regional skills gap at 
an estimated cost of £518m. 

 

The long list options chosen are regarded as a reasonable and expansive list of options that could 
theoretically achieve the Programme’s objectives.  These options were considered by  the Senior 
Project Team on the 12th April 2021. The long and short list of options were approved by the RLSP 
Board on the 14th April, 2021 
 

1. Do Nothing will be carried forward as the status quo reference option 

 

2. Do Minimum was rejected as it would not address the known skills deficit thereby 

endangering delivery of City Deal job creation targets. 

 

3. City Deal Skills Fund was seen as valuable in providing extra funding for necessary 

new/additional skills training. However, it would not address Investment Objectives 3-5 and 

was therefore rejected 

 

4. Supported City Deal Skills Fund was seen as potentially able to address all 5 Investment 

Objectives and will be carried forward   

 

5. Targeted Skills Delivery was seen as able to address all Investment Objectives and 

potentially to lever in significant public and private sector match funding, further increasing 

the impact of the Programme. This option was therefore carried forward 

 

6. City Deal Ambitious was seen as desirable and able to provide greater regional impact, 

potentially achieving outputs even beyond those contained in the Investment Objectives. This 

option was therefore carried forward. 

 

Do Maximum was seen as highly desirable in that if successful it could address the entire known 
regional skills gap. However, the financial resources required would be unaffordable and the outputs 
would be well beyond the scope of the City Deal Programme. This option was therefore rejected. 

3.6  Short List Options 

 The following 4 Options were therefore selected to go forward into the shortlist appraisal, 

 Option 1 – Do Nothing 

Option 2 – Supported City Deal Skills Fund 

Option 3 – Targeted Skills Delivery 

Option 4 – City Deal Ambitious 

Tudalen 86



42 | P a g e  
 

 

3.7 Short List Options Appraisal 

A Senior Team Options workshop was held, the attendees were asked to consider the relative 

merits and disadvantages of each option against both the investment objectives and critical 

success factors. Attendees assessed the options on the themes of scope, service solution, service 

delivery, implementation and funding as well as provide general comments around the practical 

and strategic aspects.  

Scope 

The scope of each Option is described below, 

Option 1 – Do Nothing 

To continue to deliver training through existing methods, with no additional funding. The FE, HE and 

training providers would offer the existing frameworks with no update or development of new 

opportunities.  The RLSP would continue to gather data and do a minimal amount of work with 

schools. 

Option 2 – Supported City Deal Skills Fund 

A Skills Programme team would be recruited to enhance the employer and project engagement to 

identify the skills gaps and work with schools to share the opportunities that would be created 

through the City Deal projects.  The eight Projects of the City Deal would deliver their own training 

solutions independently, bidding into the City Deal Skills Fund as required 

Option 3 – Targeted Skills Delivery 

The RLSP would explore the skills needs of all 8 projects and identify the gaps. A dedicated Skills 

Programme team would be appointed who would work with the City Deal Project leads, the wider 

employers and the training leads to develop an action plan to deliver the appropriate solutions to the 

skills gaps identified and using City Deal Programme funds to leverage public and private sector 

match funding. The solutions would be delivered as Skills Programme projects which would be 

developed by the Skills Programme team with key partners. The Programme team would work with 

schools and all education and training providers to highlight the skills needs and co-ordinate the 

future opportunities from the City Deal projects. 

Option 4 – City Deal Ambitious 

This option would allow for the delivery of a full suite of skills training to meet the needs of all industry 

sectors within the five themes of the City Deal – Construction, Energy, Digital, Smart Manufacturing 

and Life Science. The RLSP would explore the skills needs of all these sectors and identify the gaps. 

An enhanced dedicated Skills Programme team would be appointed who would work with public 

bodies, wider employers and the training leads to develop an action plan to deliver the appropriate 

solutions to the skills gaps identified and using City Deal Programme funds to leverage public and 

private sector match funding. The Skills Programme team would work intensively with all schools, 

colleges and universities to raise the awareness of and develop new skills programmes to address 

the sector gaps. 

Analysis 

• Option 1 –     The Do-Nothing Option would not contribute to the achievement of any of the 
Investment Objectives.  

• Option 2 –   Within the scope of Option 2, there would be organisational support for the development 
of apprenticeships and school pathways but the Programme would lack cohesion and fail to deliver a 
strategic solution.  

• Option 3 –    Successful delivery of the Targeted Skills Delivery Option would fully deliver meet 4 of 
the 5 Investment Objectives and achieve all Critical Success Factors. 

Tudalen 87



43 | P a g e  
 

• Option 4 –    The City Deal Ambitious Option would also meet 4 of the 5 Investment Objectives but 
struggle for affordability and raise serious doubts regarding achievability and capacity due to the 
scale of deliverables. 

Results 

 Option 1 Option 2 Option 3 Option 4 

Scope  Do Nothing Supported City 

Deal Skills Fund 
Targeted Skills 

Delivery 

City Deal Ambitious 

Investment 

objectives 

1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 

                    

Critical 

Success 

Factors 

1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 

                    

Service Solution 

The service solution for each option is shown below: 

Option 1  

No change to the existing skills and training provision via the colleges, universities and training 

providers across the region.  Engagement with schools would continue as is via the RLSP but no 

specific projects would be developed, or City Deal funding made available. 

Option 2  

Engage a dedicated Skills Programme team at an estimated cost of £1M to engage with 

employers and project engagement to identify the skills gaps and work with schools to share the 

opportunities that would be created through the City Deal projects at an estimated cost of £500k. 

Develop a Co-ordinated Action Plan to create 2 Centres for Excellence across the City Deal 

themes supported by match funding of £500k. Create an £8M City Deal Skills Fund with suitable 

award criteria and invite applications for training funding to support the requirements of the 8 City 

Deal projects.  

Option 3 

Identify the skills needs and the new qualifications that require to be developed and piloted 

throughout the region to support the eight City Deal Projects in the 5 key themes of Digital, Energy, 

Construction, Life science & wellbeing and manufacturing. Engage a dedicated Skills Programme 

team to engage with employers and project engagement to identify the skills gaps at an estimated 

cost of £1M. Work with schools to share the opportunities that would be created through the City 

Deal projects and support the development by schools of higher skills pathways, with funding of 

£500k. Develop an action plan to deliver the appropriate solutions to the skills gaps identified and 

using City Deal Programme funds (£10m) to leverage public and private sector match 

funding/contribution5 to create a £28M total value Skills Fund for City Deal Projects. The solutions 

would be delivered as Skills Programme projects which would be developed by the Skills 

Programme team working with the City Deal Projects and stakeholders and with key partners. 

Develop a Co-ordinated Action Plan to create at least 2 Centres for Excellence across the City 

Deal themes supported by funding of £500k.  

Option 4  

Identify the skills needs and the new qualifications that require to be developed and piloted 

throughout the region to address the key City Deal themes – Energy, Digital, construction, Smart 

Manufacturing and Life Science. Engage a dedicated Skills Programme team to engage with 

employers and project engagement to identify the skills gaps and work with schools to share the 

Tudalen 88



44 | P a g e  
 

opportunities that would be created throughout the region in the target sectors. Develop an action 

plan to deliver the appropriate solutions to the skills gaps identified and using City Deal 

Programme funds to leverage public and private sector match funding to create a £153M total 

value Skills Fund for the region. The solutions would be delivered as Skills Programme projects 

which would be developed by the Skills Programme team working with both the City Deal Projects 

and other regional projects within the Key Themes. Develop a Co-ordinated Action Plan to create 

at least 2 Centres for Excellence across the City Deal themes.  

Analysis 

• Option 1 –   This would bring no change to the status quo and maintain the current risk to 
          the City Deal Project outcomes if the required new/additional skills are not   
          provided. 

• Option 2 –    This Option would create investment in the development of future skills courses and 
support schools in creating appropriate pathways to the new skills and jobs being 
provided by the City Deal. However, the Programme, relying entirely on the scale and 
type of support bids from the individual City Deal projects would lack cohesion and the 
ability to ensure a sustainable response to the current skills deficit.  

• Option 3 –   The Targeted Skills Delivery Option would meet the need for a co-ordinated 
Programme of skills support across the other City Deal Projects to deliver the skills 
requirements of the City Deal projects in a managed and cost-effective way. It would 
also ensure the sustainability of this delivery by investing in the development of future 
skills courses and supporting schools in creating appropriate pathways to the new 
skills and jobs being provided by the City Deal. Support for a Centre of Excellence in 
any of the 5 key themes would also address the critical need for facilities to support 
upskilling of the existing workforce across the region.  

• Option 4 –   This Option would address the full sector skills deficit in the 5 key 

       themes across the region, within a dedicated Programme. However, it 
                                       would require a scale of financial and human resource which is currently 
                                       unavailable and face serious practical difficulties in delivery, making it a high  
                                       risk solution.  
Results 

 Option 1 Option 2 Option 3 Option 4 

Scope  Do Nothing Supported City 

Deal Skills Fund 

Targeted Skills 

Delivery 

City Deal Ambitious 

Investment 

objectives 

1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 

                    

Critical 

Success 

Factors 

1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 

                    

 

Service Delivery 

The service delivery solution for each option is shown below: 

Option 1  

Training delivered by individual Colleges, universities, training providers and schools as existing. 

RLSP continues to identify skills needs. 

Option 2  

City Deal Projects bid individually into the City Deal Skills Fund and source their training 

requirements from existing providers. Skills Programme team manage funding awards and engage 

with employers and schools to raise awareness of City Deal opportunities. 

Tudalen 89



45 | P a g e  
 

Option 3  

Single delivery model reducing duplication of effort and costs of delivering the training solutions for 

the City Deal projects. Co-ordinated programme delivered by the Skills Programme team working 

with the City Deal Projects directly and with key partners. Skills Programme team manage funding 

awards, engage with employers and schools to raise awareness of City Deal opportunities and 

develop at least 2 Centres of Excellence. 

Option 4  

Single delivery model reducing duplication of effort and costs of delivering the training solutions for 

the City Deal Key Themes. Co-ordinated programme delivered by the Skills Programme team 

working with the City Deal Projects and regional employers and bodies representing the Key 

Themes. Skills Programme team manage funding awards, engage with employers and schools to 

raise awareness of City Deal opportunities and develop at least 2 Centres of Excellence. 

Analysis 

• Option 1 – This Option would bring no additional service delivery capacity to that which is already 
existing. Any new skills requirements would rely entirely on additional investment in new course 
development from existing providers from existing resources which are already fully committed 
to existing courses.  
 

• Option 2 – This Option would put in place a fully resourced and dedicated team to engage with 
stakeholders and schools and with the capability to assess City Deal Projects’ individual 
applications for skills support. However, the opportunity would be lost to co-ordinate an 
integrated programme of skills delivery and leverage the additional financial and human 
resources of regional educational institutions. 

 

• Option 3 – Whilst requiring greater co-ordination and the ability to secure the commitment of 
regional educational stakeholders, the Targeted Skills Delivery Option would put in place co-
ordinated resource to deliver the skills requirements of the City Deal projects in a managed and 
cost-effective way. 

 

• Option 4 – This Option would as with Option 3, deliver a co-ordinated and managed resource and 
potentially addressing the entire regional skills deficit within the 4 Key Themes of the City Deal. 
The scale of this Option however would be likely to demand additional regional capacity and 
resources beyond what is reasonably feasible to deliver within the Programme period.   

  Results 

 Option 1 Option 2 Option 3 Option 4 

Scope  Do Nothing Supported City 

Deal Skills Fund 

Targeted Skills 

Delivery 

City Deal Ambitious 

Investment 

objectives 

1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 

                    

Critical 

Success 

Factors 

1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 

                    

Implementation 

The implementation solution for each option is shown below: 

Option 1  

No change to existing delivery 

Tudalen 90



46 | P a g e  
 

Option 2  

Dependent on individual City Deal Project timetables and when/if applications are made to the 

Skills Fund  

Option 3  

Identify the skills needs across the 8 City Deal Projects and deliver through a co-ordinated Skills 
Fund Programme. Immediate start with delivery over 5 years and monitoring over 10 years. 

Option 4 

Identify the skills needs across the five Key Themes and deliver the training needs for the priority 

sectors identified. Immediate start with delivery over 5 years and monitoring over 10 years. 

Analysis 

• Option 1 – This Option would rely on the maintaining of existing service delivery thereby creating 
no delay in implementation. 
 

• Option 2 – The Supported City Deal Skills Fund could commence implementation once the 
dedicated Project team could be recruited and put into operation (est. 6 months). 
Implementation of the £8M Projects Fund would rely entirely on the timing of applications being 
received from the individual Projects and the willingness of educational providers being prepared 
to deliver new courses on an ad hoc basis. 

 

• Option 3 – This Option could commence implementation once the dedicated Project team could 
be recruited and put into operation (est. 6 months). Discussions with the Educational Provider 
group confirm there is sufficient capacity and commitment across the regional educational 
providers to deliver the £24M programme of projects within the required 5 year delivery 
timetable of the Programme. 

 

• Option 4 – The City Deal Ambitious Option could commence implementation once the dedicated 
Project team could be recruited and put into operation (est. 6 months). However, the scale of 
new skills delivery proposed under this Option would be likely to incur significant time delays due 
to the major increase above current regional capacity required to deliver the Programme, 
potentially extending implementation over a much longer time period.  

 

Results 

 Option 1 Option 2 Option 3 Option 4 

Scope  Do Nothing Supported City 

Deal Skills Fund 

Targeted Skills 

Delivery 

City Deal Ambitious 

Investment 

objectives 

1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 

                    

Critical 

Success 

Factors 

1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 

                    

Funding 

The implementation solution for each option is shown below: 

Option 1  

No additional funding requirement 

Tudalen 91



47 | P a g e  
 

Option 2  

£10M (£1M project team, £1M schools/infrastructure £8m projects fund) dedicated funding 

provided by the City Deal. 

Option 3  

 £10M (£1M project team, £1M schools/infrastructure, £8M projects) dedicated funding provided by 

the City Deal. £16M of other public match funding /in kind contribution, provided by education 

providers/local authorities and £4M of private sector match funding (apprenticeships)  

Option 4 

£153M of City Deal and other public funding, provided by education providers/local authorities and 

private sector match funding (apprenticeships)  

Analysis 

• Option 1 – This Option would maintain existing delivery levels within current third party budgets. 

• Option 2 – The Supported City Deal Skills Fund Option can be delivered entirely from provisionally 
allocated resources from within the City Deal internal budget. 

• Option 3 – This Option would rely on additional match funding being provided by regional 
educational providers in the form of new/additional course provision. The Regional Learning and 
Skills Partnership has already obtained support in principle from the appropriate regional 
organisations who have formed a dedicated Training Provider Group to meet this requirement.  

• Option 4 – Whilst having the potential to deliver much greater regional outcomes, the financial 
sums required to deliver the City Deal Ambitious Option are significantly beyond what the City 
Deal or Provider Group could commit to within existing, or anticipated future, resources. 

 
Results 

 Option 1 Option 2 Option 3 Option 4 

Scope  Do Nothing Supported City 

Deal Skills Fund 

Targeted Skills 

Delivery 

City Deal Ambitious 

Investment 

objectives 

1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 

                    

Critical 

Success 

Factors 

1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 

                    

 

Short List Options Summary 

 Option 1 Option 2 Option 3 Option 4 
 

Scope     

Service Solution     

Delivery     

Implementation     

Funding     

 

 

Tudalen 92



48 | P a g e  
 

 Option 1 Option 2 Option 3 Option 4 
 

Objective 1     

Objective 2     

Objective 3      

Objective 4     

Objective 5      

 

Option 1 would purely maintain existing regional provision and fail to meet any of the Investment 

Objectives of the Programme.  

Option 2 carries the lowest risk in terms of implementation as it can be operated and funded 

entirely from allocated City Deal resources. However, it could only achieve around a third of the 

additional skills required by Investment Objective 1 and would be likely to result in uncoordinated 

and ad hoc delivery of training needs.  

Option 3 was found to have the capability to meet Programme objectives from identified City Deal 

and Partner contributions and provide the increased delivery capacity within the Programme 

timescales. It also can deliver a co-ordinated Programme to maximise cost effectiveness and 

ensure City Deal Projects’ additional skills requirements are managed to align with timing needs.  

Option 4 could meet and significantly exceed all Programme objectives, delivering a major skill’s 

boost for the region. However, the financial and other capacity requirements are beyond what the 

City Deal and its identified Partners could provide and no additional sources of public and/or 

private funding can be identified. The scale of this Option would also raise very severe challenges 

in developing the additional human/organisational capacity required within the required 

Programme timescale. 

Option 3 was therefore chosen as the preferred option as it satisfied all Critical Skills Factors and 

all of the Investment Objectives with the exception of Investment Objective 3 where it received an 

amber rating. 

 

3.8 ECONOMIC APPRAISAL 

3.8.1 Introduction 

This section provides a detailed overview of the costs and benefits associated with each of the 

selected short-listed options.  The detailed information and calculations supporting the conclusions 

reached are attached at Appendix G – Skills and Talent Programme Cost Benefit Analysis. The 

calculations are at this stage of the Business Case process, based on external educational 

statistical data, as it is not possible to calculate specific City Deal Project requirements, costs and 

benefits. Costs are based on usual education costs and benefits are based on national statistics of 

additional income derived from each higher skill level. 

 

3.8.3 Estimating Benefits 

The Skills and Talent Programme has an enabling role in the SBCD in developing the appropriate 

skills supply pipeline to populate the additional jobs necessary for the City Deal projects to achieve 

their objectives from within the region as far as is possible. Consequently, any quantitative and 

qualitative benefits to be derived from the Skills and Talent Programme are effectively already 

‘double-counted’ within these Projects’ declared outcome targets. 

Tudalen 93



49 | P a g e  
 

The approach to the Skills and Talent Programme Business Case therefore is not to evaluate the 

Programme by the benefits delivered directly by the activity but to assess the cost effectiveness of 

the Programme in delivering the required skills (relative to existing skills delivery benchmarks) and 

as the means to compare different delivery options. The benefits to individuals from achieving 

incremental skills qualifications/levels in terms of additional annual remuneration is well 

documented from national statistics and other data. The estimated effects on regional income can 

therefore be calculated on an annual basis and the cost effectiveness of each option deduced. 

To calculate benefits for the Skills and Talent Programme Options reference has been made to 

national statistics on additional income to be derived by individuals as each higher skill level is 

achieved. 

 

 

Table 13 - Summary of Additional Income by Skill Level 

 

These translate into additional incomes as follows, 

NVQ Skill Level Achieved   Additional Annual Income (per person)  

Level 2      £4,160 

Level 3      £1,040 

Level 4      £1,560 

Level 5      £1,560 

Level 6-8     £5,720 

With regard to assessing net benefits for the City Deal region, allowances for leakage, 

displacement, multiplier effects and deadweight are already included within the project Business 

Cases for each of the other City Deal Projects, 

• Leakage – anticipated leakage beyond the City Deal target area is already included within each 

City Deal Project Business Case and can therefore be ignored for the Skills and Talent 

Programme   

• Displacement – as the Skills and Talent Programme will only deliver new skills/courses  

which do not currently exist, displacement is expected to be zero 

Tudalen 94



50 | P a g e  
 

• Multiplier effects – any multiplier effects from economic activity associated with additional local 

income and local supplier purchases have been ignored as all benefits are already included within 

each City Deal Project Business Case 

• Deadweight – as, by definition, the Skills and Talent Programme will only deliver new 

skills/courses for Projects which would not materialise without the City Deal, deadweight is 

assumed to be zero. 

 

To calculate the benefits for each Option, the respective breakdown of skills to be offered by level 

set out in Section 3.2 above has been used. The calculations have assumed skills delivery being 

split evenly over the 5-year delivery period and that additional annual income, for each respective 

additional skills level achieved by an individual learner, is first earned 12 months after completion 

of the respective course.  The annual income growth will be measured over 15 years. For 

example, a full-time Level 3 learner on a 1-year course, and who commenced study in Year 3 of 

the Programme, would first earn additional income in Year 5 of the Programme. Likewise, a part-

time Level 6 learner undertaking a 6 year course, and who commenced study in Year 5 of the 

Programme would not earn additional income until Year 12 of the Programme. 

3.8.3 Summary of Benefits 

 Option 1: Do 

Nothing 
Option 2: 

Supported City 

Deal Skills 

Fund 

Option 3: 

Targeted Skills 

Delivery 

Option 4: City 

Deal Ambitious 

Operational phase impacts 

Additional Income 
Generated p.a. at 
the end of the 
Programme period  

- £1.82M £5.46M £32.12M 

No. of Additional 
Skills Delivered 

- 760 2,276 14,000 

Table 14 – Summary of Additional Annual Income and Skills Delivered 

3.8.4 Estimating Costs 

Methodology 

Costs have been calculated using current course fees for skills being delivered in the region within 

related skills disciplines. The calculations have taken into account the number of skills expected to 

be delivered at each skill level in accordance with the table in Section 3.2 above, broken down into 

the projected proportion of full time and part time learners. 

Optimism Bias 

An allowance for optimism bias of 10% has also been made for each short-listed option to account 

for those risks not reflected.  The extent of optimism bias has been derived through consideration 

of the level of remaining risk and potential for increase. As all costs are based on current, standard 

public sector course costs, the potential for cost increase (excluding for inflation) is very low. Whilst 

the Programme will require the development of new courses, these costs are expected to be 

absorbed by the educational provider and recovered through course fees.  

As with economic benefits, the economic costs for all short-listed options have been appraised 

over a 15-year period (in line with the funding model for the SBCD), after allowing for Optimism 

Tudalen 95



51 | P a g e  
 

Bias of 10% and discounted at a rate of 3.5% in line with the HM Treasury Green Book.  All 

discounted costs have been presented in 2021 prices, with general inflation excluded. 

 

Description, Sources and Assumptions 

The gross costs and funding under each of the short-listed options are described in Table 14 below,   

 

Source of funding Option 1: Do 

Nothing 
Option 2: 

Supported City 

Deal Skills 

Fund 

Option 3: 

Targeted 

Skills Delivery 

Option 4: City 

Deal Ambitious 

City Deal - £10,000,000 £10,000,000 £57,552,000 

Other Public Sector - - £16,000,000 £92,083,200 

Private Sector - - £4,000,000 £4,000,000 

Total gross cost - £10,000,000 £30,000,000 £153,635,200 

Optimism bias (OB) 
@10% 

- £1,000,000 £3,000,000 £15,363,520 

Total gross cost plus 
OB 

- £11,000,000 £33,000,000 £168,998,720 

Table 15 - Summary of Gross Costs and Funding Sources 

 

Net Present Cost Findings (All Public Sector Costs, but excludes private sector 

costs/investment) 

 Undiscounted Value 

(£) 

Net Present Value 

 (£) 

Option 1 – Do Nothing  

Additional Income Generated - - 

Less City Deal funding                      -                      - 

Less  Other Public Sector     

Funding 

                     -                      - 

Total  -  - 

Option 2 – Supported City Deal Skills Fund 

Additional Income Generated £16,537,040 £11,932,301 

Less  City Deal Funding £10,000,000 £9,812,949 

Less  Other Public Sector     

Funding 

- - 

Total £5,537,040 £2,119,352 

Tudalen 96



52 | P a g e  
 

Option 3 – Targeted Skills Delivery 

Additional Income Generated £49,603,320 £35,788,186 

Less City Deal funding £10,000,000 £9,812,949 

Less  Other Public Sector     

Funding 

£16,000,000 £15,700,965 

Total £23,603,320 £10,274,272 

Option 4 – City Deal Ambitious 

Additional Income Generated £292,948,032 £211,535,059 

Less City Deal funding   £57,552,000   £56,482,633 

Less  Other Public Sector     

Funding 

 £92,083,200             £90,372,214 

Total £143,312,832   £64,680,212 

Table 16 – Net Present Cost Findings 

Option Ranking 

The Short-listed Options have been ranked in terms of their respective costs and benefits (All Public 

Sector Costs).  The results are summarised in Table 17. It can be seen that whilst Option 4 ranks 

the highest in terms of costs, it ranks the highest in terms of additional income benefits and overall 

Net Present Value (costs net all benefits), followed by Option 3. 

 

Options Ranking Option 1: Do 

Nothing 
Option 2: 

Supported City 

Deal Skills 

Fund 

Option 3: 

Targeted Skills 

Delivery 

Option 4: City 

Deal 

Ambitious 

Net Present Cost 1 2 3 4 

Additional Income 4 3 2 1 

Net Present Value 4 3 2 1 

Overall Ranking 4 3 2 1 

Table17 – Short-list Options Costs and Benefits Ranking 

Value for Money Assessment 

City Deal Funding only 

 Option 1: Do 

Nothing 
Option 2: 

Supported City 

Deal Skills 

Fund 

Option 3: 

Targeted Skills 

Delivery 

Option 4: City 

Deal Ambitious 

City Deal funding (after allowing for optimism bias) 

Undiscounted City 
Deal funding 

- £10,000,000 £10,000,000    £57,552,000 

Tudalen 97



53 | P a g e  
 

Discounted City 
Deal funding 

- £9,812,949    £9,812,949     £56,475,484 

Additional Income benefits (discounted) 

  £11,932,301 £35,788,186 £211,535,059 

Cost effectiveness 

Cost per net 
additional skill 

- £12,912 £4,460      £4,034 

Benefit/Cost Ratio -         1.216           3.647      3.745 

Table 18 – Value for Money Assessment, City Deal Costs only 

All Public Sector Costs 

 Option 1: Do 

Nothing 
Option 2: 

Supported City 

Deal Skills 

Fund 

Option 3: 

Targeted Skills 

Delivery 

Option 4: City 

Deal Ambitious 

All Public Sector funding (after allowing for optimism bias) 

Undiscounted 
Public Sector 
funding 

- £10,000,000 £26,000,000    £149,635,200 

Discounted Public 
Sector  funding 

- £9,812,949    £25,516,897     £146,854,847 

Additional Income benefits (discounted) 

  £11,932,301 £35,788,186 £211,535,059 

Cost effectiveness 

Cost per net 
additional skill 

- £12,912 £4,460      £4,034 

Benefit/Cost Ratio -         1.216           1.403      1.440 

Table 19 – Value for Money Assessment, All Public Sector Costs 

Option Appraisal Conclusions 

Whilst Option 4 can potentially achieve the highest additional income benefits, this is primarily a 

reflection of the much greater quantum of skills delivery and the additional costs required. Despite 

the much greater scale, and attendant risks of delivering such a large Programme, it achieves only 

a relatively small increase in the Benefit/Cost ratio and reduction in average costs for delivery of 

each additional skill. Consequently Option 3 was chosen as the Preferred Option going forward. 

3.9  QUALITATIVE BENEFITS APPRAISAL 

Methodology 

In line with HM Treasury Green Book supplementary guidance on Business Cases, the qualitative 

benefits under each option have been weighted and scored.  This was undertaken by:  

Tudalen 98



54 | P a g e  
 

• identifying the benefits criteria relating to each of the investment objectives. 

• weighting the relative importance (in %s) of each benefit criterion in relation to each 
investment objective. 

• scoring each of the short-listed options against the benefit criteria on a scale of 0 to 9; and 

• deriving a weighted benefit score for each option. 
 

Qualitative Benefits Criteria 

The weights that were applied to each investment objective / benefits criterion are shown in Table 

20 below.  

 

Investment Objectives Qualitative Benefits Weight 

Total 

100% 

Objective 1:  

To directly deliver at 

least 2,200 additional 

skills and support the 

development of around 

14,000 individuals with 

higher level skills (level 

2-8) within 10 years. 

• Higher skilled individuals for the jobs created 

through the City Deal projects. 

• Increased number of individuals progressing 

into a career offering higher earnings. 

• Increased number of people gaining a 

permanent role, moving from temporary or zero 

hour contracts. 

 

30% 

Objective 2: 

To create 3,000 new 

apprenticeship 

opportunities to include 

level 3 through to 

Degree apprenticeships. 

• Opportunities for all to achieve a qualification 

and skills for a career pathway in a vocational 

occupation. 

• Increased number taking up opportunities 

through the apprenticeship route to further their 

career in specialist areas developed through 

the 8 City Deal projects. 

• Increased number of individuals entering the 

Degree apprenticeship programme. 

 

 

25% 

Objective 3: 

To create at least 2 

Centres of Best of 

Excellence within 

specific sector(s) to 

develop the region as 

being the best area for 

skills development. 

• Developing a Centre that specialises in the 

development of fit for purpose skills within a 

particular sector(s) 

• Increase investment in the region for specialist 

sectors as a result of a specific Centre of 

Excellence for skills. 

• Increased awareness of the job opportunities 

in region as a result of the Centre of 

Excellence through the 8 City Deal projects 

and other associated investment. 

 

 

15% 

Objective 4: 

To create a clear 

pathway from school 

education through FE 

and HE in the key areas 

• The engagement with schools will develop the 

pathway for children from primary school 

through to secondary school through the 

introduction of new vocational training 

opportunities specialist workshops etc. 

20% 

Tudalen 99



55 | P a g e  
 

of digital, energy, smart 

manufacturing and life-

science and wellbeing, 

through engagement 

and development work 

with schools increasing 

the number of pupils 

following the STEM 

subjects in FE and HE. 

• Integrate the City Deal projects within the 

curriculum of every school in the region, to 

generate awareness of the opportunities and 

the new skills that will be needed for the jobs 

created. 

• Increased work experience for pupils and 

students through the 8 City Deal projects to 

raise awareness of the skills needs. 

• Increased number of students studying STEM 

subjects in FE or HE. 

 

 

Objective 5: 

Deliver 20 new/updated 

course frameworks to 

ensure they meet the 

training needs of the 

future. 

• Developing new and updating existing 

frameworks to meet the needs of the projects 

and employers across the region. 

• Reduce duplication and focus training in key 

areas to increase opportunities. 

• Ensure that frameworks are developed to meet 

the longer term (10-15 year) skills needs. 

 

 

10% 

 

 

 

 

Table 20 – Qualitative Benefits Weighting 

 

Qualitative Benefits Scoring 

Benefits scores were allocated to each option according to its contribution to the investment 

objectives.  The scores were based on a scale from 0-9, with the scores to be interpreted as 

follows: 

• 7 – 9:  a significant positive impact; 

• 4 – 6:  a positive impact; 

• 1 – 3:  a marginal positive impact; and 

• 0 :  a neutral / no change position. 
 

The scores for each option were discussed and agreed by workshop participants to confirm that 

the scores were fair and reasonable. 

3.10  ANALYSIS OF KEY RESULTS 

The results of the benefits appraisal are shown in Table 21 below, 

Benefit Criteria and 

Weight 
Option 1: Do 

Nothing 

Option 2: 

Supported 

City Deal 

Skills Fund 

Option 3: 

Targeted 

Skills 

Delivery 

Option 4: 

City Deal 

Ambitious 

Raw (R) weighted (W) 

scores 

R W R W R W R W 

Objective 1:  

To directly deliver at least 

2,200 additional skills and 

support the development 

of around 14,000 

0 0 4 1.2 7 2.1 9 2.7 

Tudalen 100



56 | P a g e  
 

individuals with higher 

skills (level 2 – 8) within 

10 years. 

Objective 2: 

To create 3,000 new 

apprenticeship 

opportunities to include 

level 3 through to Degree 

apprenticeships. 

0 0 7 1.8 7 1.8 7 1.8 

Objective 3: 

To create at least 2 

Centres of Best Practice 

within specific sector(s) 

to develop the region as 

being the best area for 

skills development. 

0 0 6 0.9 6 0.9 6 0.9 

Objective 4: 

To create a clear pathway 

from school education 

through FE and HE in the 

key areas of digital, 

energy, smart 

manufacturing and life-

science and wellbeing, 

through engagement and 

development work with 

schools. Increasing the 

number of pupils 

following STEM subjects 

in FE and HE. 

0 0 5 1.0 7 1.4 7 1.4 

Objective 5: 

Invest in the delivery of 

20 new/updated course 

frameworks to ensure 

they meet the training 

needs of the future. 

0 0 3 0.3 6 0.6 8 0.8 

Total 0 0 25 5.2 33 6.8 37 7.6 

Percentage Scores (Max. 

90%) 

 -  52%  68%  76% 

Rank 4             3 2 1 

Table 21 – Qualitative Benefits Appraisal Key Results 

 

The key considerations that influenced the scores achieved by the various options were as follows: 

Option 1 – This Option would bring no change to the existing scale and scope of skills delivery 

thereby delivering no additional benefits to the regional economy. 

Option 2 – The Supported City Deal Skills Fund would only deliver a proportion (c.30%) of the 

new skills training required. It would provide assistance and support to the development of 

Tudalen 101



57 | P a g e  
 

apprenticeships, Centres of Excellence and Schools engagement but in a responsive rather than 

programmed manner. It would not have the capacity to support investment in new course 

frameworks which would be left to individual organisations without critical mass. 

Option 3 – Targeted Skills Delivery would have a positive, or significantly positive, impact on all 5 

Investment Objectives and enable a co-ordinated and sustainable approach to the timing and 

delivery of Programme outputs.  

Option 4 – This Option would have a positive, or significantly positive, impact on all 5 Investment 

Objectives and deliver major additions in terms of regional skills provision and sustainable 

Programmes resulting in the highest percentage benefits score of all the Options and is therefore 

ranked 1st.  

 

3.11 RISK APPRAISAL - UNQUANTIFIABLES 

A risk analysis has been undertaken that encompasses an assessment of the main risks 

associated with the project.  The analysis has been informed by the guidance contained within the 

HM Treasury’s Green Book.  A workshop was held on the 21st April 2021 to evaluate the risks 

associated with each option.  A summary of the key risk areas is set out below, identifying the risks 

that may affect the successful delivery of the Programme and the overall severity of each risk, 

based upon a judgement of the probability and potential impact. 

Methodology 

Within the risk table below a score has been given to the probability of each risk arising – ranging 

from very high (a maximum score of 5) to very low (a score of 1).  The impact of each risk has also 

been assessed, using the same scoring range as has been used for probability (i.e. a range of 1-

5).  The overall risk score is calculated by multiplying the probability score by the impact score 

(giving a maximum score of 25, representing an extreme risk).  The scores can be banded low, 

medium or high to provide an indication of the overall rating of each risk. 

Risk Scores 

The workshop assigned the risk scores shown in Table 22 below on the basis of participants’ 

judgements and assessments of previous projects.   

Summary of 

Risk Appraisal 

Results 

(Pr. = 

probability) 

Strategic 

Risk No. 

Impact Option 1: 

Do Nothing 

Option 2: 

Supported 

City Deal 

Skills Fund 

Option 3: 

Targeted 

Skills 

Delivery 

Option 4: 

City Deal 

Ambitious 

   Pr. Tot. Pr. Tot. Pr. Tot. Pr. Tot. 

City Deal 

Funding not 

secured – 

without this 

funding the 

programme will 

not be 

implemented. 

1 5 - - 2 10 2 10 5 25 

Project partners 

operating their 

2 4 - - 5 20 3 12 3 12 

Tudalen 102



58 | P a g e  
 

own skills 

projects 

Insufficient 

capacity and 

capability to 

Project manage 

the programme 

and to deliver 

the stated 

activities and 

results  

3 4     - -    4   16 2 8    4    16 

Organisational 

and financial 

risks associated 

with taking on 

this project 

4        3 - - 3 9 3 9 5 15 

The programme 

does not secure 

sufficient 

partner/stakehol

der buy in. 

5 5 - - 5    25 3 15 5 25 

Slippage to the 

project 

timescales 

6 2 - - 4 8 3 6 4 8 

Failure to 

increase the 

number of 

skilled 

individuals. 

7 5 - - 4 20 3 15 3 15 

Lead times in 

the 

development of 

a new skills 

offer in the 

region. 

8 2 - - 5 10 3 6 5 10 

Failure to 

engage with 

training 

providers to 

deliver the 

necessary skills 

development 

9 4 - - 4 16 2 8 4 16 

Total (Maximum Possible Score 161)  -  134  89  142 

Rank  4  2  1     3 

Table 22 – Risks Assessment 

 

Tudalen 103



59 | P a g e  
 

3.2  THE PREFERRED OPTION 

The results of the investment appraisal are summarised in Table 23 below.  

 

Evaluation Results Option 1: Do 

Nothing 
Option 2: 

Supported City 

Deal Skills 

Fund 

Option 3: 

Targeted Skills 

Delivery 

Option 4: City 

Deal 

Ambitious 

Economic appraisals 4 3 2 1 

Benefits appraisal 4 3 2 1 

Risk appraisal 4 2 1 3 

Overall Ranking 4 3 1 2 

Table 23 – Short-list Options Evaluation Results 

 

On the basis of this analysis, the preferred option is Option 3 – Targeted Skills Delivery.  Whilst 

Option 4 – City Deal Ambitious scored 1st in the Economic and Benefits Appraisals, this is purely a 

reflection of the much higher costs and scale of the skills delivery projected. The level of funding 

for a Programme of this scale not currently available and there would be very significant delivery 

risks due to the enormous increase in regional capacity and capability that would be required. 

Option 3 can be delivered within identified costs at a low risk exposure and can deliver the prime 

objective of ensuring sufficient new and additional skills can be provided to meet the needs of the 

other City Deal Projects. This has therefore been selected as the Preferred Option going forward.       

 

3.3 SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS 

The methods used were: 

 

a) ‘switching values’ 

b) scenario planning/ analysis (‘what if ‘) by altering the values of the ‘uncertain’ costs and 

benefits to observe the effect on the overall ranking of options. 

 

Results of Switching Values 

Table 24 below shows the values (in %’s) at which the preferred option would change in the overall 

ranking of options.  As all external Programme benefits are, by definition, included within the other 

City Deal Projects’ Business Cases, the switching values analysis looks only at the impact on each 

Option of changes in public sector cost and additional income benefits to individuals in achieving 

increased skills levels. Under the current Programme approach, new skills would be delivered over 

the first 5 years and aggregate additional income would accumulate year on year to reach 

maximum benefit at the end of the SBCD Programme benefits period in 15 years. To estimate total 

Programme benefits and to calculate the Net Present Value of additional income benefits for 

comparison purposes, benefits have been assumed to occur within 1 year after each learner 

completes the additional skills level course as set out in Section 3.8 above. 

 

Tudalen 104



60 | P a g e  
 

Change in Costs (%) Option 1: Do 

Nothing 
Option 2: 

Supported 

City Deal 

Skills Fund 

Option 3: 

Targeted 

Skills Delivery 

(Preferred 

Option) 

Option 4: City 

Deal 

Ambitious 

Total costs - - - -75.63% 

Additional Learner 
Income  benefits 

- +300% - - 

NPV/C - +15.38% -13.33% - 

Table 24 – Results of Switching Values 

Key Observations 

The assessment of switching values shows that the benefits under the alternative options would 

have to increase considerably, compared to the preferred option, in order to change the overall 

ranking of options. The magnitude of change required is such that Option 3 can be identified as the 

preferred option with a high degree of confidence.  

Results of Scenario Planning 

Tables 25 below summarises the results associated with variances made to increasing costs, the 

time taken to deliver the Programme benefits and reducing overall benefits, as follows. 

• 20% increase in costs   

• 1-year delay in benefits 

• 40% reduction in benefits 

 

Net Present Value (15-
year appraisal) 

Option 1: Do 

Nothing 
Option 2: 

Supported 

City Deal 

Skills Fund 

Option 3: 

Targeted 

Skills Delivery 

Option 4: City 

Deal 

Ambitious 

Base - £2,119,352 £6,348,876 £60,754,534 

Increasing costs by 20% - £156,763 £461,015 £30,598,430 

1-year delay in benefits - £996,275 £2,977,715 £40,906,125 

Reducing benefits by 
40% 

- -£2,653,568 -£7,966,398 -£23,859,489 

Table 25 – Results of Scenario Planning 

 

 

Summary Table of Economic Appraisals 

The results of the economic appraisals above are summarised in Table 26 as follows. As 

explained above, the only benefits captured are additional learner wage benefits as all other 

benefits and unquantifiable factors are contained within the specific Business Cases of the other 8 

City Deal Projects the Skills and Talent Programme will support. 

Tudalen 105



61 | P a g e  
 

Summary of Economic 

Appraisal 

Option 1: Do 

Nothing 

Option 2: 

Supported City 

Deal Skills 

Fund 

Option 3: 

Targeted 

Skills Delivery 

Option 4: City 

Deal Ambitious 

Net Present Value 

(after allowing for 

private sector 

investment) 

- £2,119,352 £6,348,476 £60,754,534 

Public Sector Cost - £9,812,949    £25,516,897   £146,854,847 

Appropriate BCR -          1.216               1.403                1.440 

Significant un-

monetizable 

costs/benefits 

-            N/A                 N/A                    N/A 

Significant 

unquantifiable factors 

-             N/A                 N/A                   N/A 

Risk costs (increased 

education delivery 

costs) - residual 

optimism bias 

(undiscounted) 

-   £1,000,000 

  

    £3,000,000     £15,363,520 

Switching Values 

(preferred option 

only) 

    -13.33%   

Time Horizon and 

Reason 

15 Year Programme Period in accordance with City Deal requirements 

Table26 – Economic Appraisal Summary 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 106



62 | P a g e  
 

4.0 Commercial Case 

4.1 Introduction 
The purpose of the commercial case is to set out the procurement arrangements for the Skills and 
Talent programme.  

 

4.2 Procurement strategy and route 

4.2.1 Programme Investment 

This programme does not contain a high value capital-cost based construction project, instead it 

will deliver several lower cost revenue interventions at project level to achieve the programme 

investment objectives and outcomes. 

The Skills and Talent programme will manage this through delivery of a programme fund 
disseminated to pilot projects following approval by the Programme Board. It is anticipated that pilot 
projects will be led and procured by a third-party stakeholder organisation.  

Table 28 shows the process for delivering the programme - developing proposals for pilot projects 
from the stakeholder groups and to approval by the Programme Board.  

Stage 1 of the process will deliver a skills barometer for the region and will identify any skills gaps 
and potential solutions that will support the successful delivery of the City Deal projects. This 
research will be undertaken by a range of stakeholders and partners but may require the 
procurement of specialist advisers/consultants. If required, the procurement will be managed by the 
lead delivery organisation. 

4.2.2 Lead Delivery Organisation 

The Skills and Talent programme is led by Carmarthenshire County Council on behalf of the four 

regional Local Authorities, two universities and two health boards that make up the Swansea Bay 

City Deal primary stakeholders. Carmarthenshire County Council will ensure that procurements fully 

comply with:  

• Welsh National Rules on the Eligibility of Expenditure – public contracts regulations 2015 

• Welsh Procurement Policy Statement 2019 

• State Aid Rules 

• Procurement Legislation 

• Community Benefits Principles  

• Any other Carmarthenshire County Council, UK and Welsh Assembly Government rules 

and regulations which apply to procurement 

• Procurements will also align to the procurement principles of the City Deal (See 4.2.5) 

 

4.2.3 Procurement Route 

All quotations above the value of £25,000 will be advertised on the Sell2wales website 

(www.sell2wales.gov.uk).  

Pilot project procurements undertaken by the project stakeholders will be in accordance with 

Welsh Government procurement regulations and the lead organisations’ procurement policies. 

Third party procurements and will also be subject to the terms and conditions expected by 

Carmarthenshire County Council and Welsh Government as funding providers and will align to the 

procurement principles of the City Deal. 

 

4.2.4 Collaborative purchasing 

The Programme office team / Skills Solution Group will liaise with pilot project lead delivery 

organisations to assess whether a collaborative approach with other stakeholders might be more 

beneficial to secure economies of scale and enhanced social value. 

 

 

 

Tudalen 107



63 | P a g e  
 

4.2.5 Swansea Bay City Deal Procurement Principles 

The SBCD Procurement Principles have been established for project teams that are developing 

and delivering projects as part of the SBCD Portfolio.  

The Principles (Appendix H) set out how the SBCD expects project teams to take a fresh look at 
the way works, goods and services are specified and procured so that the maximum economic, 
social and environmental benefit to the region can be achieved from the process. The Principles 
look beyond the initial construction phase and apply to the operational service of the assets or 
frameworks when created. 

The five SBCD Procurement Principles are: 
Be Innovative 
Have an open, fair and legally compliant procurement process 
Maximise Community Benefits from each contract 
Use Ethical Employment Practices 

      Promote the City Deal 
 

4.3 Procurement plan and proposed implementation timescales 
The Skills and Talent Programme has a phased approach to delivery. Appendix I details the 

programme implementation plan and timeline following the identification of the key skills required. 

Should the programme require specialist advisers/consultants as described above, this is planned 

to take place between Q3 2021 and Q1 2022 

4.4 Risk Allocation 
Risks can be assigned to three main categories (which are not mutually exclusive) – business, 

service and external risks. 

• Business risks remain with the public sector and cannot be transferred. These include the 

loss of opportunity and poor Value for Money that occurs when schemes under-deliver or 

fail completely. 

• Service-related risks may be shared between the public and private sectors e.g. design, 

demand, and operational risks 

• External risks arise from the wider environment, not the intervention being appraised e.g. 

catastrophe risks and regulatory risks outside of the programmes’ control. 

 

Given the service/revenue nature of any procurements likely to be undertaken by the lead delivery 

organisation it is unlikely that any risk will lie solely with the private sector.  

 

Risk Category Public Private Shared 

1. Design risk   ✓  

2. Development risk   ✓  

3. Transition and implementation risk ✓   

4. Availability and performance risk   ✓  

5. Operating risk   ✓  

6. Variability of revenue risks ✓   

7. Termination risks ✓   

8. Technology and obsolescence risks   ✓  

9. Control risks ✓   

10. Residual value risks   ✓  

11. Financing risks ✓   

12. Legislative risks   ✓  

13. Lead times in the development of a new skills offer    ✓  

14. Failure to engage with training providers to deliver the skills    ✓  

Table 27 Risk allocation 

The programme risks will be managed by the RLSP Board within the existing governance structure 

as detailed in the Management case. 

Tudalen 108



64 | P a g e  
 

Table 28 Skills and Talent Programme Delivery Process 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
  
 

Step 1 – Programme Office Team 
Identify skills needs of the City Deal Projects 

Step 2 – Programme Office team 
Link with RLSP team on LMI data to 

evidence Welsh and UK Skills needs against 
City Deal Projects 

Step 3 - Programme Board 
Consider skills gaps and identify solutions 

Frameworks 
 

Projects 
 

Career Pathway 
 

Centre of Excellence 
 

Step 4 - Programme Office 
To work with stakeholders to identify specific 

projects to deliver the skills needs. 
and receive applications for assessment 

Step 5 – Skills Solutions Group 
Consider the outline projects and assess 

against agreed criteria 

Step 4 - Programme Office 
To work with schools and Careers Wales to 

develop and awareness campaign of the 
opportunities within the City Deal projects 

and the skills requirements and develop the 
necessary support tools for schools across 

the region. 
 

Step 5 - Programme Office 
Work with schools to identify specific projects 

that require funding to meet the skills 
Career pathway and assist with the funding 

applications. 
 

Step 4 - Programme Office 
The skills programme team will identify 

opportunities to develop specific centres of 
excellence for specific sector skills 

Step 5 – Stakeholder Engagement  
Engage with stakeholders on the best 

options and suitability of the proposals. 
Identify cost and private sector input and 

funding. 
 

Step 4 – Skills Solutions Group 
Based on the evidence develop outline 

frameworks for the new skills required with 
initial costs 

Step 5 – Skills Solutions Group 
Consider the outline budget and prepare 

recommendations to the Programme Board 
 

Step 6 - Project Proposal 
Submission of the proposal to Board for 

approval  
 

Step 7 
Programme Team to work with projects on 

key milestones and tender process 

Step 8 
Begin delivery of the pilot project  

Publish a skills Barometer report 
for the region 

T
udalen 109



65 | P a g e  
 

4.5 Service Requirements and Outputs 

 

The initial skills gaps analysis will be undertaken by the programme team and the Skills Solution Group to understand what new/updated skills and 

apprenticeship frameworks are required to inform development of the pilot projects which will be delivered in conjunction with stakeholders. An action 

plan will be developed outlining the gaps and proposals and recommendations.  The assistance of consultants / specialist advisers to help with the 

research may be required and if so, will be procured as described in section 4.2. 

4.5.1 Service Requirements    

The summary of potential service requirements and outputs is described in table 28 below. 

 

Requirement 
➢ 

Timescales 

 
Scope of the 
procurement 
 

Required 
outputs 

Business 
areas 
affected by 
the 
procurement 

Business 
environment 
and related 
activities 

 

Business 
objectives 
relevant to 
the 
procurement 

 

Required 
service 
streams 

Stakeholders 
and customers 
for the outputs 

 

Options for 
variation in 
the existing 
and future 
scope for 
services 

Potential 
developments 
and further 
phases that 
may be 
required 

Outputs   

Research - 
skills needs 
and gaps 
across the 
region 

Phase 1 - 
Q3 2021 – 
Q1 2022 

Procure 
suitably 
qualified 
consultants / 
specialist 
advisers with 
experience 
of skills 
sector 

Consultants 
with 
experience 
of skills 
sector  
 
Development 
of Action 
plan 
 
Develop and 
publish a 
Regional 
Skills 
Barometer 

RLSP 
partners 
 
CCC 
Procurement 
Dept –  
 
Programme 
team (when 
established) 

Formation of 
Skills 
Solutions 
Group 

Develop 
regional 
skills needs 
and gaps 
analysis 
 
Create skills 
barometer 
 
Inform other 
stages of 
programme 
delivery 

RLSP 
partners 
 
Training 
Providers  
 
CCC 
Procurement 
Dept 

RLSP partners 
Regional 
colleges, 
universities, 
and training 
providers 
 
SBCD primary 
stakeholders 
 
SBCD Projects 
& Programmes 
 
Industry 
representatives 
 
Governments 

Ongoing / 
tbc, feeds 
into next 
stages of 
programme 
development 

Feeds into 
next stages of 
programme 
development 
and delivery 

 

Table 29 SBCD Skills Programme Services and required outputs

T
udalen 110



66 | P a g e  
 

4.6 Payment mechanisms and key contractual arrangements 

Payments and key contractual arrangements for procurements directly undertaken by the 

Lead Delivery Organisation will be made in accordance with Carmarthenshire County 

Councils’ existing terms and conditions and any terms and conditions applied by the Welsh 

Government as funding partner. 

Third party procurements at pilot project level will be governed by the terms and conditions 

of the lead delivery partner and will be subject to the terms and conditions expected by 

Carmarthenshire County Council and Welsh Government as funding providers. 

Payments are usually made on the delivery of outputs and may be linked to the delivery of 

key service outputs, as contractually agreed. Payments may be staggered against the 

delivery of key outputs within the overall implementation plan for the programme.  

Contractual arrangements relating to intellectual property rights will be agreed between the 

relevant parties as the pilot projects develop. 

4.7 Accountancy Treatment 

The RLSP will not create any physical property assets through the Skills and Talent 

programme.  The City Deal funding will be used to fund the programme management 

arrangements and to provide financial incentives for the pilot projects.  Any assets funded 

through the projects will be logged on a skills and talent asset register and submitted with 

the monitoring reports. 

4.8 Personnel Implications 

A programme team will be established to service the programme as outlined in the 

Management Case. This process does not include the transfer of any staff or TUPE issues. 

All staff recruited on the programme will be employees of Carmarthenshire County Council. 

As such they will be covered by the Council’s human resources policies and codes of 

practice that are in place for the well-being and management of staff. These policies are 

available to all staff via the Council’s intranet. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 111



67 | P a g e  
 

5.0 Financial Case 

5.1 Introduction to the Financial Case 

This section focuses on the financial elements of the business case and the financial 
implications of the preferred option.  

The funding of this Programme will be operated through Carmarthenshire County Council as 
the accountable financial body and managed on a day-to-day basis through the Regional 
Learning and Skills Partnership Board.   

This Programme is a desk-based research project to identify the skills gaps and work with the 
project leads; training providers and Welsh Government to provide the most appropriate 
training in the region to support the development of talented individuals to take up the roles. 

Following the initial research there will be a requirement to develop specific projects that will 

include courses to meet the Industry needs; update course content where required and re-

accredit those courses.  The projects will also include pilot initiatives to upskill the workforce 

in specific areas, the work with schools will also be supported through this Programme to 

provide more detailed information about the opportunities that will be developed through the 

City Deal and the courses available to them within the region 

5.2 Financial Risk Management and Assurance 

5.2.1 Financial Risks 

The portfolio financial risks are monitored and managed as part of the City Deal’s overall risk 

management arrangements. The City Deal Programmes and Projects maintain, manage and 

monitor their own risks in line with guidance from the Green Book and the City Region’s 

Accountable Body and SBCD Programme Management Office. The project operates a risk 

register and issues log, specifically including any financial risks identified. These risks will be 

monitored and updated with mitigating control actions through the project board as a standing 

item and then regularly presented to the Programme Board and Joint Committee, through the 

Portfolio Management Office.  

5.2.2 Financial Issues, Dependencies and Interdependencies 

The programme board will develop and maintain a log of any financial issues, dependencies 

and interdependencies at both programme and project level. This log will be considered 

alongside the financial risk register outlined above. The Accountable Body will work through 

the Section 151 Officer Working Group to determine any actions necessary to address 

identified issues and will present recommendations for required action to the Programme 

Board, Economic Strategy Board and Joint Committee for approval. Regular updates on 

financial issues, dependencies and interdependencies will also be provided to the Programme 

Board and Joint Committee via the Portfolio Management Office as appropriate.  

5.2.3 Assurance - Internal Audit 

The review of the effectiveness of the system of Internal Control and Governance 

arrangements is informed by the work of the Internal Auditors, from which the Programme 

Lead Authority and Programme board gain assurance. Internal Audit is required to 

undertake their work in accordance with the standards as set out in the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) established in 2013, which are the agreed professional 

standards for Internal Audit in Local Government.  

Tudalen 112



68 | P a g e  
 

As required by these Standards, the Head of Internal Audit as appropriate to the 

Programme Lead Authority will undertake an independent review and report findings to the 

Portfolio Lead Authority and Programme Board. The format of the Annual Report complies 

with the requirements of the Code of Practice. The Strategic and Annual Audit Plans are 

approved annually by the Project lead authority and Project board. In addition, the Internal 

Audit Unit undertakes fraud investigation and pro-active fraud detection work. 

5.2.4 Assurance - External Regulators 

The Audit Wales as External Auditor to the Project Lead Authority reviews and comments on 

the financial aspects of Corporate Governance which include the legality of financial 

transactions, financial standing, systems of Internal Financial Control and standards of 

financial conduct and fraud and corruption. 

5.3 Investment Summary 

The SBCD partnership, through the Internet of Economic Acceleration publication and 

subsequent discussions with the Welsh and UK Governments, has developed a clear strategy 

which has been underpinned by identified interventions to deliver widespread and sustainable 

economic growth across the region. The Skills and Talent Programme is a pivotal part of this 

intervention to support and increase the availability of educational and training opportunity to 

enhance, upskill and support develop across the region.  

The current investment breakdown presented in Table 30. below is based on forecasted  

 

Table 30. Skills and Talent Investment Breakdown 

These figures are the current financial investment forecast which the Skills and Talent 

Programme is currently projecting over its 6-year term and are set within a the original SBCD 

Heads of Terms. Funding elements are subject to change as the programme evolves. On the 

successful approval of the programme business case the Accountable body will release 

Government funding to Programme up to the value of the agreed Programme allocation. 

It is the aim of the SBCD that all Programmes will be delivered in a seven-year period in order 

to maximise the full benefits realisation of the operational schemes during the lifetime of SBCD 

funding, which is to be released to the SBCR from both the UK and Welsh Governments over 

a 15-year period. 

The Skills and Talent Programme has been allocated £10m by the SBCD Programme.  This 

is an initial estimate and may evolve over the course of the Programme as development 

provision and market conditions change. Further funding may be sought from the City Deal or 

other sources in due course, depending on the cost and success of early activities. 

The overall investment composition comprises of three following investment components: 

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26

(£m) (£m) (£m) (£m) (£m) (£m) (£m)

Capital -£               -£              -£              -£                    -£                    -£                    -£                    

Revenue 24,800£         2,920,000£ 5,000,000£ 7,500,000£        7,500,000£        7,055,200£        30,000,000£     

Total 24,800£         2,920,000£ 5,000,000£ 7,500,000£        7,500,000£        7,055,200£        30,000,000£     

Funding 

Swansea Bay City Deal Grant 24,800£         1,170,000£ 1,500,000£ 2,500,000£        2,500,000£        2,305,200£        10,000,000£     

Public Sector -£               1,250,000£ 3,000,000£ 4,000,000£        4,000,000£        3,750,000£        16,000,000£     

Private Sector -£               500,000£     500,000£     1,000,000£        1,000,000£        1,000,000£        4,000,000£        

Total 24,800£         2,920,000£ 5,000,000£ 7,500,000£        7,500,000£        7,055,200£        30,000,000£     

Expenditure 
Total

Tudalen 113



69 | P a g e  
 

• The City Deal investment component consists of the government grants awarded by 

UK and Welsh government totalling £10m. City Deal Grant is awarded to Programmes 

of the fifteen-year term up to a maximum of the allocated value.  

• Public sector investment consists of investment/contributions from local authorities 

and other public funded and public service organisations. Public Sector investment will 

also consist of funding from FE, HE and schools as cash or in-kind match funding for 

projects. Local Authorities may agree that borrowing for a Regional Programme should 

be made by all the Authorities equally or in proportions agreed or that borrowing should 

be carried out by one Authority on behalf of others if they so agree.  The decisions as 

to whether borrowing on behalf of the Programme shall be carried out by one Authority 

on behalf of the others and the proportions shall be determined by the Authorities as a 

matter reserved to the Authorities.  

• Private sector investment includes regional investment from local and national private 

sector partners as well as local higher education providers.   

5.4 Income and Expenditure Summary 

The UK and Welsh Government capital grant contribution to the Skills and Talent Programme 

is awarded over a fifteen-year period and currently forecasted at £10m. Funding will only be 

released from the portfolio on the successful approval of business cases by both the UK and 

Welsh Governments, up to a maximum of the agreed grant allocation. 

An inherent temporary funding gap is recognised with the funding being released to the 

Programme over a fifteen-year period. Carmarthenshire County Council as the Programme 

Lead Authority is responsible for managing the operational cashflows in respect of the 

Programme, with all Authorities contributing to its delivery proportionately. Therefore, 

subsequently accountable for managing inherent risks and the funding gap recognised.  

The Programme expenditure profile is presented in Table 31 and Table 32 below with further 

financial appraisal on the expenditure forecasts at Programme level detailed in Figure 2.  

              

Figure 2. Forecasted Income and Expenditure Summary 

Tudalen 114



70 | P a g e  
 

 
 

5.4.1 Programme Income and Expenditure Forecast 
 

 

 

Table 31  Income and Expenditure Forecast

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 Year 7 Year 8

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26

Capital/Revenue

 Capital Expenditure -                  -                -                -                       -                       -                       -                       

 Revenue Expenditure -                  -                24,800          2,920,000          5,000,000          7,500,000          7,500,000          7,055,200          

 Total                       -                       -              24,800            2,920,000            5,000,000            7,500,000            7,500,000            7,055,200 

Funding

 City Deal Expenditure -                  -                -                1,194,800          1,500,000          1,786,528          746,888              746,888              

 Public Sector Expenditure -                  -                -                1,250,000          3,000,000          4,000,000          4,000,000          3,750,000          

 Private Sector Expenditure -                  -                -                500,000              500,000              1,000,000          1,000,000          1,000,000          

 Total                       -                       -                       -              2,944,800            5,000,000            6,786,528            5,746,888            5,496,888 

Year 9 Year 10 Year 11 Year 12 Year 13 Year 14 Year 15 Total

2026/27 2027/28 2028/29 2029/30 2030/31 2031/32 2032/33

Capital/Revenue

 Capital Expenditure -                  -                -                -                       -                       -                       -                                                  -   

 Revenue Expenditure -                  -                -                -                       -                       -                       -                                30,000,000 

 Total                       -                       -                       -                              -                              -                              -                              -            30,000,000 

Funding

 City Deal Expenditure 746,888         746,888       539,419       497,925              497,925              497,925              497,926                       10,000,000 

 Public Sector Expenditure -                  -                -                -                       -                       -                       -                                16,000,000 

 Private Sector Expenditure -                  -                -                -                       -                       -                       -                                  4,000,000 

 Total           746,888          746,888          539,419                497,925                497,925                497,925                497,926          30,000,000 

Expenditure

Expenditure

T
udalen 115



71 
 

5.5 Investment Breakdown 

5.5.1 City Deal Grant Funding Profile 

The amount of £10m has been allocated regionally for the Skills and Talent Programme. 

These allocations are indicative and can be varied if needed, in-line with the governance 

arrangements set out in the Management Case. Greater clarity on costs and their spread over 

the duration of the Programme is expected to become available once the Programme 

management team is in place and the sub-Programmes are scoped out in more detail.  

Appendix J details the income and expenditure for 2021 – 2026.  The below operational 

expenditure is budgeted over the programme delivery life cycle in respect of a management 

team and relevant supporting costs.  

 

 

5.5.2 Public and Private Sector Funding Profile 

Table 32 – Public and Private sector funding profile 

Skills and Talent

Five Year Operational Budget

Programme Year Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 Year 7

Operational Year Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5

Description 2020/21 20201/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 Total

Programme Management Team 243,553                         221,451                      227,638                      258,992                      265,518                     1,217,151                  

Operational Expenditure (Marketing and Consultancy Fees) 25,000                           50,500                        51,010                        26,530                        27,061                        180,101                      

Total Operational Expenditure 268,553                         271,951                      278,648                      285,522                      292,579                     1,397,252                  

Public Sector Funding Statement

Theme

Public 

Contribution 

(£m) Detail

Schools 3,000,000

Student numbers and delivery models are being developed. Pilot Projects based on 

employment  demand led skills will be developed and project match funding/in-kind 

contributions  will be required from schools.

Further Education 5,000,000

Pilot projects based on employment  demand led skills will be developed and 

delivered by FE and match funding/in kind contributions will be required to support 

the projects.

Higher 

education/Universities
7,000,000

Pilot projects based on employment  demand led skills will be developed and 

delivered by HE and match funding/in kind contributions will be required to support 

the projects.

Employability 

Directive
1,000,000

Demand led training through employment agencies to upskill unemployed to support 

integration back into the workplace, pilot projects will be developed to deliver 

upskilling opportunities. Match finding or in-kind contributions will be sought for the 

projects.

Total 16,000,000£      

Private Sector Funding Statement

Theme

Private 

Contribution 

(£m) Detail

Apprenticeships 4,000,000           

Early discussions with providers are in the process of taking place. Private sector 

investment will constitute of an estimated 3000 demand led apprentices within 

industry which will also include the utilisation of City Deal Programmes and projects as 

part of delivery models.

Total 4,000,000           

Tudalen 116



72 
 

5.5.3 City Deal Funding 

The release of funds from the Accountable Body will follow one of two funding routes. This is 

determined on a Programme basis, dependant on whether funding is being released to a 

regional Programme or a Local Authority Programme. The flow of funding is shown in Figure 

3 below: 

 

 

Figure 3. City Deal Funding Flow 

 
 

5.5.4 Borrowing  

The Joint Committee is responsible for overseeing the proportion of each Council’s 

responsibility for borrowing to provide funding for regional Programmes.  The capital borrowing 

(in respect of the Government funded element) for the City Deal Programmes will be re-paid 

by identified Government funds (UK & Welsh Government) over the 15-year period.  

The exact level of borrowing and the structure and terms of the borrowing is yet to be 

confirmed at this point in time, however it will be calculated based on the amount required per 

relevant local authority and will be in line with the individual local authority’s internal 

requirements.  This is being determined by the four Section 151 Officers of the four regional 

Tudalen 117



73 
 

local authorities.  All borrowing will be agreed based on the principles of the Prudential Code 

and Treasury Management Policy and Strategy for each local authority. When further details 

of the investments required for each Programme are known, a full business case appraisal for 

each individual Programme will be completed and submitted to the relevant local authority for 

approval before submission to the Joint Committee. These full business cases will include the 

detailed funding proposals and requirements of the local authority.   

 
5.5.5 Government Grant ‘Top Slice’  

Annually, up to 1.5% of the Portfolio Investment Fund, specifically the government grants 

awarded, will be earmarked to support the Joint Committee and central administration 

functions required to support the delivery of the Portfolio. This is referred to as 'Top Slice' of 

Government Grants. 

5.5.6 Interest on Investments  

It is recognised that throughout the lifecycle of the City Deal portfolio, cash balances will arise 

through cashflow movements as and when Programmes become live and actual expenditure 

is incurred. Cash balances held by the Joint Committee will be invested through 

Carmarthenshire County Council as the Accountable Body. Income generated from cash 

investments will be ring-fenced and redistributed direct to Programmes based on the allocation 

outlined within the original Heads of Terms. 

 

5.6 Monitoring and Evaluation 

The City Deal portfolio finances will be monitored through the Programme Board and Joint 

Committee, with the Economic Strategy Board also making recommendations on possible 

additional funding opportunities or alternative portfolio expenditure. Regular reports will also 

be presented by the Accountable Body to the regional Local Authority Directors of Finance 

and Regional Section 151 Officer working group. This working group will, in collaboration with 

the Welsh Government and the SBCD PMO, agree the financial monitoring process which will 

be: 

o In line with overall reporting processes for the City Deal  

o Based on best practice principles and guidance on Programme monitoring 

contained within the Green Book 

The monitoring process will allow for the control of Programme cost variations and visibility of 

variations at a portfolio level.  

The monitoring requirements of the Portfolio will require the Programme Authority Lead to 

submit a claim for Programme funding to the Accountable Body at a frequency to be 

determined by the Accountable Body. The claim shall include a progress report on the 

Programme.  The progress report shall include an assessment of risks associated with the 

Programme and details of progress against the agreed outputs.  After the parties have agreed 

in accordance with clause 6.7 of the funding agreement that the Programme has achieved 

practical completion, the Programme authority lead shall not be required to submit claims for 

Programme funding. Thereafter, the Programme authority lead shall complete annual 

monitoring returns in a form to be specified by the Accountable Body prior to the Accountable 

Body releasing any Programme funding to which the Programme authority lead is entitled. 

The annual monitoring forms will include an obligation to report on the progress in achieving 

the agreed outputs. The Accountable Body reserves the right to impose additional monitoring 

Tudalen 118



74 
 

requirements at a frequency and for such period as it considers reasonable in all the 

circumstances. 

In addition to the above monitoring requirement the Accountable Body will require quarterly 

financial updates on Programme spend to support the cashflow management of the portfolio. 

These will detail the actual spend to the period, with forecast outturn over the 15-year duration 

of the portfolio. 

Programme lead authorities are also obligated to support the Accountable Body with any 

progress update reporting as required by the Welsh and UK Governments.  

5.7 Accounting Treatment of Programme Transactions 

5.7.1 Accounting for Income and Expenditure 

All income and expenditure in relation to Programmes outlined within the heads of terms are 

accounted for within the financial statements of the host Programme Lead Authority in respect 

of regional Programmes. 

5.7.2 Revenue Requirement 

The Welsh Government has acknowledged that revenue funding will be required to support 

the delivery of Programmes within the City Deal portfolio. The revenue requirements by 

Programmes of the City Deal are to be managed locally by the Programme Lead Authorities. 

The Welsh Government recognises that the four local authorities will need to manage their 

capital funding to enable revenue expenditure to be supported. To achieve this through the 

use of the Local Authorities’ capital receipts, Local Authorities will reference to the latest 

direction from Welsh Government Ministers on the use of capital receipts. This was issued 

under section 15(1) (a) of the Local Government Act 2003, along with accompanying 

guidance. Specific revenue funding will be detailed within Programme business cases and 

funded through partner investment.  

5.7.3 Balance Sheet Accounting 

Assets generated though the life of the Programme will be accounted of and held in the 

balance sheet of the Local authority in which constituent area the asset is completed. Local 

authorities will account for asses in line with the relevant legislation and accounting standards.  

5.7.4 Value Added Tax 

Value Added Tax (VAT) is included where appropriate within the forecasts and estimates 

demonstrated. For objectives delivered by local authorities, VAT is excluded from forecasts 

and estimates under the application of Section 33 of the VAT act 1994. This Act refunds to 

(mainly) local government bodies the VAT attributable to their non-business activities and 

exempt business activities, providing it is considered an insignificant proportion of the total tax 

they have incurred. Programmes or components of Programmes that are delivered by parties, 

other than that of local authorities, are subjected to VAT in the manner as regulated by the 

industry or sector in which they operate, except where regulatory standards dictate a specific 

treatment or application. Programme business cases will identify and detail the application of 

VAT and include within forecasts and estimates as appropriate. 

5.8 Added Value    

The Skills and Talent Programme is a transformational project breaking new ground in 

drawing together employers and training providers to develop the new key skills required to 

Tudalen 119



75 
 

meet the changing demands of industry as well as developing the skills of the young people 

of the region to be the future workforce.   

5.9 Sustainability 

The development of new training courses identified through the Intervention will enable the 
provision to be incorporated within the mainstream HE and FE provision thereafter as part of 
the permanent offer within the region. 

5.10 Constraints  

 
The project is subject to the following constraints:  
 

• State Aid rules on State Aid as they apply  
 

5.11 Dependencies 

The project is subject to following dependencies that will be carefully monitored and 
managed throughout the lifespan of the scheme: 

• Continued core-funding from Welsh Government for the RLSP. 

• Revenue support for the Project from the Local Authorities 

• Match funding from the private sector. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 120



76 
 

6.0 Management Case  

6.1 Introduction 

The Skills and Talent management case provides key stakeholders with confidence that the 

capability and capacity to govern and deliver the programme are in place and suitable in order 

to meet the benefits realisation proposed throughout the business case, ensuring that they 

and other governance and delivery structures receive information in a timely and transparent 

manner to help them make informed decisions.  

This has been achieved by establishing and operating capacity and capability to implement 

and manage robust governance and approvals through people, structures, strategies and 

processes based around Portfolio, Programme and Project Management (P3M) practices and 

principles. Having these arrangements in place to consider how the programme will manage 

delivery of the business case, organisation, quality, plans, risk, change and progress will 

overcome challenges by reducing complexity whilst ensuring appropriate governance is 

utilised, in doing so will require regular revisits to the strategic, economic, commercial and 

financial cases, and analysis of the Programme throughout delivery. 

The Skills and Talent Programme is strategically owned by the Swansea Bay City Region and 

the Projects and Programmes within the SBCD and operationally managed by the RLSP 

Board and the Skills and Talent Programme Office. This approach will provide flexibility in the 

methodologies that the diverse set of programmes and projects will utilise to manage their 

development and delivery whilst ensuring the ability of the Skills and Talent Programme to 

maximise their own benefits realisations whilst meeting the needs of the wider Portfolio.  

All governance committees have been established and are fully operational. Robust 

governance and approvals of the Skills and Talent Programme are through its people, 

structures, strategies and processes as detailed in the following Management Case. 

The Skills and Talent programme will undergo a Gateway 0 external review on the 23 -25 June 
2021.  The Skills and Talent programme will be reviewed periodically by the CDPO it’s regional 
partners and external stage gate reviews to assess and monitor the success and governance 
of the project and ensure that the ambitions of the Skills and Talent programme are being met 
and that value for money and training needs are being addressed to meet the requirements of 
the individual projects that make up the City Deal and the wider economic success of the 
region. 

The Skills and Talent programme management office have conducted regular reviews 
throughout the preparation of the business case which has helped shape the business case 
and the benefits proposed throughout.  These recommendations have been endorsed by the 
Regional Learning and Skills Partnership Board and will be implemented as part of the 
programme.  A summary of the engagement can be found in Appendix K. 

 

6.2 Governance and delivery structures 

6.2.1. Swansea Bay City Deal Governance Structure 

The SBCD established a legal governance document - the Joint Committee Agreement (JCA) 

- in May 2018. Leading to the establishment of the SBCD Joint Committee, this document 

outlines the principles, rights and obligations of City Deal arrangements. Under the terms of 

the JCA, the four regional local authorities have pledged to work in partnership to discharge 

their obligations to one another, and to the Welsh Government and the UK Government, to 

promote and facilitate projects funded under the SBCD. The management processes and 

Tudalen 121



77 
 

procedures outlined in the JCA include financial cash flow, project approval, risk management 

and progress updates. 

The overarching SBCD governance and delivery structure, as outlined below in Figure 4, is 

operational with established Terms of Reference for the various boards and committees, 

membership/post holders, and plans and processes in place to govern and deliver the SBCD 

portfolio. 

 

Figure 4 – Swansea Bay City Deal Governance Structure 

Governance 
entity 

Purpose  Owner/ 
Lead 

Meets Reports to 

Joint 
Committee 

Executive board with overall 
responsibility for scrutiny and business 
case approvals. It holds the Programme 
(Portfolio) Board and PoMO to account. 
Comprises of the four Local Authority 
Leaders of Carmarthenshire, Neath Port 
Talbot, Pembrokeshire and Swansea. 

Cllr Rob 
Stewart 

Monthly WG/UKG 

Programme 
(Portfolio) 
Board 

Oversees the operations of the SBCD. 
Responsible for reviewing business 
case developments and portfolio 
progress. Consists of the head of paid 
service of each of the eight primary 
partners for the SBCD, and is chaired by 
the SBCD Senior Responsible Owner. 

Wendy 
Walters 

Monthly  Joint 
Committee  

Senior 
Responsible 
Owner 

Appointed by the Joint Committee, the 
SRO is also the chairperson of the 
Programme (Portfolio) Board to 
champion the SBCD and drive its 
successful implementation by 
overseeing portfolio delivery and 
ensuring that appropriate governance 
arrangements are in place. The SRO 
holds the Portfolio Director to account. 

Wendy 
Walters 

- Joint 
Committee 

Portfolio 
Director 

Responsible for delivering the Portfolio 
Business Case and Project 
Development Roadmap. 

Jonathan 
Burnes 

- Joint 
Committee 
and SRO 

Tudalen 122



78 
 

Programme / 
Project 
managers 

Experienced individuals who manage 
the development of the programme / 
project Business Cases and implement 
the Assurance and Approval plan and 
project plan. Also works with the 
Portfolio Director and PoMO to apply the 
Portfolio Development Roadmap. 
Depending on the size and complexity of 
the programme / project the Programme 
/ Project Manager will run the 
Programme / Project Team and manage 
external advisers. 

PM for 
each City 
Deal 
project 

Monthly Project / 
Programme 
Boards / 
SRO and 
SBCD 
Portfolio 
Director 

Portfolio 
Management 
Office 

Responsible for the day-to-day 
management of matters relating to the 
Joint Committee and the SBCD. 

SRO 
Wendy 
Walters 

Weekly 
team 
meetings 

Joint 
Committee/
SRO 

Economic 
Strategy Board 

Private sector advisory body which acts 
as the voice of business. Provides 
strategic direction for the City Deal 
through advice to the Joint Committee 
on matters relating to the City Region. 
The Chair is accountable to the Joint 
Committee. 

Chris Foxall 
(whilst Ed 
Tomp is on 
sabbatical) 

Monthly Joint 
Committee 

Joint Scrutiny 
Committee 

Provides advice, challenge and support 
to the Joint Committee for the SBCD 
Portfolio and associated cross-cutting 
regional projects/programmes. The full 
terms and reference for the Joint 
Scrutiny Committee are set out in the 
Joint Committee Agreement.   

Cllr Rob 
James 

Bi-
monthly 

Joint 
Committee 

Accountable 
Body 

Carmarthenshire County Council is the 
Accountable Body responsible for 
discharging City Deal obligations for the 
four Local Authorities including financial 
and staffing matters.  The Accountable 
body is the primary interface for the City 
Deal with the Welsh and UK 
Governments. 

CEO 
Wendy 
Walters 
 
Leader Cllr 
Emlyn Dole 

- Joint 
Committee 

Table 33 Swansea Bay City Deal Governance 

 

6.2.2 Skills and Talent Programme Governance Structure 

The Skills and Talent programme is one of the 9 projects/programmes that make up the 

Swansea Bay City Deal and is bound by the overarching governance of the City Deal 

Programme model.  The programme will operate in accordance with the Heads of Terms 

agreed by Welsh and UK Governments and the four local Authorities.  The Heads of Terms 

outlines in detail the City Deal’s governance. The Project will conduct its business in 

accordance with the City Deal’s parameters set out by the SBCR Joint Committee, 

Economic Strategy Board and Programme Board. The Skills and Talent governance and 

delivery structure detailed in figure 5 below sits below the SBCD structure represented in 

figure 4.   Carmarthenshire County Council is the lead body for the Skills and Talent 

programme and the Regional Learning and Skills Partnership (RLSP) will be responsible for 

the delivery of the programme.  

Tudalen 123



79 
 

 

Figure 5 Skills and Talent Programme Governance Structure 

 

The Regional Learning and Skills Partnership Board for South West and Mid Wales has been 
in existence since 2010 led by a private sector Board incorporating representatives of further 
and higher education, training providers and education together with key stakeholders in 
employability and training in the region.  The partnership is transformational bringing business 
leaders, education and regeneration partners together to help provide a better future for 
learners and potential learners and people wishing to re-train across the region. The RLSP 
Board provides an oversight and ‘on the ground’ leadership in relation to the skills 
requirements and demands of industry.  

The RLSP will head the governance structure for the project and through the Skills & Talent 
PM will ensure the project is managed effectively, to approved timescales and in line with the 
governance structure of partner organisations. The RLSP will assist all regional and portfolio 
stakeholders with effective decision-making pertaining to the strategic direction and, where 
appropriate, the operational delivery of the scheme in order to successful deliver the benefits 
outlined within this business case.   

To achieve the requirements of the governance arrangements the Board recommended and 
unanimously agreed in a special meeting on the 25th February 2021 that the Terms of 
Reference and membership should be updated to meet the governance requirements to 
deliver the Skills and Talent programme incorporating additional representation from both 
public and private sector including observers from the Portfolio office. The updated Terms of 
Reference for the Board can be found in Appendix L. Membership of the group is detailed in 
Appendix C. The Skills Solution group will have responsibility of working with the Programme 
management team to identify the skills gaps and develop solutions in the form of projects to 
deliver the skills requirements to meet the needs of the projects.  Appendix M details the terms 
of reference and membership of the Skills solution group which includes representation of all 
projects that make up the SBCD. 

The RLSP Board will provide leadership and drive forward the vision of the Skills and Talent 
programme as set out in the Business Case.  The remit of the Programme Board will be 

Tudalen 124



80 
 

delivered under the regional governance framework as set out within the City Deal portfolio 
business case. The Programme Board will have responsibilities which will include but not 
exclusive to:  

• Securing funding and approval for the programme 

• Updating the business case when required in accordance with the requirements 
and expectations of the Welsh and UK Governments and submitting this via the 
agreed governance requirements of the SBCD. 

• Project level approval of all major plans and seeking approval through the 
agreed governance arrangements. 

• Provide resource required to enable the programme delivery 

• Approval of all deviations from agreed tolerances in line with agreed change 
management arrangements. 

• Arbitration on any conflicts that cannot be resolved at Project level and 
escalation through the appropriate channels as required. 

• Reviewing and reporting the programme benefits (outcomes and impacts) and 
whether they are still achievable. 

• Management of major risks and issues at programme level and coordination and 
escalation of risks and issues that are likely to have an impact on other areas of 
the Portfolio. 

• Initial approval and sign off of key project documentation and coordination of 
approval of key documentation from wider stakeholders as required. 

• Approving and funding key changes 

• Guaranteeing equity and catering for the needs of all partners and stakeholders.  

• Ensuring longevity of initiatives and programmes created as a result of the Skills 
and Talent programme. 

 
The Board is supported by nine Industry cluster groups and the membership of each cluster 
group provide valuable insight into the needs of the industry.  Figure 6 below details the 
board’s current breadth of influence across all key employment sectors.  Appendix D details 
the membership of the Cluster groups. 

 

 

Figure 6 Regional Learning and Skills Partnership Board Stakeholder Engagement 

 

The Programme Team will work with the Skills Solutions group, the Provider group, the 
Industry Cluster groups and the employability group on the delivery of the programme that 
will include the following areas of work: 
 

Tudalen 125



81 
 

• Liaise with the Swansea Bay City Deal projects on skills requirements and ensure 

that the programme delivers the skills training required to ensure the success of the 

projects. 

• Work with stakeholders to develop projects to meet the training needs of the region 

and support the development of projects to deliver the skills gap identified. 

• Monitor the performance of the projects against the key programme investment 

objectives to ensure that the programme remains on track to deliver on the proposed 

outputs. 

• Provide support to the RLSP Board to resolve key issues and manage the risks and 

opportunities within the programme. 

• Work with the Regional School Improvement Consortium to prepare a career path 

plan to support project proposals from schools to deliver on the aims of the 

programme in raising the aspiration through highlighting opportunities that will be 

generated through the City Deal projects and other business investments attracted to 

the region. 

• identify opportunities and implement Centres of Excellence in the region that will 

deliver on key programme outcomes 

 

6.2.3   Skills and Talent Programme Delivery Team 

 

The day-to-day operation of the programme will be delivered by the Skills and Talent 
programme management team who will have responsibility for the delivery programme 
working to and alongside the Regional Learning and Skills Programme Board.  The 
Programme Implementation Plan (Appendix I) details the timescale of the programme across 
all five key areas of delivery. 
 
The Programme team will be responsible for: 

- Providing the Portfolio Management office, and ultimately Portfolio Board, Joint 
Committee, UK and Welsh Governments with all necessary reports and 
documentation as outlined within the Programme and Portfolio IAAP documentation 
(Attached as Appendix N) 

- Developing, implementing, maintaining and monitoring a comprehensive 
performance management system and evaluation framework that will operate and 
meet the requirements of both the strategic portfolio and programme level 
governance. 

- Being responsible for the management of the programme including gateway reviews, 
performance and financial management of the delivery programme, undertaking due 
diligence as required 

- Overseeing delivery and ensuring integration between the respective City Deal 

projects. 

- Maintaining appropriate communication, recording and reporting functions with the 

wider stakeholder group through the Portfolio Management office. 

 

The Skills and Talent Programme Management team is led by an experienced and qualified 
Regional Partnership Manager who reports to the Economic Development Manager within 
Carmarthenshire County Council as the Lead Authority for the delivery of the Skills and Talent 
Programme.  Figure 7 below shows the structure of the Programme Team. 

Tudalen 126



82 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 7 – Skills and Talent Programme Management Structure. 

• Regional Partnership Manager 
The post holder is responsible for the development and delivery of the programme; 
for reporting back to the RLSP, the portfolio office and various boards across the City 
Deal as required.  The post holder will ensure that all risks, benefits and value for 
money are monitored and reported on a regular basis and that the work of the 
programme is communicated to all stakeholders and meets the needs determined by 
the wider City Deal projects and programmes. 
 

• Programme Manager 
The post holder will work with the RLSP Programme Board, project partners and 
stakeholders to to identify and deliver the skills needs for the region and the portfolio.  
The skills needs will be deveoped into pilot skills projects to be funded through the 
programme to meet the needs of the 8 City Deal projects and other potential 
investment projects that are attracted to the region. 
  

• Skills Development Project Officer 
The post holder will be responsible for assisting partner organisations and 
stakeholders to identify the requirements of the City Deal projects and programmes 
and develop the projects and ensure that they deliver value for money; the outputs 
and outcomes required within the programme. 
 

• Career Pathway Project Officer 
The post holder will be responsible for working with schools to strengthen the link 
between education and training providers and businesses in the region to work 
together to implement a skills programme for the City Deal area that will develop a 
highly skilled and trained workforce for the future “Creating Ambition and Aspiration 
in All”.  The post holder will liase with the schools across the region to ensure that the 
projects developed enhance  the careen pathways into the  jobs created by the City 
Deal projects.   
 

• Quality and Perfomance Officer  
The post holder will undertake the day to day financial monitoring of the programme 
activities and will gather and record the programme and project outputs. 

The new roles will be recruited into the Programme Office as soon as possible to bring the 
necessary skills and experience  to successfully deliver the programme. 

In addition to these roles Carmarthenshire County Council will provide support services for 
financial leadership. 

Tudalen 127



83 
 

 

6.3 Stakeholders 

The programme builds upon the momentum created through proven collaborative 

working.  The RLSP has a strong employer and stakeholder engagement programme that 

has grown to over the last 4 years to over 3000 businesses and all the training providers and 

public bodies listed below.  

• Further Education providers – Coleg Sir Gar (incorporating Coleg Ceredigion); Gower 

College; Pembrokeshire College; Neath and Port Talbot College and Colegau Cymru 

• Higher Education - Swansea University; University of Wales Trinity St David; 

Aberystwyth University and Open University.  

• Local Authorities - All four Local Authorities: Swansea City Council, Neath Port Talbot 

County Borough, Carmarthenshire County Council and Pembrokeshire County 

Council. There is also engagement with Ceredigion and Powys County Councils who 

have an interest in Skills Development in the region. 

• Welsh Government - The Departments of: Economy and Infrastructure; Health, 

Wellbeing and Sport; and Finance and Local Government, together with the First 

Minister’s Cabinet Office.  

• NHS - Both Swansea Bay University Health Board and Hywel Dda University Health 

Boards covering the entire region from an NHS perspective  

• Private Sector – Welsh Government designated Anchor and Regionally Important 

Companies; Large Companies; Small and Medium Size Enterprises in the 

region.  The chairs of each Sector Cluster groups represent the specific sectors 

within the City Deal themes 

• Third Sector organisations 

• Skills Solution group representing all HE, FE and training providers who will be 

instrumental in working with the programme team to deliver skills solutions 

 

The consultation and engagement with all of the organisations/individuals listed above on 

the proposals for the Skills and Talent programme has been continuous throughout the 

development of the business case, via face-to-face meetings; questionnaires on skills needs 

etc; presentations to forums and meetings and workshops.   

During the development of the business case for the Skills and Talent programme there has 

also been extensive engagement with over 300 schools across the region and the RLSP 

officers now regularly attend Head teacher group meetings and meet with schools to discuss 

the programme and opportunities for schools to work with the programme team including the 

development of a Welsh Language level 2 and 3 courses delivered in school for Engineering 

and Digital studies.   

The RLSP have also worked with the 14-19 school co-ordinators to develop specific 

modules for the support of the City Deal projects within the Welsh Baccalaureate and will 

utilise this network of co-ordinators to ensure the training developed and delivered, best 

meets the needs of the wider portfolio. 

6.4 Use of Special Advisors 

Specialist advisors may be necessary in the following areas: 

• Technical  

o Capture of requirements  

o Production of service definitions 

Tudalen 128



84 
 

o Production of procurement documentation 

o Interaction with stakeholders and national and regional governments 

o Supplier dialogue 

• Legal 

o Draft contracts 

o State aid guidance and judgements 

o Procurement support in dialogue and contract finalisation 

Where advisors or consultants are engaged this will be completed in line with the procurement 

principles agreed for the SBCD and the Programme office will engage with the PoMO in order 

to ensure the appointment provides maximum benefit for the programme. 

In addition, the SBCR Economic Strategy Board (ESB) is made up of business sector 

representatives from sectors including energy, finance, life sciences, manufacturing, housing 

and economic acceleration. While also applying private sector rigour to the assessment of City 

Deal programme / project business cases, the ESB makes recommendations to the Joint 

Committee for consideration. New members were appointed as specialist advisers in 2020 to 

broaden the representation of further sectors including skills and micro businesses. All ESB 

member appointments used an open recruitment exercise process and all members are 

unpaid for their SBCD contributions.  

The Skills and Talent programme has already engaged with a number of Specialist Advisors 
in the preparation of the Business Case these include: 

• DS Swallow on the Economic Case 

• Joe Flanagan Advisor to Welsh Government  

• Belfast and Edinburgh City Deal management office. 

 

6.5 Monitoring and Evaluation for Performance and Benefits 

The Programme Monitoring and Evaluation processes will replicate those set out in the SBCD 

Monitoring and Evaluation Plan. The Programme SRO will ensure that the Programme team 

makes appropriate arrangements to collate, monitor and communicate project milestones, 

deliverables and benefits realisation. The M&E Plan aligns to the revised HM Treasury Green 

and Magenta books and the UK Government’s Project Delivery Guidance.  

The M&E plan will be applied at programme / project level where a two-way cascade of outputs 

and outcomes will be required to understand performance and impact of the SBCD portfolio. 

The tools and templates used to monitor and evaluate activity are summarised in the table 

below, along with their frequency: 

Document Frequency 

1. Highlight report Monthly 

2. Monitoring report Quarterly 

3. Annual report Annually 

4. Benefits realisation plan / 
register reported 

Continually updated and reported quarterly  

5. Milestone evaluations  Year 5 and 10 

 

Tudalen 129



85 
 

The M&E requires the delivery of two primary components. Firstly, Progress and Performance, 

which is a periodic assessment of programme / project implementation and performance 

activities; and secondly, Programme Benefits Realisation/Evaluation, which is the evaluation 

of their results in terms of relevance, effectiveness, and impact. The Monitoring and Evaluation 

undertaken by the programme board will provide the SBCD governance structures, namely 

the Portfolio Management Office, Joint Committee, Programme (Portfolio) Board, Economic 

Strategy Board and Joint Scrutiny Committee, with information on the progress and impact 

made towards achieving the programmes milestones, outputs and outcomes. This information 

will be shared with the Welsh and UK Governments through periodic updates and reviews, 

while also being made available to the public on an annual basis. Regular updates on the 

following will be provided in line with the overarching Portfolio M & E requirements: 

• portfolio communications,  

• RAG rating and summary status,  

• key achievements,  

• key planned activities,  

• key risks and issues,  

• output deliverables,  

• IAAP,  

• Covid-19 Impact Assessment,  

• financial monitoring.   

The benefits management will assess and review the outcomes that result in change that were 

achieved as part of the activities undertaken by the Skills and Talent Programme. The 

milestones to review benefits will be agreed at programme level to ensure that benefits are 

realistically and meaningfully measured however benefit progress will be reported at least 

quarterly to the PoMO. These will be aligned to the IAAP and external stage gate review 

process. Further work will take place in Q2 2021/22 to further develop the plan and associated 

strategy, map, profile, and reports as required.  

6.6 Benefits Realisation 

The measurement of benefits within the delivery of the Skills and Talent programme is 

problematic as there are so many moving parts that change and, benefits could be assigned 

to. The key SMART objectives will be fully laid out under the Prince 2 methodology so that the 

delivery can be clearly identified in terms of benefits that will be derived and delivered from 

the programme. 

An overarching benefits measure should be the number of skills increases across the region, 

linked with the ongoing ability of the individuals benefiting from the Skills and Talent 

programme and percentage of these who are able to successfully obtain employment in the 

intended areas of industry as a direct result of the programme.  

All Skills and Talent Programmes are enabling in its nature, if there is no demand or beneficial 

use that can be made, then it would have no value. As such many of the outputs and benefits 

identified are predicated on the future opportunities to the regional workforce maximising the 

opportunities provided by the skills and talent programme in order to produce relevant training 

in order to meet the current skills gaps and provide suitably qualified individuals to take up the 

employment opportunities available as a result of the wider portfolio.  

In order to measure a benefit against the intended outputs of the programme, ideally a base-

line position would need to be identified, so that improvement or degradation can be seen. 

Whilst the setting of a base-line would be open to interpretation there is data readily available 

Tudalen 130



86 
 

in order to determine the level of skills and talent within the region. It is therefore proposed 

that metrics will be devised in order to assess the impact of the Skills and Talent programme 

and the population of South West Wales. The Benefits Register for the programme is attached 

as Appendix O. 

The lasting legacy of the programme will be the establishment of a range of new skills 

courses across a range of sectors. The collaborative working established as part of this 

Programme will ensure that all sectors will be involved in the development of “fit for purpose” 

skills training for the region in order to achieve the City Deal aim of developing a highly 

skilled workforce for the region. This joint working will provide lasting improvements 

including: 

• Improved efficiency through integration of services and elimination of duplication 
which will benefit the learner and the potential learner by freeing up resources. 

• Flexible and responsive approach to the needs of the local labour market by bringing 
learning and skills together with regeneration opportunities in the region. This will 
benefit the learner by delivering relevant learning opportunities with greater potential 
for employment.  

• Availability of informative, up to date information to help in strategic planning; 
ensuring the most appropriate learning opportunities and progression routes are 
available for learners in the region, which will benefit the learner by providing 
pathways.  

• The Programme ultimately aims to inform the restructuring of provision of publicly 
funded training and education in the region. 

• Flexible and responsive approach to the needs of the local labour market by bringing 
learning and skills together with regeneration opportunities in the region, which will 
benefit the learner by delivering relevant learning opportunities with greater potential 
for employment.  

 

The measurement is not meant to be comprehensive but focus instead on the most likely 

indicators that would give a positive measure of the benefits realised through undertaking the 

Skills and Talent Programme. The measurement itself will need to be carried out through a 

sample based primary research programme, which will allow additional benefits to surface. 

The measurement of benefits from the programme will be over a long period of time as there 

are a number of areas e.g. schools where the impact will not be seen until the child in 

primary school in 2021 will be leaving school in 12 years.  However, there will be some more 

immediate measurements where upskilling can take place to support specific projects from 

within existing workforce or people in colleges and universities that will become aware of 

opportunities within the City Deal projects during their study years. 

6.7 Risk Management Strategy 

Risk is defined as the uncertainty of outcome, whether positive opportunity or negative 

threat, of actions and events. The risk must be assessed in respect of the combination of the 

likelihood of something happening, and the impact which arises if it does actually happen. 

Risks that have occurred, or will do so imminently, are no longer risks, but are known as 

issues. They are no longer risks because the uncertainty about whether they will occur has 

been removed. 

A Programme Risk Management Strategy will be developed in Q2 2021/22 and will be aligned 

to HMT Green Book supplementary guidance: The Orange Book, the strategy defines the risk 

appetite and tolerance of the SBCD, as well as principles of the strategy, along with a 

Tudalen 131



87 
 

documented process for identifying, assessing, addressing and measuring risk and issues. 

The risk management strategy is led from the top of the SBCD and is embedded in standard 

practices and processes of the SBCD governance arrangements.  

The purpose of the Risk Management Strategy is to provide a systematic and effective method 

by which risks can be consistently managed throughout the SBCD Portfolio. This will: 

• Inform stakeholders how risks will be identified, assessed, addressed and managed 

• Provide a common strategy and understanding of portfolio management that will 

enhance the capability, willingness and understanding of appropriate governance and 

assurance, thereby increasing the likelihood of successful delivery of the SBCD 

aligned to the regional ambitions 

• Detail the key roles and responsibilities of groups and individuals associated with the 

SBCD with respect to programme management 

• Signpost to additional resource, support and training 

• Provide standard definitions and language to underpin the risk management process 

• Implement an approach that follows best practice 

The Programme risk management approach is based on P3M (Portfolio, Programme and 

Project) and HM Treasury Orange Book best practices. 

 

Figure 9 HM Treasury Orange Book Best Practice model 

 

The Programme currently has a risk register (Appendix F) and regularly reports on prioritised 

risks through the PoMO in order to inform the Portfolio Stakeholders of pertinent risks. The 

risk register is sub-divided into the themes of development, implementation, operational and 

financial. Each risk provides details of the description, owner, consequence and a review 

update, accompanied by a scoring based on probability and impact for each risk. The 

identification and assessment of risks in the risk register are aligned to the UK and Welsh 

Government Guidance, where risks fall into three main categories: 

 

Tudalen 132



88 
 

Business 
Business related risks remain with the public sector and can never be 
transferred 

Service 
Service-related risks occur in the design, build, funding and operational 
phases of a portfolio and may be shared between the public and private 
sectors 

External 
External systemic risks affect all society and are unpredictable and random 
in nature 

Business-related risks that can affect the scope, time and cost at portfolio level are 

summarised as follows: 

• Displacement as a result of competing with other regions across Wales 

• Lack of funding from Welsh and UK Governments 

• Lack of inward investment from private sector 

• Lack of quality human capital within the region 

• Political conflict at Regional, UK and Welsh Government levels 

 

Service-related risks will be managed by each of the City Deal programmes and projects, 

who will maintain, manage and monitor their own risk registers in line with guidance from the 

Green Book and the PoMO governance arrangements. Any significant risks that may affect 

portfolio deliverables will be escalated to the PoMO and reported and managed via the 

regional governance structure. 

External Risks:  Although not within the control of the programme, external risks are 

significant to delivery and are therefore monitored accordingly.  Key business risks captured 

in a programme risk register are: 

• Length of time for the approval of the business case 

• Failure to increase the number of skilled individuals 

• Lead in times in the development of new skills offer in the region. 

 

The Programme Risk Register is considered by the PoMO for escalation to Programme 

(Portfolio) Board and Joint Committee on a quarterly basis. This document is also available 

for review by Joint Scrutiny Committee. 

The Programme Risk Register is an important tool and will form part of the Skills and Talent 

Risk Management Strategy and helps the Programme board and PoMO document risks, track 

risks and address them through preventative controls and corrective measures.  

The Programme board will also establish an issues log in order to facilitate the management 

of issues at the appropriate time. The Issues Log will be updated quarterly and reported on by 

exception through the Governance structure via the Quarterly Monitoring Report. 

6.8 Communication Plan 

All communications relating to the Skills and Talent programme will be managed through 
Carmarthenshire County Council media team working alongside the PR departments of the 
four Local Authorities and the SBCD Portfolio office. 

6.9 Contingency 
The City Deal’s Joint Committee Agreement outlines contingency arrangements for several 

scenarios. The scenarios identified include the withdrawal of a programme / project from the 

City Deal portfolio, the change of a project local authority lead, and the withdrawal of a partner 

Tudalen 133



89 
 

from the City Deal portfolio. All these scenarios and contingency arrangements will be 

managed via the portfolio and programme / project risk registers and issue logs and reported 

accordingly. Risk management is not the same as contingency planning. Risk management is 

about identifying, assessing, avoiding, mitigating, transferring, sharing and accepting risk; 

while a contingency plan is about developing steps to take when an actual issue occurs. 

The RLSP Programme Board will establish contingency plans to develop steps to take when 

an issue occurs.  

When a Risk has undergone all mitigation and the situation becomes certain, the occurrence 

becomes an issue. The Programme Board will advise the PoMO as soon as reasonably 

practicable and adopts the following process to ensure the issue is managed appropriately. 

 

 

 

Figure 8 Moving a Risk to an Issue 

All four local authorities are subject to the JCA, which will be kept under review.  

The Programme office will work with the PoMO to ensure that contingency arrangements are 
considered and in place at a programme and project level to manage potential scenarios in 
the development, delivery and operational phases of the individual schemes. 
 

 

6.10 Post Funding/Continuation Strategy 

The City Deal funding will facilitate the identification of projects to identify the skills gaps and 
the development of new skills within the region.  The development of a new framework of skills 
to meet industry needs will be funded through pilot development from the City Deal and future 
delivery would be adopted through the Welsh Government Skills funding programme.  

It is anticipated that the RLSP will demonstrate ongoing commitment to the training schemes 
developed through the City Deal Skills and Talent programme by working with Welsh 
Government Skills and Training to include all new frameworks developed as part of the 
programme within mainstream delivery in FE colleges and work- based learning 
apprenticeships in future. 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Prog. Board 

agree risk is an 

issue 

Escalate to PoMO 

/ Governance 

Boards  

Agree resolution 

with PoMO and 

add to issue log 

Continue working 

towards 

resolution  

Tudalen 134



90 
 

 

Glossary of Terms 

RLSP  Regional Learning and Skills Partnership 

CDP  City Deal Portfolio 

FE  Further Education 

HE  Higher Education 

DCMS  Department of Culture Media and Sport 

SBCD  Swansea Bay City Deal  

CPD  Continuous Professional Development 

CDPO  City Deal Programme Office 

PM  Programme Management  

PoMO  Portfolio Management Office 

M & E  Monitoring and Evaluation 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 135



91 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 136



   
 

 

 
 
 

LLOFNODWR Y SIARTER CREU LLEOEDD 

 

Y Pwrpas:  

I geisio cael cymeradwyaeth i Gyngor Sir Caerfyrddin fod yn llofnodwr i Siarter Creu Lleoedd 
Cymru. 

Argymhellion y Bwrdd Gweithredol:  

Fod Siarter Creu Lleoedd Cymru yn cael ei chymeradwyo gyda Chyngor Sir Caerfyrddin yn 
dod yn llofnodwr.  

 

Y Rhesymau:  
Er mwyn adlewyrchu darpariaethau polisi cynllunio cenedlaethol a darpariaethau’r Cynllun 
Datblygu Lleol Diwygiedig wrth iddo ddatblygu.  

Angen ymgynghori â'r Pwyllgor Craffu perthnasol - Amherthnasol 

Pwyllgor Cynllunio – 24/6/21 dim sylwadau 

 

Angen i’r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad         OES  

Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad                          OES  

YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:-  
Y Cynghorydd Mair Stephens [Dirprwy Arweinydd] 

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth 
Yr Amgylchedd 
 
Enw Pennaeth y 
Gwasanaeth: 
Noelwyn Daniel 
 
Awdur yr Adroddiad: 
Ian Llewelyn 

 
Swyddi: 
 
Pennaeth Cynllunio 
 
 

 
Rheolwr Blaen-gynllunio 

 
Rhifau ffôn: 01267 246270 
 
Cyfeiriadau E-bost: 
NDaniel@sirgar.gov.uk 
 
 
01267 228816 
IRLlewelyn@sirgar.gov.uk  

 

SIR CYNGOR 
 

14 GORFFENNAF 2021 

Tudalen 137

Eitem Rhif  6.2

mailto:NDaniel@sirgar.gov.uk
mailto:IRLlewelyn@sirgar.gov.uk


   
 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

COUNTY COUNCIL 
14TH JULY 2021 

 

SIGNATORY TO THE PLACEMAKING CHARTER 

1. BRIEF SUMMARY OF PURPOSE OF REPORT. 
 

The report seeks endorsement for the Council to become a signatory of the Placemaking 
Charter Wales.  In so doing the report outlines the context and purpose of Placemaking, its role 
and status in national and local planning policy as well as the content of the Charter. 
 
Planning Policy Wales along with the redrafting of the National Development Framework / 
Future Wales 2040 emphasises placemaking on a strategic level with the objectives of 
becoming better connected, reducing travel and boosting local services to enhance identity, 
character, sense of community and collective ownership through the planning system. This is 
reinforced through the Council’s emerging Revised LDP.  Wellbeing is central to the 
placemaking process and gives importance to the need to work together to build better places. 
This is achieved by applying a holistic approach to the planning process: one that considers the 
context, function and relationships between a development site and its wider surroundings. 
 

2. Introduction 
Planning Policy Wales (PPW) along with Future Wales 2040 emphasises the importance of 
placemaking on a strategic level with the objectives of becoming better connected, reducing 
travel and boosting local services to enhance identity, character, sense of community and 
collective ownership through the planning system. 
 
Wellbeing is central to the placemaking process and gives importance to the need to work 
together to build better places. This is achieved by applying a holistic approach to the planning 
process: one that considers the context, function and relationships between a development site 
and its wider surroundings.  
 
PPW sets out the Welsh Government approach to achieving well-being and sustainable 
development via placemaking. It emphasises the legacy of development for people and the 
environment.  
“Good placemaking is…essential to the delivery of sustainable development and achieving 
improvements in the well-being of communities”. (PPW Ed.11, Paragraph 2.10) 
 
Building Better Places - Placemaking and the Covid-19 recovery: Welsh Government (July 
2020) identifies Placemaking as its central theme. 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 138



   
 

 

Future Wales 2040 through its policies and guidance emphasises the role of Placemaking as 
being at the heart of the Planning system.  Policy 2 of Future Wales identifies its role in shaping 
urban growth and regeneration by positively contributing towards building sustainable places 
that support active and healthy lives, with urban neighbourhoods that are compact and 
walkable, organised around mixed-use centres and public transport and integrated with green 
infrastructure.   
 
The principles of Placemaking and the pledges set out through the Placemaking Charter below 
closely align to our Well-being Objectives as follows: 
 
Start well 
1. Help to give every child the best start in life and improve their early life experiences 
2. Help children live healthy lifestyles 
Live well 
3. Support and improve progress, achievement, and outcomes for all learners 
4. Tackle poverty by doing all we can to prevent it, help people into work and improve the 

lives of those living in poverty 
5. Create more jobs and growth throughout the county 
6. Increase the availability of rented and affordable homes 
7. Help people live healthy lives (tackling risky behaviour and obesity) 
8. Support community cohesion, resilience & safety 
Age well 
9. Support older people to age well and maintain dignity and independence in their later years 
In A Healthy, Safe & Prosperous Environment 
10. Look after the environment now and for the future 
11. Improve the highway and transport infrastructure and connectivity 
12. Promote Welsh Language and Culture 
Corporate governance 
13. Better Governance and use of Resources 
 
The preparation of the Revised LDP has seen Placemaking and components such as design 
quality, sustainability, Net Zero Carbon Agenda and Green and Blue Infrastructure embedded 
into planning policy.  In this respect, it is interwoven within the emerging Plan and is a guiding 
principle which will be supported through a range of planning guidance documents to assist in 
interpreting what’s required and its implementation, as well as a Manual for communities in the 
preparation of their own Place Plans.  
  
Alongside the emerging LDP, Carmarthenshire already has a strong delivery focused outlook 
centred on a one team or collective approach.  The Council through its regeneration priorities 
and the ten towns strategy has continued to adopt a progressive approach to developing 
responsive and place-led proposals. Indeed, the emerging post Covid Recovery Plan provides 
a mechanism for ensuring our response reflects people’s well-being and a principle through 
which to plan the future shape of communities.   
 
The principles of Placemaking reflects not only the five ways of working set out within the Well-
being and Future Generations Act and the principles for sustainable development but also the 
need to plan and collaborate in creating places, particularly post Covid. This is reflected in the 
Recovery Plan which states: 

Tudalen 139



   
 

 

 
“How we help deliver the recovery and growth of the economy is as important as what we 
deliver –and consideration of the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act has reinforced the need 
to work differently to recover and improve the sustainable economic well-being of 
Carmarthenshire. The Act puts in place the five ways of working to ensure that public bodies 
take account of the long-term, work to prevent problems occurring or getting worse, take an 
integrated and collaborative approach, and consider and involve people.” 
 

3. What is Placemaking? 
 

Placemaking is the proactive and collaborative approach in the creation and management of 
places. This process relates to more than the planning services function of the Council, and in 
fact relates to multiple service areas across local government that contribute to the shaping of 
the built and natural environment and creation and management of places. Placemaking is a 
key process to deliver the duties of the Well Being of Future Generations Act, and its multi-
disciplinary approach aligns well with the delivery of the Council’s corporate priorities which 
require the multifunctional approach in their delivery, but also as we plan for recovery post 
Covid.  
 
It represents an integrated approach to the planning and design of development and spaces, 
focused on positive outcomes. It draws upon an area’s potential to create high quality 
development and public spaces that promote people’s prosperity, health, happiness, and well-
being in the widest sense.  
 
Placemaking is an approach that considers the context, function and relationships between a 
development and its wider surroundings. The principle is just as relevant for smaller scale 
development, as the themes involved seek to ensure all new development contributes 
positively as far as possible to the creation of place. 
 
Placemaking should not be about adding additional cost to a development, but rather it should 
be about integrated and collaborative thinking from the earliest possible stage. Placemaking 
adds social, economic, environmental, and cultural value to development proposals resulting in 
benefits which go beyond a physical development boundary and embed wider resilience into 
decisions. 
 

4. The Placemaking Charter Wales 
 

The Charter has been developed by the Design Commission for Wales and the Welsh 
Government in collaboration with the Placemaking Wales Partnership, which is made up of 
stakeholders representing a wide range of interests and organisations working within the built 
and natural environment. The Charter reflects the collective and individual commitment of these 
organisations to support the development of high-quality places across Wales for the benefit of 
its communities. 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 140



   
 

 

Launched in September 2020 by Julie James, Minister for Housing and Local Government it 
has been signed by a range of organisations and bodies including Local Authorities, Home 
Builders Federation, Natural Resources Wales, National Park Authorities, Chartered Institute of 
Highways and Transportation, Institute of Highway Engineers, Housing associations, Future 
Generations Commissioner for Wales, Royal Society of Architects Wales, Welsh Government, 
Welsh Local Government Association and national/regional house builders.   
 
The Charter includes the following six principles:  
 

 People and Community: The local community are involved in the development of 
proposals. The needs, aspirations, health, and well-being of all people are considered at 
the outset. Proposals are shaped to help to meet these needs as well as create, 
integrate, protect and/or enhance a sense of community and promote equality.  

 

 Location: Places grow and develop in a way that uses land efficiently, supports and 
enhances existing places and is well connected. The location of housing, employment 
and leisure and other facilities are planned to help reduce the need to travel. 

 

 Identity: The positive, distinctive qualities of existing places are valued and respected. 
The unique features and opportunities of a location including heritage, culture, language, 
built and natural physical attributes are identified and responded to.  

 

 Movement: Walking, cycling and public transport are prioritised to provide a choice of 
transport modes and avoid dependence on private vehicles. Well designed and safe 
active travel routes connect to the wider active travel network and public transport 
stations and stops are positively integrated.  

 

 Mix of Uses: Places have a range of purposes which provide opportunities for 
community development, local business growth and access to jobs, services and 
facilities via walking, cycling or public transport. Development density and a mix of uses 
and tenures helps to support a diverse community and vibrant public realm.  

 

 Public Realm: Streets and public spaces are well defined, welcoming, safe, and 
inclusive, with a distinct identity. They are designed to be robust and adaptable, with 
landscape, green infrastructure and sustainable drainage well integrated. They are well 
connected to existing places and promote opportunities for social interaction and a 
range of activities for all people.  

 
In signing the Placemaking Charter an organisation agrees to support placemaking in all 
relevant areas in working and promote the six placemaking principles in the planning, design 
and management of new and existing places. Once the organisation has agreed and signed 
the Charter, the name of the organisation will be added to the list of signatories on the 
Placemaking Wales partnership website and will be sent the Charter logo to use. 
A copy of the Charter can be found in Appendix A. 
 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? NO  
APPENDIX A – PLACEMAKING CHARTER 

Tudalen 141



   
 

 

 
 
 

IMPLICATIONS 

 

2. Legal   
Placemaking as a requirement is already embedded into the national planning policy through 
Planning Policy Wales and Future Wales (National Development Framework) as well as the 
emerging Revised LDP.  Planning Policy Wales along with Future Wales emphasises 
placemaking on a strategic level with the objectives of becoming better connected, reducing 
travel and boosting local services to enhance identity, character, sense of community and 
collective ownership through the planning system in line with the objectives of the Well-being 
of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. 
 

3.Finance   
 The Authority is already implementing the principles as a consequence of the policies and 
provisions of Planning Policy Wales and ultimately through the Revised Local Development 
Plan. No additional direct costs are envisaged. 

 

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the 
appropriate Directors / Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are 
no other implications associated with this report: 
Signed:     N. Daniel                                                             Head of Planning                          
 

Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities 

Legal 
 

Finance 
 

ICT 
 

Risk 
Management 
Issues 

Staffing 
Implications 
 

Physical 
Assets  
 

YES  YES   NONE  NONE  NONE  NONE NONE 

 
1. Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities 

 
The principles of Placemaking as expressed within the Charter reflects the objective of 
Planning policies, proposals and decisions to seek to promote sustainable development and 
support the well-being of people and communities.  Placemaking links to the delivery of the 
seven well-being goals and by using the five Ways of Working, as required by the Well-being 
of Future Generations Act, including seeking to maximise the social, economic, environmental 
and cultural benefits, while considering potential impacts in line with the Act’s Sustainable 
Development Principle.  This is embedded in the provisions of national planning policy and 
the emerging Revised LDP and is reflective of the requirements emanating from the 
Wellbeing and Future Generations Act 2015 and the Carmarthenshire Well-being Plan: The 
Carmarthenshire We Want – 2018 - 2023. Through Placemaking principles and land use 
planning policies, the approach will seek to promote the principles of sustainability and 
sustainable development by facilitating the creation of communities and local economies 
which are more sustainable, cohesive and provide access to local services and facilities and 
reducing the need to travel. 

Tudalen 142



   
 

 

CONSULTATIONS 
 

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are 
as detailed below 
Signed:   N. Daniel                                                              Head of Planning        
 

1. Scrutiny Committee 
Not applicable.  Future reports to be provided to Community and Regeneration Scrutiny to 
consider the application of the charter. 
2.Local Member(s)   
Not applicable. Internal and external partners will be engaged as part of the implementation of 
policy and the principles of the Charter. 
3.Community / Town Council  
Not applicable. Internal and external partners will be engaged as part of the implementation of 
policy and the principles of the Charter. 
4.Relevant Partners   
Not applicable. Internal and external partners will be engaged as part of the implementation of 
policy and the principles of the Charter. 
5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations   
Not applicable. Internal and external partners will be engaged as part of the implementation of 
policy and the principles of the Charter. 
 

EXECUTIVE BOARD PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER(S) AWARE/CONSULTED  
 

YES 

 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW      

Title of Document 
 

File Ref 
No. 

Locations that the papers are available for public 
inspection  

Planning Policy Wales 
(Edition 11) 

 https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-
02/planning-policy-wales-edition-11_0.pdf 

Future Wales: the 
national plan 2040 

 https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-
02/future-wales-the-national-plan-2040.pdf 

Revised Deposit LDP 
 

 https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-
services/planning/local-development-plan-2018-
2033/deposit-plan/#.YH1j-o5KiUl 

Placemaking Charter 
Website 

 https://dcfw.org/placemaking/placemaking-charter/ 

Placemaking and 
Design SPG 

 https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/121390
4/adopted-placemaking-design-spg-report.pdf 

 
 

Tudalen 143

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-02/planning-policy-wales-edition-11_0.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-02/planning-policy-wales-edition-11_0.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-02/future-wales-the-national-plan-2040.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-02/future-wales-the-national-plan-2040.pdf
https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-services/planning/local-development-plan-2018-2033/deposit-plan/#.YH1j-o5KiUl
https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-services/planning/local-development-plan-2018-2033/deposit-plan/#.YH1j-o5KiUl
https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-services/planning/local-development-plan-2018-2033/deposit-plan/#.YH1j-o5KiUl
https://dcfw.org/placemaking/placemaking-charter/


Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 

Appendix A – Placemaking Charter Wales 

 Tudalen 145



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 

 
 

BWRDD GWEITHREDOL 
 

Dydd Mawrth, 1 Mehefin 2021 
 

YN BRESENNOL: Y Cynghorydd E. Dole (Cadeirydd) 
 
Y Cynghorwyr:  
C.A. Davies, G. Davies, H.A.L. Evans, L.D. Evans, P.M. Hughes, P. Hughes-Griffiths, 
D.M. Jenkins, L.M. Stephens a/ac J. Tremlett 
 
Hefyd yn bresennol: 
Y Cynghorwyr: J.S. Edmunds a/ac D.M. Cundy 
 
Yr oedd y swyddogion canlynol yn gwasanaethu yn y cyfarfod: 
J. Morgan, Cyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau Cymunedau 
R. Mullen, Cyfarwyddwr yr Amgylchedd 
G. Morgans, Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaethau Addysg a Phlant 
L.R. Jones, Pennaeth Gweinyddiaeth a'r Gyfraith 
P.R. Thomas, Prif Weithredwr Cynorthwyol (Rheoli Pobl a Pherfformiad) 
R. Hemingway, Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Ariannol 
N. Daniel, Pennaeth TGCh a Pholisi Corfforaethol 
J. Jones, Rheolwr Eiddo a Phrosiectau Mawr 
D. Hockenhull, Rheolwr y Cyfryngau a Marchnata 
S. Rees, Cyfieithydd Ar Y Pryd 
L. Jenkins, Swyddog Cefnogi Bwrdd Gweithredol 
L Morris, Uwch Swyddog Y Wasg 
S. Hendy, Swyddog Cefnogi Aelodau 
J. Owen, Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 
K. Thomas, Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 
 
Siambr,  Neuadd Y Sir, Caerfyrddin, SA31 1JP - 10.00  - 10.50 yb 
 
1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB 

 
Ni chafwyd ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb. 
 

2. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANNAU PERSONOL 
 
Ni ddatganwyd unrhyw fuddiannau personol. 
 

3. EFFAITH CREDYD CYNHWYSOL A COVID-19 AR ÔL-DDYLEDION RHENT 
 
Dywedodd y Cadeirydd nad oedd dim cwestiynau â rhybudd wedi cael eu cyflwyno 
gan yr Aelodau. 
 

4. CWESTIYNAU A RHYBYDD GAN Y CYHOEDD 
 
Dywedodd y Cadeirydd nad oedd dim cwestiynau wedi dod i law gan y cyhoedd. 
 

5. STRATEGAETH TRAWSNEWID DIGIDOL 2021-2024 
 

Tudalen 147

Eitem Rhif  7.1



 

 
 

Bu'r Bwrdd Gweithredol yn ystyried adroddiad ar fabwysiadu Strategaeth 
Trawsnewid Digidol ar gyfer y cyfnod 2021-2024. Nodwyd bod y Strategaeth, a 
fyddai'n disodli strategaeth 2017-20, yn seiliedig ar y cynnydd a wnaed dros y 
pedair blynedd diwethaf, roedd yn manylu ar flaenoriaethau a dyheadau digidol 
strategol y Cyngor ac yn amlinellu'r hyn yr oedd angen ei wneud i gyflawni'r 
weledigaeth ar gyfer Sir Gaerfyrddin ddigidol dros y tair blynedd nesaf. 
 
Nodwyd bod y Strategaeth yn rhoi eglurder ynghylch:- 

 Y weledigaeth ddigidol ar gyfer Sir Gaerfyrddin 

 Beth yw Strategaeth Trawsnewid Digidol 

 Adeiladu Sylfeini Digidol yn Sir Gaerfyrddin 

 Meysydd Blaenoriaeth allweddol 

 Y prosiectau allweddol a'r deilliannau sydd i'w cyflawni 

 Yr Adnoddau sydd eu hangen i gyflawni'r weledigaeth ddigidol. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL gymeradwyo Strategaeth Trawsnewid 
Digidol 2021-2024. 
 

6. ACHREDIAD YMGYRCH Y RHUBAN GWYN 
 
Bu'r Bwrdd Gweithredol yn ystyried adroddiad ynghylch y Cyngor yn ymgeisio o’r 
newydd am achrediad gan Ymgyrch y Rhuban Gwyn i ddod â thrais gan ddynion 
yn erbyn menywod i ben.  Nodwyd bod yr Achrediad blaenorol, a dderbyniwyd ym 
mis Awst 2018, bellach wedi dod i ben ac er mwyn adnewyddu’r achrediad roedd y 
Cyngor wedi paratoi Cynllun Gweithredu i'w gyflwyno a chael ei gymeradwyo gan 
Ymgyrch y Rhuban Gwyn. Drwy gefnogi'r ymgyrch a chodi ymwybyddiaeth o gam-
drin domestig, byddai'r Cyngor yn gweithio i fynd i'r afael â phob math o gam-drin 
a thrais, nid yn unig gan ddynion yn erbyn menywod. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL: 
6.1 Cefnogi cais y Cyngor am statws y Rhuban Gwyn; 
6.2 Cymeradwyo'r Cynllun Gweithredu i'w gyflwyno i Ymgyrch y 

Rhuban Gwyn i sicrhau achrediad, gan ddangos ymrwymiad y 
Cyngor i ddod â thrais gan ddynion yn erbyn menywod i ben; 

6.3 Cefnogi'r ymrwymiad a'r cyfranogiad sy'n ofynnol gan 
swyddogion ar draws y cyngor i roi'r Cynllun Gweithredu ar 
waith. 

 
7. EFFAITH CREDYD CYNHWYSOL A COVID-19 AR ÔL-DDYLEDION RHENT 

 
Bu'r Bwrdd Gweithredol yn ystyried adroddiad ar effaith Credyd Cynhwysol a 
Covid-19 ar ôl-ddyledion rhent Tai Cyngor. Nododd y Bwrdd mai nod yr adroddiad 
oedd:- 

 Rhoi'r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am lefel yr ôl-ddyledion rhent gan denantiaid 
y Cyngor; 

 amlinellu cynlluniau sydd wedi cael eu rhoi ar waith i liniaru'r effaith a 
chefnogi tenantiaethau ar hyn o bryd ac yn y dyfodol; 

 ceisio cymeradwyaeth i gynnal achos llys lle mae pob cam arall i ymgysylltu 
a chefnogi tenantiaethau wedi methu. 

 
Roedd yr Aelod o'r Bwrdd Gweithredol dros Dai wedi tynnu sylw'r Bwrdd at lefel yr 
ôl-ddyledion rhent a nodwyd ar dudalen 65 yr adroddiad sef £1.537m ar ddiwedd 

Tudalen 148



 

 
 

blwyddyn ariannol 2020/21, a dywedodd y dylid cywiro'r ffigur a nodi £1.193m, sef 
cynnydd o £69k o'i gymharu â blwyddyn ariannol 2019/20. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL 
7.1 Nodi lefel bresennol yr ôl-ddyledion rhent ac effaith Credyd 

Cynhwysol a COVID-19; 
7.2 Nodi'r cymorth sy'n cael ei ddarparu i liniaru effeithiau Credyd 

Cynhwysol a COVID-19;  
7.3 Cadarnhau y bydd y cymorth ariannol yn cael ei ymestyn o 

£100,000 i £200,000 i helpu tenantiaid sy'n cael anawsterau, lle 
mae COVID-19 a chaledi ariannol arall wedi effeithio ar eu 
hincwm; 

7.4 Cadarnhau i ailgychwyn camau gorfodi a dechrau cychwyn 
achos llys lle mae pob dull arall o ymgysylltu a chefnogi 
tenantiaid wedi methu. 

 
8. UNRHYW FATER ARALL Y GALL Y CADEIRYDD OHERWYDD 

AMGYLCHIADAU ARBENNIG BENDERFYNU EI YSTYRIED YN FATER BRYS 
YN UNOL AG ADRAN 100B(4)(B) O DDEDDF LLYWODRAETH LEOL, 1972. 
 
Dywedodd y Cadeirydd nad oedd unrhyw eitemau eraill o fater brys. 
 

9. GORCHYMYN I'R CYHOEDD ADAEL Y CYFARFOD 
 
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL, yn unol â Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972, 
fel y'i newidiwyd gan Orchymyn Llywodraeth Leol (Mynediad at Wybodaeth) 
(Amrywio) (Cymru) 2007, orchymyn i'r cyhoedd adael y cyfarfod tra oedd yr 
eitemau canlynol yn cael eu hystyried, gan fod yr adroddiadau'n cynnwys 
gwybodaeth eithriedig fel y'i diffiniwyd ym mharagraff 14 o Ran 4 o Atodlen 
12A i'r Ddeddf. 
 

10. DATBLYGIAD PRESWYL AR DIR YNG NGORLLEWIN CAERFYRDDIN 
 
Ar ôl cynnal prawf budd y cyhoedd PENDERFYNWYD, yn unol â'r Ddeddf y 
cyfeiriwyd ati yng nghofnod rhif 9 uchod, beidio â chyhoeddi cynnwys yr 
adroddiad gan ei fod yn cynnwys gwybodaeth eithriedig am faterion ariannol 
neu faterion busnes unigolyn penodol (gan gynnwys yr Awdurdod oedd yn 
meddu ar y wybodaeth honno) (Paragraff 14 o Ran 4 o Atodlen 12A i'r 
Ddeddf). Roedd prawf budd y cyhoedd mewn perthynas â'r adroddiad hwn 
yn drech na'r budd i'r cyhoedd o ran datgelu'r wybodaeth a geir ynddo 
oherwydd byddai datgelu'r wybodaeth hon yn anfantais faterol i'r awdurdod 
mewn unrhyw drafodaethau dilynol â thrydydd partïon, a gallai gael effaith 
niweidiol ar y pwrs cyhoeddus.  
 
Bu'r Bwrdd Gweithredol yn ystyried adroddiad ynghylch gwaredu tir sy’n eiddo i’r 
Cyngor yng Ngorllewin Caerfyrddin. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL: 
 
10.1. gymeradwyo gwaredu'r tir datblygu preswyl yng Ngorllewin 

Caerfyrddin drwy weithdrefn gaffael agored i alluogi darparu 
cynllun preswyl deiliadaeth gymysg. 

10.2   Rhoi awdurdod dirprwyedig i Benaethiaid Adfywio a Chartrefi a 

Tudalen 149



 

 
 

Chymunedau Mwy Diogel, mewn ymgynghoriad ag Aelodau 
perthnasol y Bwrdd Gweithredol, i drafod a chofnodi telerau 
priodol ar gyfer gwerthu'r tir a chaffael y cartrefi rhent 
cymdeithasol ar ôl hynny 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________    __________________ 
CADEIRYDD       DYDDIAD 
 

Tudalen 150



 

 
 

 
EXECUTIVE BOARD 

 
21 JUNE 2021 

 
PRESENT: Councillor E. Dole (Chair) 
 
Councillors:  
C.A. Davies, G. Davies, H.A.L. Evans, L.D. Evans, P.M. Hughes, P. Hughes-Griffiths, 
D.M. Jenkins, L.M. Stephens and J. Tremlett 
 
Also in attendance: 
Councillor D.M. Cundy 
 
The following Officers were in attendance: 
W. Walters, Chief Executive; 
J. Morgan, Director of Community Services; 
C. Moore, Director of Corporate Services; 
R. Mullen, Director of Environment; 
P.R. Thomas, Assistant Chief Executive (People Management & Performance); 
N. Daniel, Head of ICT and Corporate Policy; 
J. Jones, Head of Regeneration; 
L.R. Jones, Head of Administration and Law; 
H. Pugh, Head of Revenues and Financial Compliance; 
A. Thomas, Head of Education Services and Inclusion; 
D. Hockenhull, Marketing and Media Manager; 
M. Evans Thomas, Principal Democratic Services Officer; 
L. Jenkins, Executive Board Support Officer; 
C. Jones, Principal Procurement Officer; 
R. Lloyd, Democratic Services Officer; 
S. Rees, Simultaneous Translator; 
J. Owen, Democratic Services Officer. 
 
Virtual Meeting:10:00am - 11:00am 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
There were no apologies for absence. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF PERSONAL INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of personal interests. 
 

Councillor Minute Number Nature of Interest 

E. Dole 8 – Carmarthenshire Economic 

Recover and Delivery Plan 

Family Members have businesses 

within Carmarthenshire 

E. Dole 9 – Future Regeneration Grant 

Funding 

Family Members have businesses 

within Carmarthenshire 

 

Tudalen 151

Eitem Rhif  7.2



 

 
 

 
3. TO SIGN AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE 

EXECUTIVE BOARD HELD ON THE 
 
3.1. 24TH MAY 2021 
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Executive 
Board held on the 24th May 2021 be signed as a correct record. 
 
3.2. 1ST JUNE 2021 
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Executive 
Board held on the 1st June 2021 be signed as a correct record. 
 

4. QUESTIONS ON NOTICE BY MEMBERS 
 
The Chair advised that no questions on notice had been submitted by members. 
 

5. PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON NOTICE 
 
The Chair advised that no public questions had been received. 
 

6. COUNCIL CCTV POLICY 
 
The Executive Board considered a report which sought the Boards approval on the 
new corporate policy relating to council owned Closed Circuit Television (CCTV) 
systems. 
 
The report highlighted that the Council currently had in excess of 90 CCTV 
systems with over 600 cameras in its premises, plus 79 vehicles with around 250 
cameras and approximately 25 body worn cameras. Council departments utilise 
surveillance camera devices for a variety of purposes including cameras within its 
premises and car parks as well as on the highway, body worn video camera 
equipment, drones and automatic number plate recognition. 
 
The report outlined that the Council had a duty, under the Protection of Freedoms 
Act (PoFA) 2012, to pay due regard to the Home Office Surveillance Camera 
Code of Practice in 2013 which related to CCTV cameras in public places. The 
report detailed the 12 guiding principles of the Code which would ensure there was 
a clear rationale for all cameras, that their use was proportionate and transparent, 
that systems are run effectively and could provide good quality images 
 
The Board noted that the Surveillance Camera Commissioner required Local 
Authorities to identify a Senior Responsible Officer to deliver a corporate approach 
to their responsibilities under the POFA 2012. This role was being undertaken by 
the Head of ICT and Corporate Policy. 
 
In addition to implementing the Council policy for CCTV, the report included 
information in relation to the future areas of work. It was reported that a bid for a 
12-month dedicated resource to lead on the delivery of this work, in liaison with 
departmental leads, to the Risk Management Steering Group was successful and 
that the post would now be advertised. 
 

Tudalen 152



 

 
 

 
The Board was satisfied to note that the Policy had been developed to ensure both 
compliance with the Code of Practice by all relevant services to ensure a 
consistent approach to the gathering, storage, use and disposal of CCTV system 
recorded data.  
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED: 
 
6.1. That the new corporate policy relating to council owned CCTV 

systems in public places be approved; 
 

6.2. That Heads of Service review the departmental leads to assist with 
 implementation of the policy; 
 
6.3.  To recommend to schools that they should adopt the principles of this 

policy. 
 

7. ADVANCING PROGRESSIVE PROCUREMENT 
 
The Executive Board considered a report which provided detailed information and 
included recommendations in relation to advancing progressive procurement.   
 
Originally progressive procurement opportunities were planned under the 
Carmarthenshire public sector food procurement project, funded through the 
Welsh Government Foundational Economy Challenge fund. Although still 
supported through this work the COVID-19 situation had provided greater focus 
and impetus and there was an opportunity to extend the original scope of the 
project from just food to cover all of the Council’s procured spend. The work was 
very closely aligned with the Council’s economic recovery plan with progressive 
procurement being a key theme of that plan. 
 
The report and recommendations were specific to this Council and had taken 
account of all Council procured spend areas.  Officers had worked closely with the 
Centre for Local Economic Strategies (CLES) who had undertaken the work 
focusing on the following areas: 
 

 Strategic review; 

 Evidence review including local economy analysis; spend analysis; and gap 
analysis; 

 Stakeholder engagement; 

 Review and development of existing toolkits; 

 Advancing progressive procurement action plan. 
 
The Board noted the 9 key recommendations from the CLES report which included 
suggested steps to make progress against the recommendations. 
 
The report suggested that that a working group with representation from the 
Council’s procurement, economic development and corporate policy teams, with 
input and support from other relevant Council services and relevant Executive 
Board members be established to further develop this work.  

Tudalen 153



 

 
 

This would complement and work alongside a new Public Service Board 
procurement and economic development network which was being proposed as 
part of the public sector food procurement project.  
 
In addition, any changes to current Council policy and regulations as a result of 
this further work would be reported back to the Executive Board for final decision.  
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED: 
 
7.1 That the 9 key recommendations in the report for further development 

be approved and that any changes to current policy and regulations as 
a result of this further work would be reported for final decision back to 
the Executive Board. 

 
7.2. To support a general Carmarthenshire first approach to Council spend 

below £25K wherever possible. 
 
7.3. To agree to the establishment of a Council officer working group with 

representation from procurement, economic development and 
corporate policy and other Council services and relevant Executive 
Board members as appropriate. This will complement and work 
alongside a new PSB procurement and economic development network 
which is being proposed as part of the public sector food procurement 
project. 

 
8. CARMARTHENSHIRE ECONOMIC RECOVERY AND DELIVERY PLAN 

 
The Executive Board considered a report which provided relative information on 
the Economic Recovery and Delivery plan appended to the report.  The Plan 
identified 30 actions to support the recovery of the Carmarthenshire economy from 
the social and economic impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic and Brexit. 
 
The report highlighted that the intelligence gathered demonstrated that the 
Authority and the local economy face an extremely difficult time over the next 24 
months as the effects of the Covid-19 crisis puts pressure on jobs and demand. 
 
The purpose of the plan was to set out the short-term priorities and immediate 
actions over the next two years that protect jobs and safeguard businesses in 
Carmarthenshire. 
 
The Board noted that it was essential that the Council’s response was in line with 
the needs of businesses and communities across Carmarthenshire, taking 
advantage of opportunities to accelerate change to enable success in the 
economy of the future. 
 
An independent review of the Draft Economic Recovery Plan and initial 11 themes 
developed during the height of the first pandemic wave concluded that the Council 
was on the right track but needed to focus on our priorities, challenge current ways 
of working to maximise opportunities for businesses and make it as simple as 
possible to support recovery and growth in the economy. 
 

Tudalen 154



 

 
 

In reference to page 24 of the report and the paragraph ‘Growth that is fair, equal 
and supports Welsh language and culture, it was proposed and seconded, that the 
wording on, be amended to read; “Furthermore, in recognition of the changing 
dynamics concerning where people choose to live and work, we will encourage 
businesses across the County to value and use the Welsh language”. 
 
Recognition was given to the Council’s prudent financial management enabling the 
Council to provide support the economy during hardship. 
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that: 
 
8.1 the update on the impact that Covid-19 is having on Carmarthenshire’s 

economy, businesses and communities is received; 
 
8.2 that the proposed economic recovery and delivery plan be approved 

subject to the inclusion of the abovementioned amendment to page 24 of 
the report; 

 
8.3 that regular quarterly updates on performance against delivery plan 

actions be provided to the Executive Board. 
 

9. FUTURE REGENERATION GRANT FUNDING 
 
The Executive Board considered a report which provided information on the 
available funding which would assist in the delivery of Carmarthenshire County 
Council’s Economic Recovery Plan sought the Executive Board’s agreement on 
the proposed methodology for delivery which was detailed within the report. 
 
The Board noted that the new Transforming Towns Programme had been adapted 
to create a wider focus on town centres enabling funding to cover a range of 
projects listed within the report.   
 
The new Transforming Towns Programme offered more flexibility in its coverage 
and it was therefore recommended that the new Welsh Government funding cover 
the following towns; Llanelli, Ammanford, Carmarthen, Burry Port, Kidwelly, 
Cwmamman, Crosshands, Whitland, Laugharne, St Clears, Newcastle Emlyn, 
Llanybydder, Llandeilo and Llandovery. 
 
It was proposed that Chwarter Bach be included within the list of towns. This was 
duly seconded. 
 
The report provided detailed information on the proposed methodology for the 
release of regeneration funding.  
 

Tudalen 155



 

 
 

UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED: 
 
9.1 to support the proposed methodology for the administration of future 

regeneration grant funding including: 

 Carmarthenshire Transformational Commercial Property Development 
Fund 

 Carmarthenshire Rural Enterprise Fund 

 Business Start - up Fund 

 Business Growth Fund 

 Business Renewable Energy Fund 

 Business Skills Support Fund 

 10 Towns Funding 

 Welsh Government Transforming Towns Programme (Previously 
Targeted Regeneration Investment Programme (TRI)) 
 

9.2 that Chwarter Bach be included within the new Transforming Towns 
Programme. 

 
10. PROGRESS REPORT ON THE ESTABLISHMENT OF THE SOUTH WEST 

WALES CORPORATE JOINT COMMITTEE 
 
The Executive Board considered a report which provided an overview on the 
requirement to establish Corporate Joint Committees (“CJCs”).  The report sought 
delegated authority for officers to enter into discussions with the authorities 
referenced within the report to develop suitable proposals for the CJC 
arrangements in South West Wales.  
 
The report highlighted that the Welsh Government had imposed a requirement for 
Corporate Joint Committees to be established, and that Regulations were made by 
the Welsh Ministers on the 17th March 2021 to establish the South West Wales 
Corporate Joint Committee.  The following functions were prescribed by the Welsh 
Ministers as being in the remit of the CJC: 
 
1. The economic well-being function; 
2. Developing transport policies and preparing regional transport plans; 
3. The preparation of strategic development plans. 
 
Governance would be a key element of CJCs and a number of factors must be 
considered by CJCs. 
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that: 
 
10.1 that the work being undertaken and next steps needed in relation to the 

governance arrangements for the South West Wales Corporate Joint 
Committee be noted; 

 
10.2. to delegates authority to the Chief Executive, in consultation with the 

Leader, to agree loan application for grant funding being made to Welsh 
Government to establish the South West Wales CJC and to accept any 
grant offer that may be made by Welsh Government (whether made to 
this Council or to a participating Council in the South West Wales CJC); 

 

Tudalen 156



 

 
 

10.3. to delegate authority to the Chief Executive to enter into dialogue with 
those Authorities who will comprise the South West Wales CJC to 
develop proposals for establishing the South West Wales CJC; 

 
10.4. that a further report be brought back providing a progress update. 
 

11. ANY OTHER ITEMS OF BUSINESS  
 
The Chair advised that there were no items of urgent business. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________    __________________ 
CHAIR      DATE 
 

Tudalen 157



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 

 
 

EXECUTIVE BOARD 
 

Monday, 5 July 2021 
 

PRESENT: Councillor E. Dole (Chair) 
 
Councillors:  
C.A. Davies, G. Davies, H.A.L. Evans, L.D. Evans, P.M. Hughes, P. Hughes-Griffiths, 
D.M. Jenkins, L.M. Stephens and J. Tremlett 
 
Also in attendance: 
Councillors D.M. Cundy and J.D. James 
 
The following Officers were in attendance: 
W. Walters, Chief Executive 
C. Moore, Director of Corporate Services 
J. Morgan, Director of Community Services 
G. Morgans, Director of Education & Children's Services 
J. Jones, Head of Regeneration 
L.R. Jones, Head of Administration and Law 
P.R. Thomas, Assistant Chief Executive (People Management & Performance) 
A. Williams, Head of Waste and Environmental Services 
I.R. Llewelyn, Forward Planning Manager 
D. Hockenhull, Marketing and Media Manager 
L. Jenkins, Executive Board Support Officer 
S. Rees, Simultaneous Translator 
R. Lloyd, Democratic Services Officer 
M.S. Davies, Democratic Services Officer 
Virtual Meeting: 10.00 am - 11.00 am 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

There were no apologies for absence. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF PERSONAL INTEREST 
There were no declarations of personal interests. 
 

3. MINUTES - 21ST JUNE 2021 
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Executive 
Board held on the 21st June 2021 be signed as a correct record. 
 

4. QUESTIONS ON NOTICE BY MEMBERS 
The Chair advised that no questions on notice had been submitted by members. 
 

5. PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON NOTICE 
The Chair advised that no public questions had been received. 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 159

Eitem Rhif  7.3



 

 
 

6. ENVIRONMENTAL AND PUBLIC PROTECTION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
TASK AND FINISH GROUP FINAL REPORT TRADING STANDARDS 
SERVICES - FINANCIAL EXPLOITATION SAFEGUARDING SCHEME (FESS). 
With reference to minute 5 of the meeting of the Environmental & Public Protection 
Scrutiny Committee held on 10th June 2019 the Executive Board considered the 
final report from the Environmental and Public Protection Scrutiny Committee Task 
and Finish Group, presented by its Chair Cllr. John James, which had been 
established to review the Trading Standards Services – Financial Exploitation 
Safeguarding Scheme (FESS).   
The Group’s main aims for the review had been to explore whether the portfolio of 
crime prevention, victim support and education activities consolidated within the 
FESS initiative provided an effective strategy to help combat fraud victimisation 
and promoted corporate health and wellbeing objectives in the wake of the Social 
Services and Wellbeing Wales Act 2014 and the Wellbeing of Future Generations 
Act 2015. 
 
The Executive Board thanked the Committee, Officers and the Chair for their work 
on the report and the Executive Board Member - Social Care and Health added 
that she would ensure that its findings were shared with the Safeguarding team 
particularly as many scams targeted the elderly.  
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED to endorse the final report and 
recommendations of the Environmental & Public Protection Scrutiny 
Committee Task & Finish Group’s review of the Trading Standards Services 
– Financial Exploitation Safeguarding Scheme (FESS). 
 

7. SIGNATORY TO THE PLACEMAKING CHARTER 
The Executive Board considered a report which sought endorsement for the 
Council to become a signatory of the Placemaking Charter Wales. The report 
outlined the context and purpose of Placemaking, its role and status in national 
and local planning policy as well as the content of the Charter. The Charter had 
been developed by the Design Commission for Wales and the Welsh Government 
in collaboration with the Placemaking Wales Partnership, which was made up of 
stakeholders representing a wide range of interests and organisations working 
within the built and natural environment. It reflected the collective and individual 
commitment of these organisations to support the development of high-quality 
places across Wales for the benefit of its communities. 
The Council’s Planning Committee had recommended endorsement of the report 
at its meeting on the 24th June 2021.  
 
In response to a concern that the reference to ‘Language’ under the heading 
‘Identity’ could be more robust it was commented that the Council’s own policies 
would ensure that this was the case. 
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED TO RECOMMEND TO COUNCIL that the 
Placemaking Charter Wales be endorsed with Carmarthenshire County 
Council becoming a signatory. 
 

8. SKILLS AND TALENT PROGRAMME, SWANSEA BAY CITY DEAL 
The Executive Board considered a report detailing a proposed Business Case for 
the Skills and Talent programme, within the suite of 9 Swansea Bay City Deal 
projects, that would deliver a skills training solution offering the best value 
sustainable skills infrastructure to develop the future workforce for the region. It 

Tudalen 160



 

 
 

was considered that the development of a comprehensive and forward-thinking 
skills programme was vital to the overall success of the City Deal Portfolio. The 
programme would align the available skills provision and identified skills gaps with 
the needs of Industry across the region as well as the 8 innovative projects that 
made up the City Deal supporting the growth of GVA, productivity and business 
investment in the region. 
 
The Leader highlighted the fact that this was the first project under the Swansea 
Bay City Deal Gateway review process which had received the ‘green light’. 
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED TO RECOMMEND TO COUNCIL 
 

8.1 to approve the proposed Business Case for the Skills and Talent 
programme and its formal submission to the Portfolio Management Office 
in accordance with the City Deal Implementation Plan to secure City Deal 
funding approval; 

 
8.2 that delegated authority be granted to the Head of Regeneration, in 

conjunction with the Executive Board Member – Leader, to make any 
minor amendments to the business case as necessary to obtain approval 
at local, regional and national governance. 

 
9. ANY OTHER ITEMS OF BUSINESS THAT BY REASONS OF SPECIAL 

CIRCUMSTANCES THE CHAIR DECIDES SHOULD BE CONSIDERED AS A 
MATTER OF URGENCY PURSUANT TO SECTION 100B(4)(B) OF THE LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT ACT, 1972. 
The Chair advised that there were no items of urgent business. 
 

 
________________________    __________________ 
CHAIR       DATE 

Tudalen 161



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol


	Agenda
	4 LLOFNODI YN GOFNOD CYWIR COFNOD CYFARFOD Y CYNGOR A GYNHALIWYD AR 9 MEHEFIN 2021
	5 DATGANIAD AMRYWIAETH MEWN DEMOCRATIAETH
	Atodiad 1

	6.1 RHAGLEN SGILIAU A THALENTAU, BARGEN DDINESIG BAE ABERTAWE
	Adroddiad

	6.2 LLOFNODWR Y SIARTER CREU LLEOEDD
	Atodiad A

	7.1 1 MEHEFIN 2021
	7.2 21 MEHEFIN 2021
	7.3 5 GORFFENNAF 2021

